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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Revenue

R
199%
o.P

FY2019 million HKD

201981 4F 1 0,261 BEAT
FY2018 million HKD
201881 9,410 mrs5

Profit Attributable to
Owners of the Company

NEEE AESRT
117%

FY2019 million HKD

20198/ 331 BEAT

FY2018 million HKD
201881 282 BT

Earnings per Share

BREF
T17%

D
s ¢

FY2019

2019814 6 . 642 %ﬁujents

FY2018 HK cents

2018814 5664 B

Revenue Natural Gas Sales and Transmission Volume
B HERE
HK$ Million Million Cubic Meters
BEAET 0410 10,261 BEMSK
10,000 T 6,000 5,124
5,000 4,668
8,000 7,651 4065 ”
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FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019
20178/ 4F 201881 % 201981 5 201781 201884 201981 5
For the period (in HK$ million) FY2019 FY2018 Changes
R (E8EET) 201981 201851 4 L)
Revenue == 10,261 9,410 +9%
Gross Profit EH 1,505 1,365 +10%
Profit for the year F 8 A 779 678 +15%
Profit attributable to owners NREF AR F
of the Company 331 282 +17%
Earnings per Share (HK cents) BRRAEF (B 6.642 5.664 +17%
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Missions

Develop business of
clean energy
Contribute
sustainability to society
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Spirits
Passionate Ambitious

Diligent

Lk

Vision

enterprise by

environment-friendly

clean energy
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Core Values
Integrity

Group interest as priority
Customer orientation

Innovation
Teamwork
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Establish the Group as an
internationally influential

Working environment

Enterprise Culture
1k
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Objectives

Create value for our
customers
Create future for our
employees
Create rewards for our
shareholders

o

IHESE

HEYE AFALE
BWETE BARE
EBER HERR

Respect Righteous
Disciplined Precise
Initiative  Positive
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Corporate Profiles
NAEN

China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) (stock code: 603) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in investment
in natural gas and energy related business. Operations of the Group include
piped city gas business, pipeline design and construction; transportation,
distribution and sale of compressed natural gas (“CNG") and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG"); and development, production and sale of crude oil and
natural gas and other upstream energy resources.

As a piped city natural gas service provider, the Group supplies city natural
gas through long-distance transmission pipelines. With 71 concession
rights, the Group has built up city pipeline networks which offer stable and
sufficient natural gas resources to local household, industrial, commercial
and other users. As a non-pipeline natural gas provider, the Group has
established 2 LNG plants in Qinghai Province, the PRC. Meanwhile, the
Group has also built certain CNG primary stations to ensure a smooth supply
of natural gas all year round. These facilities support supplies of natural gas
to cities not yet covered by pipeline networks and are treated as emergency
backup gas sources for the Group.

As a major national operator of natural gas stations for automobile natural
gas filling, the Group has built 39 CNG stations, 10 LNG stations and 6 L/
CNG stations across the country. All kinds of automobiles, city buses and
long-distance buses can be converted into natural gas operation system
by paying an affordable fee. Some of the provinces will provide subsidy to
automobile owners who are willing to convert their automobile into natural
gas operating system. With support from the PRC government, the Group
offers inexpensive, clean and environmental friendly natural gas to the
transportation sector.

As an operator of natural gas branch pipelines, the Group has already
completed 13,023 km natural gas pipelines in 16 provinces and autonomous
regions. Apart from bringing in stable natural gas transmission revenue,
the branch pipelines constructions will also facilitate the development of
projects along the down-stream.

The Group has well established a large-scale developed natural gas transport
and logistics operation in the PRC, including the set up of LNG and CNG
fleets which have reinforced the mobility and coverage of our natural gas
supplies.

As an upstream energy resources producer, the Group engages in the
development, production and sale of crude oil and gas and other resources
in Alberta of Canada. The exploration and production business of the
Group has the proved reserves of approximately 26.12 million barrels of oil
equivalent and the proved plus probable reserves of approximately 41.69
million barrels of oil equivalent. Its average daily production was 5,625
barrels of oil equivalent in 2019. Our exploration and production business
possesses energy business in production, a very experienced management
team with proven tracking records, a stable production assets portfolio and
strong profitability with considerable potential for growth.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2019
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Main trunk pipelines T E# 454

Natural Gas Distribution Business in China
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Company operating assets / data A B EEEEREE
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Oil and Gas Production Business in Canada

MEXHREER

RESERVES
As at 31 December 2019
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Corporate Information
NEEHF

(continued) (#&)
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

BUSINESS REVIEW FE e
Despite the ongoing China-U.S. trade tensions, increased risks in global 20195 - EHR B HERFE f%ﬁﬁ%l/\
economy and economic stagnation, changes in policies and intense market wETTRBRIMA BEZERTERESY

competition, in 2019, China’s demand for domestic consumption of natural
gas reached 304.8 billion cubic meters, with a year-on-year increase of
9%. Conforming to the trend of reform of the national oil and gas system,
the Group adjusted its positioning, adopted visionary strategies and seized
opportunities for high-quality development. Management of the Group
actively developed markets and resources, stabilized price differences,
controlled operating risks, strengthened staff training and improved
management. In line with the objectives of creating value for customers,
creating future for employees and creating returns for shareholders, the
Group has completed its business targets and achieved encouraging results
through the hard work and solidarity of all employees of the Group.

The Group's total revenue was increased by 9% to HK$10,261 million.
Thanks to the steady increase in sales and distribution of natural gas, gross
profit increased by 10% to HK$1,505 million. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company for the year recorded an increase of 17% to HK$331
million from HK$282 million in 2018.

REHIRET - qﬂli%ﬁ%éﬂﬁﬁ’;m%_
§|J3O481:"“7’7'>F BB R9% - EERE

EEEREREERE RS KREEN
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% BEE  ZRK MER 8=HK:: 3\X
It BIER : TUFI - BE - EEE2ERC
REABBRRAEDR - AEFEIEEBE - BB
TRERANTRE BRELE  WBRE &
Mg ERTEBLELEZ MBTEAN
E3

EERVIIFHEXETEAI0261EE T REF
BRI% - TERAARR O HEBHEBTE K -
E B NI10%E15.05EB T - A Al A A
FEARH FER1E331EB T - Lk A FR2.82EH
TTEFA17% -

Revenue Profit attributable to owners
WA AL g
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CITY PIPELINE NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

Sales and distributions of natural gas

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded sales and
distribution of natural gas income of HK$9,255 million (2018: HK$8,476
million), representing a 9% growth and accounting for 90% of total
revenue. During the year, the Group’s total gas sales volume increased
by 10% to 4,079 million cubic meters (2018: 3,725 million cubic meters).
Gas sales volume for industrial and commercial users increased by 12%,
residential users gas sales volume increased by 11% and gas stations
decreased by 5%, with each representing 65%, 25% and 10% of the
total gas sales volume (2018: 64%, 24% and 12%), respectively. The gas
transmission volume was 1,045 million cubic meters (2018: 943 million
cubic meters), representing a 11% increase.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#&)
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Gas Sales Volume Breakdown — By Province
AARHEHEEDTR —REND

2019 2018
Province H#H —E-hF = N\EF
Qinghai 58 38.3% 39.8%
Shandong IS 9.5% 9.7%
Hunan iilEa) 8.7% 8.8%
Jiangsu TR 16.8% 13.8%
Guangdong ER 4.0% 5.1%
Jiangxi pINpii) 7.2% 7.1%
Hubei bibld 3.6% 3.2%
Shanxi uiii) 8.0% 8.6%
Guizhou =0l 2.6% 2.8%
Others Hi 1.3% 1.1%

FOHRREBBER AT 2019F FIf



12

Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

(continued) (#&)

Development of new users

During the year, the Group connected 122,572 new residential users, and
912 new industrial and commercial users. Total connections for residential
users were 1,466,416 (2018: 1,343,844), representing a year-on-year
increase of 9% over 2018. Total connections for industrial and commercial
users were 12,724 (2018: 11,812), representing a year-on-year increase of
8% over 2018. In light of the increasing number of users, the Group will
continue to expand natural gas sales and provide services for more natural
gas end-users, laying a solid foundation for the Group's future natural gas
sales.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had established a total of 141
natural gas project companies in 16 provinces and autonomous
regions, with 71 gas concession rights in the PRC and the total
length of natural gas pipelines constructed was approximately
13,023 KM.

HAFM®

FRN - EEABEERBFPI2NEFRINE
AEINRE 2 EERMBF 1,466,416 F
(20184 1,343,844 ) R T - EMAF 12,724
F (20184 :11,812/7) » E2018F 5 AL K 9%
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AXAREE AEZRARKHEFLIEM
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By ERE o
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BEH13,023R 8 -

Total Connected Users as of 31 December
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EXPLOITATION AND PRODUCTION OF CRUDE OIL
AND NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

In 2019, international crude oil price remained stable, and the Group
realised average crude oil price remained at CAD66.88 per barrel (2018:
CAD66.92 per barrel). Throughout the year, the average daily production
was 5,625 barrels of oil equivalent and the average operating netback was
CAD25.92 per barrel of oil equivalent (2018: 5,383 barrels of oil equivalent
per day, CAD25.24 per barrel of oil equivalent), representing an increase of
5% and 3% respectively. According to the reserve report prepared by GLJ
Petroleum Consultants for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
has proved plus probable reserves of 41.69 million barrels of oil equivalent
(2018: 39 million barrels of oil equivalent), representing a year-on-year
increase of 7%.

Average Annual Production

EEFHES

Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#)
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The Group's upstream business average annual
production increased to 5,625 BOE/Day by 5%

EEFHEBENE2FEYEE LTS
5,625 8K iEE 5%
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

(continued) (#)

CREDIT RATINGS

Rating agencies Ratings

Standard & Poor
Moody's

BB (Stable)
Ba2 (Stable)

The Group was rated “BB"” by Standard & Poor with a stable rating outlook,
and was rated “Ba2"” by Moody’s with a stable rating outlook, reflecting the
Company'’s healthy financial position and promising operational prospects.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Opportunities and challenges
Opportunities

In 2019, China’s natural gas market ushered in major opportunities and
changes. After years of efforts, the China-Russia east-route natural gas
pipeline has been officially connected, an additional of 30 billion cubic
meters of pipeline natural gas will be delivered to China every year. The
upstream oil and gas sectors were fully opened up, and qualified domestic
and foreign enterprises could enter China’s oil and gas exploration and
exploitation market. The National Oil and Gas Pipeline Network Company
was formally established to realize the separation of pipeline & network and
the separation of transportation & marketing. The “trade war” between
China and the United States broke the ice and reached a phase-one
agreement, improving the international business environment for Chinese
enterprises. The “Regulation on Optimizing the Business Environment”, the
“Foreign Investment Law"”, and the “Foreign Enterprises Implementation
Regulations” are implemented by the Chinese Government on 1 January
2020, which have significant meanings to further optimize the business
environment of foreign and private enterprises. In 2019, China’s primary
energy consumption was about 4.79 billion tons of standard coal, with
a year-on-year increase of 3.2%. The transformation of clean energy,
conservation and emission reduction are undertaking massive responsibility.
The future for the development of natural gas integrated projects is splendid
in order to promote “coal-to-gas” and “connect natural gas to every
town”. Even though the pandemic brings harsh challenges to the economy,
the Chinese Government adopted strong measures to control the situation
within a short amount of time, which help to keep the economy stable
and functionable. The strategy of preventing and controlling pollution
and the fundamentals of the Chinese economy have not been changed.
Its economy is growing continuously. In 2020, the revolution of China’s
oil and gas industry will enter into the implementation stage with policies
being applied. Recently, NDRC suggested that natural gas price as “viewing
marketization of the natural gas industry as a revolution” and other positive
policies, as the whole nation of China getting back on production and work,
the target for the demand for domestic consumption of natural gas to reach
330 billion cubic meters can be achieved.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2019
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Challenges

Since the spreading of COVID-19 in early 2020, the global economy has
faced major impacts, especially on the supply and demand sides of societies.
In addition to the decline in international oil prices and capital markets,
the epidemic has increased the uncertainty of the world economy, which
will hinder the improvement of domestic economic situation. The Group’s
upstream and downstream customers have all been affected to a certain
extent, and that would cause difficulties in the Group’s operating activities
and the realisation of the annual targets. In the past eighteen years, despite
various difficulties and challenges, the Group has adhered to the mission
of “Develop business of clean energy and Contribute sustainability to
society”, and has been making continuous progress with the hard work all
the staff has put in. It has been proven that the management team of the
Group is indomitable. The Group will give full play to the advantages of the
industry and resources, review the situation, optimize the strategic layout,
seize opportunities, actively explore the market, optimize management,
and continuously improve the quality of the workforce. We will provide
customers with sufficient clean energy supply and quality services, and work
hard to achieve the 2020 business goals.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEBNWmR DM

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group and its notes and other
sections in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2019.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Leveraging its strong sales network and gas source advantages, the
Group has seized those favourable opportunities to achieve rapid business
growth. During the year of 2019, the Group recorded a total revenue of
HK$10,261 million (2018: HK$9,410 million), representing an increase of
9%. Gross profit amounted to HK$1,505 million (2018: HK$ 1,365 million),
representing an increase of 10% comparing to last year. The Group’s profit
for the year was HK$779 million (2018: HK$678 million), representing an
increase of 15% as compared to 2018. Profit attributable to the owners of
the Company recorded a 17% growth to HK$331 million in 2019.

The Group’s principal activities are divided into three segments.

(1) Sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products (“Sales
and distribution of natural gas”)

The Group's natural gas sales were increased by 10% to 4,079 million
cubic meters, and transmission volume was increased by 11% to
1,045 million cubic meters in 2019. Sales and distribution of natural
gas continued to be the Group’s principal source of revenue and
constituted 90% of the total revenue (2018: 90%). Revenue related
to this segment showed an increase of 9% to HK$9,255 million (2018:
HK$8,476 million) and segment results increased by 17% to HK$908
million (2018: HK$774 million), whereas segment profit ratio was
10% (2018: 9%).

(2)  Gas pipeline construction and connection (“Connection”)

Revenue related to Connection business constituted around 5.5%
(2018: 5.5%) of our total revenue in 2019 and amounted to HK$567
million (2018: HK$517 million).

(3)  Exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas ("“Exploitation
and production”)

Revenue related to Exploitation and production amounted to HK$439
million (2018: HK$417 million) in 2019, with a growth of 5%. Crude
oil prices remained stable in 2019, while West Texas Intermediate (WTI)
averaging US$57.04 per barrel as compared to US$64.78 per barrel
in 2018. The Group realized crude oil price of CAD66.88 per barrel in
2019, which was in line with that of CAD66.92 per barrel in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's sales and distribution cost increased by 18% to HK$67 million
in 2019 from HK$57 million in 2018; administrative expenses decreased by
1% from HK$365 million in 2018 to HK$360 million in 2019. Both costs
together represented approximately 4% of total revenue and represented a
growth of 1%.

Finance cost was HK$282 million (2018: HK$207 million). During 2019,
the Company has successfully redeemed an aggregate principal amount of
US$300 million at the redemption price of 101.25%, which incurred a one-
off expense of HK$50 million in financial cost.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

It is the Group's policy to adopt conservative financial strategies by using
the cash flow generated from operations as the principal source of fund
to finance its capital expenditures. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's
total indebtedness (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and senior
notes) was HK$6,846 million (2018: HK$6,549 million). Total available credit
facility amounted to HK$3,748 million as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$4,563 million) with an utilisation rate of 25% (2018: 33%).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
and time deposits with maturity over three months of approximately
HK$2,817 million (2018: HK$2,667 million). Total assets increased by 5%
to HK$16,832 million (2018: HK$16,028 million), among which current
assets were HK$4,864 million (2018: HK$4,707 million). Total liabilities
of the Group were HK$10,389 million (2018: HK$10,116 million), and
among which current liabilities were HK$4,518 million (2018: HK$4,611
million). The Group’s debt-to-asset ratio, measured on the basis of total
indebtedness divided by total assets, was 41% (2018: 41%). The current
ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.08
times (2018: 1.02 times).

The Group'’s financial and liquidity ratios remained stable, and hence the
Group is well prepared for its development in the future.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At the end of 2019, the Group employed a total of 3,693 (2018: 3,595)
full-time employees, most of whom were stationed in the PRC. Total staff
cost for the year amounted to HK$389 million (2018: HK$384 million). The
Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total remuneration
of the employees consist of basic salary, cash bonus and share-based
incentives.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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(continued) (#)

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

No assets of the Group have been pledged for the outstanding borrowings
as at 31 December 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

The Group had no material contingent liability as at 31 December 2019.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY
POLICY

The Group is responsible for the financial risk management, and its treasury
function at the head office in Hong Kong. One of the major objectives of
the Group’s treasury policies is to manage its exposure to fluctuation in
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. It is the Group's policy
not to engage in speculative activities.

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group’s certain
bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
Stated dollars, and the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior notes are
denominated in Renminbi, United Stated dollars and Canadian dollars.

Other than those disclosed, the Group does not have any material exposures
to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and may, depending on the circumstances and trend of
foreign currencies, consider adopting a significant foreign currency hedging
policy in the future.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no significant litigation.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the issued share capital of the Company was
approximately HK$57,670,438 divided into 5,767,043,834 shares with a
nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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Biographical Details of Directors

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, aged 56, was appointed as an executive Director, the
Chairman of the Board of the Company on 30 August 2006. He was also
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 4 November
2009. Mr. Xu is the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company (the “CG Committee”), also the chairman of China Oil
and Gas Investment Group Co., Ltd, China City Natural Gas Investment
Group Co., Ltd and Baccalieu Energy Inc. Canada and director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xu is also a Honorary Life Chairman of
Cross-Strait Peaceful Development Federation; vice chairman of Hong Kong
Energy, Mining And Commodities Association; Honorary Chairman of The
Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association (Shandong). Mr. Xu graduated
from Xi‘an Shiyou University (7§ % £ j# K £), and postgraduate from the
University of International Business and Economics (¥f 9h & 8% & 5 K ),
and completed a doctorate course in law, postgraduate from the School of
Economics and Management of EMBA Tsinghua University (& % K 24& &
7). He is also a senior PRC lawyer and certified public accountant. Mr. Xu
has more than 30 years’ experience in management, investments, legal and
finance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Guan Yijun, aged 55, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 10 September 2010. She was appointed as the vice president
of the Company on 1 September 2006. Ms. Guan is a member of each of
the Corporate Governance Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She graduated
from Changchun Normal University in the early years and studied at the
Advanced Business Administration of Peking University. She has extensive
business operation management experiences over 20 years.

Mr. Liu Chunsun, aged 61, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 12 June 2018. He is a member of each of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and the CG
Committee. Mr. Liu graduated from China University of Mining And
Technology in 1987 and completed correspondence course at China
University of Petroleum in 1996. He is a certified accountant. He is engaged
in oil industry for 40 years and gas industry over 18 years. Since 2002, he
joined China City Natural Gas Investment Group Co., Ltd. (F1 i R =R | &=
&% & R A 7)), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, served
successively as deputy general manager of investment department, manager
of financial division, assistant to general manager, vice president, director
and chief member of remuneration and assessment committee. Mr. Liu has
extensive investment and financial management experiences.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Yunlong, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 April 2008. He is the chairman of each of
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Li graduated from the Accounting School of Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (F & BF 4% B 0% K 2 € 51 2 [%) with a Bachelor
Degree in Economics. Mr. Li is a registered certified public accountant in
the PRC and possesses the qualification of PRC senior auditor. Mr. Li had
been working at the National Audit Office of the PRC for over 18 years in
various audit departments, and he is currently a partner of Hua Wen CPA
Ltd (= & 51 A0 = % F7) in the PRC. He was employed as senior researcher
(professor grade) by The Institute of Modern Communication Research,
Shandong University. He is also a national financial expert of The Ministry of
Science and Technology of the PRC. He is the financial consultant of various
companies in the PRC. He has extensive experience in legal, accounting,
auditing and finance aspects.

Mr. Wang Guangtian, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 4 November 2009. He is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He
holds a master degree in world economics from the Hebei University and
has over 35 years of experience in financial and administrative management.
He is currently the managing director of Gainful Investment Corporation
and Guofu (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited. He was an independent
non-executive director of ENN Energy Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange, from December 2000 to May 2015. He was appointed
as a managing director of Hebei Overseas Listed Equity Investment Fund
Co., Ltd in June 2015.

Mr. Yang Jie, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 May 2017. He is a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yang holds a bachelor degree at University
of International Business Economics. Mr. Yang is currently serving as
executive director and chief executive officer of MEC Advisory Limited
which is the sole advisor of Can-China Global Resource Fund, and executive
director of EMC Financial Limited, the general partner of Can-China Global
Resource Fund. Mr. Yang has more than 20 years of experience in mining
investment and capital operation. He served as a board member of several
Canadian listed mining companies and senior adviser of several Chinese
companies for their overseas investment. He served as vice chairman of
Greater China Mining Group, a director and an executive vice president of
Continental Mineral Corp. and senior vice president and partner in Hunter
Dickinson Inc. He has participated in corporate financing, mergers and
acquisitions for numerous Canadian mining companies.
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The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in investments in natural gas and energy related
businesses.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the state of
affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 64 to 211.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Company’s Business

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and a discussion on the Group’s future business development,
and also the Group's performance during the year ended 31 December
2019 using the key financial performance indicators are provided in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 10 to 18. No important event affecting the Group has occurred since
the end of the year under review.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

The Group's financial conditions, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties directly
or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The following are the key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those as shown below which are not known to
the Group or may not be material now but could turn out to be material in
the future.
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Natural Gas Price Control Risk

The Group is principally engaged in distribution of natural gas in the PRC.
The city-gate price of natural gas is determined with reference to the
wellhead price and transmission charges. In China, wellhead prices for
residential and fertilizer users are fixed, while wellhead prices for industrial
and commercial users may vary from the benchmark price set by the PRC
National Development and Reform Commission. Piped gas end-user tariffs
are determined by local pricing bureaus. There may be risks that the Group
is unable to obtain approval for passing through any increase in natural gas
price which would deteriorate the Group's profit.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s principal business is located in the PRC and Canada and its
major transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of its assets and
liabilities are denominated in Renminbi and Canadian dollars.

The Renminbi is not freely convertible. There is a risk that the Chinese
government may take actions affecting exchange rates which may have
a material adverse effect on the Group’s net assets, earnings and any
dividends it declares if such dividend is to be exchanged or converted into
foreign exchange. The Group has not entered into any hedging transactions
to manage the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. The Group does
not consider that it has any significant exposure to the risk of fluctuation in
the exchange rate between HK$ and RMB.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential risk that the Group will be unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain adequate
funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, the Group monitors
cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and cash equivalents to
ensure the ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the effects
of fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events. Responsibility for
managing operational risks basically rests with every function at divisional
and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. The management
will identify and assess key operational exposures regularly so that
appropriate risk response can be taken.
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Environmental Policy and Performance

Both the government and the public continue to pay utmost attention
to environmental issues, despite the fact that certain expensive and
environment friendly measures were planned and implementation will soon
be taken place. Stricter requirements may be put into practice to address
these issues.

The environmental, social and governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019 containing the information required
under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) will be published on the Stock Exchange’s website and
the Company’s website within three months after the publication of the
Company’s 2019 annual report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and therefore the Company
is subject to The Bermuda Companies Act. In addition, the Company is
registered as a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”)
and therefore is subject to the relevant provisions under the Companies
Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore the Company
is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules, including the disclosure
requirements and corporate governance provisions therein. Under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO"), the Company is required to maintain a register of interests in
shares and short positions and a register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions and is obliged to make timely disclosure of
inside information.

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are
concerned, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact
on its businesses and operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets. Thus the
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate
the employees. The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.
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The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners and bank enterprises to achieve its long
term goals. Accordingly, the management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business updates with them when
appropriate. During the year under review, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners or bank
enterprises.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved not to recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: distribution of HK cent 0.40 per
share, totalling HK$23,356,000).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to attend and vote
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Tuesday, 16 June 2020 (“2020 AGM"), the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 10 June 2020 to Tuesday, 16
June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2020
AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s)
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 9
June 2020.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 212. That
summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donations during the year (2018:
Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any share during the year ended 31 December
2019.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

In July 2019, the Company issued US$320 million senior notes (the “Notes"”)
bearing an interest rate of 5.5% per annum due 2023 and further issued
in October 2019 an additional US$30 million. The Company used the
net proceeds from the issue of the Notes to repay certain indebtedness
including the 2014 senior notes and for general corporate purpose. Details
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and the restricted share award scheme of
the Group as set out in this Report of the Directors and in note 32(b) and
32(c) to the consolidated financial statements respectively, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group during the year or subsisting at
the end of the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 23 November
2011. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion
offer options to any eligible participant including, but not limited to any
person being an employee, executive directors or non-executive directors
of the Group or any invested entity (including independent non-executive
directors of the Group or any invested entity) and any suppliers, consultants
or advisers who will provide or have provided services to the Group or any
invested entity. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.

BRES S

ARERZE——F+—A-FT=ZHETH
REREERAS ERMN—BEERE (T8
Rt El]) - RIRERENE  EERARE
EEERETIMNAEK2EE  BERAT
BREBRTIWEREEEES WITES
P TEE(BREERTAEEEE B
VHERTER) URTAEEREECAER
MR EEBREEREZEER - FHA
SER c BRETIFEIANGEMBERE
B 5E32(b) ©

Details of movements in the share options granted under the Share Option BIEEREAZEE CERES S EHY
Scheme are as follows: mr
Outstanding Outstanding
Name or as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
category of Exercise Date of Exercisable 1 January during during during 31 December
participants price grant period 2019 the year the year the year 2019
RZZB-NF
RZB-NF +=A
SEERS -B-H =t+-A
HE THE RHBH GEd i R AT FRRE ERTE FREAN i RATE
(HKS)
(#7)
Director
g%
Liu Chunsun 0.46 22/01/2016 22/01/2018 to 1,540,000 — — — 1,540,000
21/01/2026
UES e A = Y\t
—AZ+-B —-AZt+=ZHZ
—E-RE
—A=-+—-H
Employees 0.46 22/01/2016 22/01/2018 to 85,020,000 — — — 85,020,000
21/01/2026
Eg NS —T-N\F
—AZ+-B —-AZt+=ZHZ
—ECRE
—A=-+—-8
Total 86,560,000 - — — 86,560,000
@t
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Note:
These share options are exercisable in the following manner:

(i) 30% of the share options are exercisable on 22 January 2018;

(ii) 30% of the share options are exercisable on 22 January 2019; and

(i) 40% of the share options are exercisable on 22 January 2020.

These share options were granted on 22 January 2016, the closing price of
the shares on 21 January 2016, being the date immediately before the date
of grant, was HK$0.43. During the year ended 31 December 2019, no share
options were granted, cancelled, exercised or lapsed.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 4 November 2011, the Board adopted a restricted share award scheme
(the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give incentives in order to retain them
for their continuing operation and development and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group, details of the Restricted
Share Award Scheme are set out in note 32(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-Laws") or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company repurchased
72,080,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company at prices
ranging from HK$0.241 to HK$0.300 per share on the Stock Exchange.
Details of the repurchases are as follows:

N

Bt

2\517

kg

BE  BLOFHELATALTES

4l

il

BE-_Z-NAFt+-_A=+—-BLFE 2

A LA A% 0.241 78 7T £0.30078 7T B 18 OB 2 P

f810172,080,000 % 2~ 7] & % T {H0.0178 7T 7Y X
o BEFBEWAT

Aggregate
purchase
Number Purchase price per share consideration
of shares SERBEER (excluding
Month repurchased Highest Lowest expenses)
RBENRE
A BERGOHE &S BE (FEFERX)
HKD HKD HKD
BT BT BT
September 28,220,000 0.280 0.241 7,201,760.00
s
October 12,420,000 0.295 0.275 3,579,100.00
+A
November 31,440,000 0.300 0.260 8,925,800.00
+-A
72,080,000 19,706,660.00
In addition, during the year, the Company, through the trustee of the AN AERERNBBE G IR D EEEE

Restricted Share Award Scheme, purchased from the market 540,000 shares
for the purpose of the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of HK$13,208,000
may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares,
and the Company’s contributed surplus account in the amount of
HK$1,447,454,000 may be distributed under certain circumstances.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:
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FTEEFREERD

SETEHERREPBEZRBRHEER
BOLMT

2019 2018
—E-hE —T—)\F
% %
Purchases FREE

— the largest supplier — RAHER 23.0 32.3
— five largest suppliers combined — AR EREE 54.4 87.9

Turnover SE
— the largest customer — RAEP 4.1 2.0
— five largest customers combined — RABEFPER 14.0 8.4

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any shareholders (who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. GUAN Yijun

Mr. LIU Chunsun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LI Yunlong

Mr. WANG Guangtian

Mr. YANG lJie

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Xu Tie-liang and Mr.
Yang Jie shall retire from office as Directors by rotation at the 2020 AGM
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

BEREFNEMEBEALCERR LMMRAD
HERBR (REERANHEA R RRAEES%
ZERRIREEBRAATFPIAAEEETHES
EMEmiED e

==

REEARBERABSABRZESTHT ¢

HITES

KRR EE (L ERTEARE)
MHELL

BRFERL

BIYFHTES
FEELE
FTEALE
BAREE

RIEMAIESINE  FHRREERBRLE
BAR_Z_EFRIABFAE LBFERIE
ERG TEAEREBER_T_ZTFRRE
BERSG EEIREF o

FOHRREBAER AT 2019F FIf

29



30

Report of the Directors
EEHRETE

(continued) (#&)

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME",
"RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME"” and “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES” in this report and in notes 32(b) and 32(c) to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Xu Tie-liang entered into a service contract with the Company 10 April
2017 for a term of three years commencing from 10 April 2017.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2020
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Group or any of its subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at 31 December 2019 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provision of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required to notify to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), are set out below:

Interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of  the Company’s
Name of Long position/ ordinary issued share Amount of
Director Capacity short position Notes shares held capital debentures held
RAEEBR GHARSETR
BEEpA % e/ %R Wi 2B FHEHBEDL FEEsEE
XU Tie-liang Interest in controlled Long position 1,2 1,494,634,130 25.92% US$3,540,000
corporations
KR REHER 2 s HE 3,540,000% ¢
Interest in controlled Long position 2 — — US$3,500,000
corporations
REHER 2 s S 3,500,000% 7T
GUAN Yijun Interest of spouse Long position 1,2 1,494,634,130 25.92% US$3,540,000
MEE LB A 3,540,000% ¢
Interest of spouse Long position 2 — — US$1,500,000
L £ ) 1,500,000 7T
Interest of controlled Long position 2 — — US$2,000,000
corporation
REHEE 2 R HE 2,000,000% 7T
LIU Chunsun Beneficial owner Long position 3 2,200,000 0.04% —
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Notes:

353,120,130 ordinary shares and 1,141,514,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (“Shares”) are held through Sino Advance Holdings Ltd (“Sino
Advance”) and Sino Vantage Management Limited (“Sino Vantage”)
respectively, both of which were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability and are wholly-owned by Sino Best International Group Limited
(Sino Best"”) (a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability) which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang (“Mr.
Xu"). Therefore, Mr. Xu is deemed to be interested in 1,494,634,130 Shares
pursuant to the SFO. Ms. Guan Yijun (“Ms. Guan”) is the spouse of Mr. Xu,
therefore, Ms. Guan is also deemed to be interested in 1,494,634,130 Shares
pursuant to the SFO.

(i) An amount of US$2,000,000 of the US$350,000,000 4.625% senior notes
of the Company due 2022 (the “2022 Notes”) is held through Moral High
Limited which is owned by Mr. Xu and Ms. Guan 50% each; (ii) an amount
of US$1,500,000 of the 2022 Notes is held through Sino Advance; and (iii) an
amount of US$3,540,000 of the US$320,000,000 5.5% senior notes of the
Company due 2023 is held through Sino Vantage.

These 2,200,000 Shares include (i) 660,000 Shares held beneficially by Mr. Liu
Chunsun; and (ii) 1,540,000 derivative shares which are derived from the share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on
23 November 2011, which carrying right to subscribe for 1,540,000 Shares at
the exercise price of HK$0.46 per share.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company which were recorded on the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31
December 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors and chief
executives, the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

Long position/ ordinary shares
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Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Number of

Name of shareholder Capacity short position held capital
BEEBR HAFERT

BRES BB 14 BE /KB #$E REASHNBEIL

Sino Advance Beneficial owner Long position 353,120,130 6.13%

Sino Advance EnlEAA S5}

Sino Vantage Beneficial owner Long position  1,141,514,000 19.79%

Sino Vantage EmEAA e

Sino Best Interest in controlled corporations Long position  1,494,634,130 25.92%

o2 B R ZIEHERE e

Note: B E -

Sino Advance and Sino Vantage are wholly-owned by Sino Best which in turn is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
having interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Director’s
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance when the Report of the Board
of the Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Exempt continuing connected transaction

The following continuing connected transaction constitutes an exempt
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

Appointment of Trustee for Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Trustee (Note) was appointed by the Company as trustee for the
administration of the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted by the
Board on 4 November 2011. Service fee will be paid by the Company to the
Trustee according to the share award trust deed entered into between the
Company and the Trustee on 4 November 2011. The payment of the service
fees to the Trustee by the Company constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company, but is exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

HK$200,000 was paid/payable to the Trustee for the financial year ended
31 December 2019.

Note:

Best Thinker Limited (the “Trustee”), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang,
an executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
is regarded as a connected person of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had entered into
certain related party transactions but these transactions were not regarded
as connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules or were exempt from reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of
these related party transactions are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year and
up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 37 to 54 of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code"), which is currently
made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor; to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, to provide recommendations for any questions
regarding the resignation or dismissal of such auditor; to review the interim
and annual reports, and financial statements of the Group; to oversee the
Company'’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the Company’s financial
reporting function and their training arrangement and budget, and to
review the risk management and internal control system.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman), Mr. Wang Guangtian and Mr. Yang
Jie. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Report of the Directors
EEREE

(continued) (#&)

DNBEFRE

*ETF’&TTLM%,_ MEBEENMAEZ RFAE
B RARELTRARNERFALBEEAR
BERHOCHERREAZARTGRE -

AN
/A

>

s

BARMERMZEZCEETARER RS
(RN FEREITEEHES4H -

2

RAR—NANANFEFRIEZZES  LTER
ETRAME IR EEER ?E\J(FJL%
ATRANDAVEHRBEHE  EHBERE
B A A OB X P AR S K N B USR] o

i

& of

)Q‘}H

Bg

B

DH

BERZESEIZAAMNEZE BEHZELE
ROMNERZBED HEINERBB M E R
HE {6k SR LA Ko 5 B8 A% SR BE % 3 A BY R 2 E
HEREERRERERESR :ﬁﬁtﬁ;‘%lqﬂﬁﬂ
REEHRERFBRER  RERRFAZHH
RHbE(REERAHE E\i’“jﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ
BRENBI ZERRERAREEII L
RIBE) Ein e E R EIE AR RS

EﬂE%?%ﬁiF%ﬂﬁ%%?%f%
CITEEEERGARSLELER

E%Bﬁ‘ﬁlﬁi_i NEF

LEENREZVBRR

NF
W
il
. 1§
}m:

bl

S
—HH
\ ‘m]u
mmE

FOHRREBAER AT 2019F FIf

35



36

Report of the Directors
EEHRETE

(continued) (#&)

AUDITOR

There was no change in auditor of the Company in the past three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2020 AGM to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of
disclosure in order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the CG Code as its
own code of corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company was in compliance
with the relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code except for the
deviations as explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the responsibilities
between chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. Mr. Xu Tie-
liang is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning for the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is
adequately ensured by current Board which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals with sufficient number thereof being independent non-
executive Directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term,
but they are subject to retirement from office by rotation at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code requires directors should clearly
understand delegation arrangements in place, therefore that the Company
should have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out the
key terms and conditions of their appointment. The Company did not
have formal letters of appointment for Directors (except for Mr. Xu Tie-
liang). However, the Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Bye-Laws. In addition, the Directors are required
to refer to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued
by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for
Independent Non-executive Directors” (if applicable) published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors in performing their duties and responsibilities
as Directors. Besides, the Directors are required to comply with the
requirements under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and governance
policies.
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Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
met the relevant code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company,
and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the
operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved for
its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy, major
acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational
and financial matters. The management was delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group. In
addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board currently consists of six Directors including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. GUAN Yijun

Mr. LIU Chunsun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LI Yunlong

Mr. WANG Guangtian

Mr. YANG lJie

Save for Ms. Guan Yijun is the spouse of Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition is formed
to ensure strong independence exists across the Board. The composition of
the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out on pages 19 to 20
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall business plans
and evaluates the Group's financial performance and management. Specific
tasks that the Board delegates to the Group’s management include the
implementation of strategies approved by the Board, the monitoring of
operating budgets, the implementation of internal controls procedures, and
the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the financial year ended 31

December 2019 to the Company.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended
31 December 2019 is set out below:

Name of Director

TEERKRE

(continued) (#)

EXEREERTOERR HAEBRBERG
BLFAEEECHMBRANEEE -EFR
BRESEEEEZREIEREHETESR
HEZRKE EREERE BTANEERER
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EE 2
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ROEMBONERATHESERIELER °
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MBFREMEZBEIOLCE -

HE-_Z-NAF+_A=t+—HBLEFEME
EEE=ZAMNBEICEHINDT

Attending or participating in seminars/
inhouse briefing or reading materials
relevant to the Group’s business/
director’s duties

HESRSHESEER

EEREHEECHEE

BEEHY 7 26 75 $R & =% B9 3 A A AT R
Mr. XU Tie-liang FTERR A V
Ms. GUAN Yijun MsE L+ v
Mr. LIU Chunsun BEFEE V
Mr. LI Yunlong TEREEE V
Mr. WANG Guangtian TERLE V
Mr. YANG Jie BARFEE Vv

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have a separate chairman and chief executive
officer, and Mr. Xu Tie-liang currently performs these two roles. The
Board believes that by taking the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same person, it has the benefit of maintaining a
consistent leadership and enables a more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning within the Group. The Board believes that the present
arrangement will not impair its balance of power and authority, and this is
ensured by current Board members, which comprise experienced and high
calibre individuals with sufficient number of independent non-executive
Directors.
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Non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are high caliber individuals,
with academic and professional qualifications and experience in the fields
of accounting, finance and investment. With their accumulated experience
gained from various sectors, they can provide strong support towards
the Board's effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities. Each
independent non-executive Director has given an annual confirmation of
his independence to the Company, and the Company considered that each
of them is independent based on the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors are
not appointed for specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 26 August 2013
(the “Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve its diversity. The
Company recognises that increasing diversity at Board level will support
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including, but not limited, to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will also
take into consideration its own business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegates certain duties to the Nomination Committee under the
Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the necessity to
set measurable objectives for the implementation of the Policy from time to
time, to ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards these
objectives are achievable and ascertainable.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Board Meetings

The Board has four scheduled meetings held quarterly each year, and
additional meetings will take place as and when required. These Board
meetings are planned in advance. During the regular meeting, the Board
examines the Company'’s operation and financial performance, reviews and
approves its annual and interim results.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board held 8 meetings. All
Directors were given opportunities to include any matters in the agenda
for the regular Board meetings, and were given sufficient time to review
documents and information relating to matters to be discussed in the Board
meetings.

Name of Director

CHREABE

(continued) (#)

BHE-_Z-—NF+ZRA=+—RHILFE &
ERERIIBREZ MAESFHERSEM
MEBEMAEZTRERNEZEERN LRIER
HKAENDKRBHREETRERRTIRZLE
HEBZXMHMER -

Number of attendance

BEEnR HESBRY
Mr. XU Tie-liang TSR R 8/8
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (EEFTHABEZ)
Ms. GUAN Yijun AREZT 8/8
Mr. LIU Chunsun BIEFEE 8/8
Mr. LI Yunlong ZERELE 8/8
Mr. WANG Guangtian FEMATE 8/8
Mr. YANG lie BAREE 8/8

Board minutes are open for inspection by the Directors. Every Board
member is entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials and
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
and has the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

General Meeting
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company held 1 general

meeting, being the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29
May 2019 (the “2019 AGM").

Name of Director

EERERCBAUHESEH -BRESER
KREDAEREHNEERXMHLEBEN T
AETERETRELAWEZERRRS
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BERXE
BHE-_Z-NAE+_A=+—BILEE 2
AN —ZE-AFEFRA-TABETIRREK
g PRAREAFRE(ZZE—NLFHRRE
BFERKE]) -

Number of attendance

BEEpg HESBRE
Mr. XU Tie-liang AR R B 171
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEHFTEAEH)
Ms. GUAN Yijun FARABZ+ 171
Mr. LIU Chunsun RIEFTE 11
Mr. LI Yunlong TERELE 11
Mr. WANG Guangtian TEHTE 01
Mr. YANG Jie BARFEE 71

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders and in particular, making use of the annual general meetings
or other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. Mr. Xu Tie-liang, being the Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of the CG Committee, Mr. Li Yunlong, being the chairman of
each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, attended the
2019 AGM to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board takes into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates, especially their experience in the
natural gas industry and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 15 March 2006
and currently consists of two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wang Guangtian (as chairman) and Mr. Li Yunlong and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Liu Chunsun.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are currently made
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor the
structure, size and diversity of the Board; to provide recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board in order to complement the Group's
strategy; to identify qualified individuals in becoming members of the
Board; to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;
to review the measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and to provide
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary),
including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by
the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.
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The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in
particular, are set out as follows:

(@)  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c)  serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for
nonexecutive Director) and other relevant Board committees, if
invited;

(d)  bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committees on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in
the Board/committee meetings;

(e)  scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

(f)  ensuring the Committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(@) conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation
or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance
with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange
from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s
education, qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider
whether he or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise for filling the office of
an independent non-executive Director with such qualifications or expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting. The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and diversity of the Board, assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, considered and provided recommendations to the Board
on the re-election of Directors and the proposed appointment of Director.

Name of Director

HE_Z-NAF+ZA=Z+—BLLFE R
HEZBEERTIRNER REZBERTE
ER&ER RERZTE  FEBIFRTE
EZBYEN EREFERLERERMAEE
EEEIRMENEZRRELHEES -

Number of attendance

HEEERE

EEgS

Mr. WANG Guangtian (Chairman) TERLEE(EE)
Mr. LI Yunlong TERELE

Mr. LIU Chunsun BIEFEE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 13 January 2006
with written terms of reference and currently consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman) and Mr.
Wang Guangtian, and one executive Director, namely Ms. Guan Yijun.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are currently made
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to provide
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy, the
remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management, and the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for formulating the
remuneration policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee

held 1 meeting. The Committee reviewed the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management.
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Name of Director

CHREABE

(continued) (#)

Number of attendance

EEnE HESRXE
Mr. LI Yunlong (Chairman) FEELEE(EE) 7
Mr. WANG Guangtian TEMRTE 1/1
Ms. GUAN Yijun SR E T 171

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 November
20711. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards, for
their contributions to the Group. The Board has also adopted the Restricted
Share Award Scheme on 4 November 2011 as an incentive to recognise the
employees’ contributions, in order to retain them for the Group’s continuing
operation and development, and to attract suitable personnel for its further
development.

Details of the Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Award Scheme
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument payable to Directors and senior management will depend
on their respective contractual terms under the employment agreements, if
any, and is determined by the Board with reference to the recommendation
of the Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Group and the
prevailing market conditions.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019, by bands is set out in note (11(b) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2019 are also set out in notes 12 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman), Mr. Wang Guangtian and Mr. Yang Jie.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are currently made available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor; to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, to provide recommendations for any questions
regarding the resignation or dismissal of such auditor; to review the interim
and annual reports, and financial statements of the Group; to oversee the
Company'’s financial reporting system including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the Company’s financial
reporting function and their training arrangement and budget, and to
review the risk management and internal control system.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any
area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the interim
and annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee
focuses not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and
practices, but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the legal requirements in the review of the Company’s interim
and annual reports.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.

Name of Director
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Number of attendance

BEEgS HESBERH
Mr. LI Yunlong (Chairman) TEEGRE(LE) 2/2
Mr. WANG Guangtian FTEBRLAE 2/2
Mr. YANG lJie BARLEE 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee reviewed
the 2018 annual results and 2019 interim results of the Group, and were
in the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal

control systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same will be
carried out annually.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established the CG Committee with written terms of
reference on 20 March 2012. The CG Committee comprises three executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xu Tie-liang (as chairman), Ms. Guan Yijun and Mr.
Liu Chunsun, Ms. Law Yin Shan Jenny, the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company and Ms. Chan Yuen Ying Stella, the Company Secretary of the
Company.

Terms of reference of the CG Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board; to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and to review the
Company'’s disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the CG Committee
held 1 meeting. The CG Committee reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; and also
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Name of Director
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor is
set out below:

Services rendered

BB 2 B &

AFEER BN BRI
SR

Fee paid/payable

FriZ it AR 7% BN ENEAR
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services =R 2,620
Non-audit services IEEIZ RIS 1,400
4,020

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist
the Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
different commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ying Stella (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, was
appointed as the named Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. Law Yin
Shan Jenny, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is the primary point
of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance between
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth and rewarding
the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall also take into account, among other things, the following
when considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

—  the Group's overall results of operation, financial condition, working

capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position and future expansions plans;
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—  the amount of retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company;

— general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Group; and

— any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the Company’s Bye-Laws, the
Listing Rules and any other applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution ratio.
The Company'’s dividend distribution record in the past may not be used as
a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared
or paid by the Company in the future.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment
by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the
Group to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right
in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel
the Dividend Policy at any time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place
as determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual
general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting. The Board may
call special general meetings whenever it thinks fit.

Shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies
Act of Bermuda. The procedures that shareholders can use to convene a
special general meeting are set out in the document entitled “Procedures
for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a Director”, which is
currently available on the Company’s website.
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Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders of the Company may send written enquires to the Company
for the attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at
shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong in the case of:

(i) arequisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks
before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the necessary
procedures.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at
the general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As
such, all the resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2020 AGM will be
voted by poll.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2019

RRODEERELES

RAEBRAAARZARAWERXEESE
FERARBBEZIBELE RN -

nur

BRERRRASLREEZNER
BREBRRAGLEZEZNLFERRAK
A

@ MEFPPRRREEREEzBKRER_+
DZ—HEMBBZER

/

() FIR—BHRER-

RERBERAIRENER(BEMNAERAR

MARBHERRZARE ‘X?é‘}i&ﬁb
XENERZRB)BIARRERANEEE
ZEEWE - Hp

() EHRTEABZRBENERETERK
GRINERE &

(i) EFEMERETBRAGH —FXE -
AABZERBER MEZRENER

KBEEANARFZIEATLERRF -

UEREFZARR

RIBEETRUEB39W)E  RRRBERRE
ETWEMRACENRE T NET  HIE
EHAELARAEAEREFHNITRERLZ

RHBRETREERABIN - ALY —T-F
FRRBFASASAMBANZHRARE
NIEERETRR -



Corporate Governance Report

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication
and reasonable disclosure of information to its shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the
following manner:

o Delivery of annual and interim reports to all shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on
the Stock Exchange website, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

o The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the
CG Committee, together with Mr. Li Yunlong, the chairman of each of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, and Mr. Wang
Guangtian, the chairman of the Nomination Committee, attended the 2019
AGM to answer questions of the meeting and collect views of shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year, which give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group, its financial
performance and cash flows for that year. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable, and
prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group, to prevent and detect fraud, as well
as other irregularities.

The Directors, after appropriate enquiries were made, considered that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of the CG Code
by establishing appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system. Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees management
in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk
management and internal control system are described in the sections
below:

Risk Management System
The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the

following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks
that could affect the achievement of objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate
the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitoring of the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2019, no significant risk was
identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has an internal control system in place which is compatible
with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as
follows:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out the internal control across the
Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying and

analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a basis for
determining how risks should be managed.
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o Control Activities: Activities established by policies and procedures to
help ensure that management directives are carried out, objectives
are achieved, and risks are mitigated.

o Information and Communication: To provide the Group's internal and
external communication, together with the information needed to
carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether
each component of the internal control is present and functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been
taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in possession
of inside information are fully conversant with their obligations to
preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who speak on behalf
of the Company when communicating with external parties such as
the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2019, no significant
control deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group's daily operation
and carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal control
system by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of operating
effectiveness.

An A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the established
plan, review of the risk management and internal control systems is
conducted annually, and afterwards the results are reported to the Board
via Audit Committee.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal Control System

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
system of the Group and ensuring review of the system’s effectiveness is
conducted annually. Several areas have been considered during the Board's
reviews, which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and
extent of significant risks since the last annual review, and the Group’s
ability to respond to changes in its business and the external environment,
and (ii) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks
and of the internal control system.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function and
Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and internal
control system were effective and adequate. Such system, however, is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also considered that
the resources, staff qualifications and experience of relevant staff were
adequate and the training programs and budget provided were sufficient.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil and Gas Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Oil And Gas Group Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to
211, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited (continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of

Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

J Impairment assessments of loan and interest receivables from and
interest in an associate

o Impairment assessment of goodwill
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRES

To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited (continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessments of
loan and interest receivables
from and interest in an
associate

Refer to note 5 (a) critical
accounting estimates and
judgements and notes 21
and 24 (d) to the Group’s
consolidated financial
statements.

The Group had loan and interest
receivables from an associate of
approximately HK$784,649,000
and HK$296,940,000
respectively, and interest in
this associate of approximately
HK$254,974,000 as at 31
December 2019.

Management assessed
the provision of expected
credit loss of approximately
HK$20,360,000 against the loan
and interest receivables from
the associate. Management
estimated the level of
expected loss, with reference
to historical observed default
rates, loss given default rates
of comparable companies and
industry, and forward-looking
economic factors.

Our procedures in relation to
management’'s impairment
assessment of loan and interest
receivables from this associate
included the evaluation of the
appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology.

We assessed the reasonableness of
key assumptions, including default
rate and loss given default rate with
assistance of our valuation experts.

We challenged the appropriateness
of forward-looking economic factors
applied by management for the
adjustment of the level of expected
loss.

Our procedures in relation to
management’'s impairment
assessment of interest in the
associate included the evaluation
of the appropriateness of valuation
methodology and reasonableness
of the key assumptions used with
assistance of our internal experts.

B R A E

(continued) (#)

BPEMREEERQIARRK(42)
(RERZFZMALZ HFRZLA])

REEEE

BANEANAEE
HMEEtEE

Bl —FHBELATE
HRFEURREZH
&L Al Hy s BT
3

RZE BEEGAH
HIRE M iE5(a)E X
BEAGET R A B LA R
BiaE21k24(d)

RZE—-—NAF+=
A &5
B e — B g R
AIERKFE DR
#4) /& 784,649,000 7B
7t & 296,940,000 &
LA R R ZEE R
AEENERNR
254,974,000 7T °

EIEE LR R
ARE R KA B
HEHEEEBR
# 49 20,360,000 &
T-EBEEEZ2EA
BB DA RITH
HBACEREY
MEREHBKRE
A EAEEEER
EHBEHEEBEKE
HEAITIHE ©

BPEEEEHRE
WZBERRERRK
B RER AR
WEFF B SRR
HEEBEREGN S
EEBEEEITRE -

BHMEREZERNGE
THHEREBEXREL A
B EITRE  BEEE
W ERENBLRE -

BMEEREEHE
BHERKEMER
MATRERERRE
DEERNESR -

BT IR E RN
BN R HE R R E RT
HHEENEFERE
NEERNWH T8
FRERAMEET AR
TEELEREBERE
BRIBETME -

FOHRREBAER AT 2019F FIf

57



58

Independent Auditor’s Report

BYBRBMBES
(continued) (#&)

iy
pwc

To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited (continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
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Impairment assessments of
loan and interest receivables
from and interest in an
associate (continued)

Management assessed the
recoverability of interest in the
associate based on the recoverable
amount of the associate’s business
valuation applying the fair value
less costs of disposal method. The
key underlying assumptions were
set out in notes 5 (a) and 21 to
the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

We focused on this area due
to the magnitude of the loan
and interest receivables from
and interest in this associate.
Moreover, significant judgments
and estimates were involved
in estimating the provision of
expected credit loss for the
loan and interest receivables,
and recoverable amount of the
interest in the associate.

We evaluated management’s
estimated commodity price growth
rate by challenging management's
rationale to support their projections.
We researched the most up-to-date
commodity price and performed
independent market research on the
commodity price growth that was in
line with management'’s forecasts.

We compared the future production
profile against the reserve estimation
report conducted by management’s
expert and evaluated the competence,
capacity and objectivity of the expert.

We evaluated the reasonableness
of the discount rate, applied by
benchmarking management’s
assumptions with those applied by
comparable companies and industry
forecasts.

We physically inspected the site and
discussed with local management
to understand the current status of
operation.

We challenged management’s
sensitivity analysis in consideration of
the potential impact of reasonably
possible downside changes in these key
assumptions.

We found the management’s
judgements and assumptions used in
the impairment assessments of loan
and interest receivables from and
interest in the associate were supported
by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRES

To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited (continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of
goodwill

Refer to note 5 (b) critical
accounting estimates and
judgements and note 20 to the
Group’s consolidated financial
Statements.

The Group carried goodwill of
approximately HK$935,951,000
as at 31 December 2019, which
was allocated to a group of
cash generating units (“CGUs")
relating to the sales and
distribution of natural gas and
other related products business
(“Natural Gas Business”) CGUs.

Management estimated
the recoverable amount of
the Natural Gas Business
CGUs based on value-in-use
calculations that applied the
key assumptions and inputs
set out in notes 5 (b) and 20
to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. Based
on value-in-use calculations,
management has concluded
there was no impairment of the
goodwill as at 31 December
2019.

We focused on this area
due to the magnitude of the
goodwill balance and the
significant judgements made
by management in estimating
the recoverable amount of the
goodwill.

Our procedures in relation to testing
management’s goodwill impairment
assessment of the Natural Gas
Business CGUs included the
evaluation of the appropriateness
of valuation methodology and
reasonableness of the key
assumptions used with assistance of
our valuation experts.

We challenged management on the
estimated growth rate, expected
changes to selling prices and direct
costs assumptions and compared
cash flows generated during the
year ended 31 December 2019
with prior years’ performance.
We evaluated the reasonableness
of the discount rate applied by
benchmarking management’s
assumptions with those applied
by comparable companies and
industry forecasts. Furthermore, we
evaluated the terminal growth rate
with reference to the long term
inflation rate.

We found the management’s
judgement and assumptions used
in the impairment assessment of
goodwill were supported by the
available evidence.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited (continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited (continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited (continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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To the Shareholders of China Oil And Gas Group Limited (continued)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chung Kit Yi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AEZHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+_A=Z+—RHLEE

2019 2018
—E—-hfF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k=2 FHET FHET
Revenue o ] 6 10,260,654 9,410,131
Cost of sales 5 B B AR (8,755,230) (8,045,299)
Gross profit EA 1,505,424 1,364,832
Other income H At A 7 36,557 30,069
Other gains, net Htlz - )F58 8 22,194 18,936
Selling and distribution costs HELDIHER (66,727) (57,270)
Administrative expenses TR (359,625) (364,847)
Impairment on oil and gas properties under ¥ - = LREE T
property, plant and equipment R E ERE 16 (30,395) -
Operating profit AR F 9 1,107,428 991,720
Finance income BRI 10 151,491 146,818
Finance costs Mg A 10 (281,773) (206,712)
Share of losses of investments accounted DIEEREREARZ
for using the equity method, net REMEE 8 21 (3.636) (3,300)
Profit before taxation B 55 A1 028 973,510 928,526
Taxation B1E 13 (194,391) (250,301)
Profit for the year &R 779,119 678,225
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hip2m (EE) W
Items that may be reclassified to profit or AEM D EEEm B
loss
Currency translation differences EERE =5 (76,700) (539,424)
Change in value of debt investments BATVEFAEMEER
at fair value through other Wz EBIRE
comprehensive income BEEH 31,358 (51,267)
Item that will not be reclassified to BTEEF D EE BB
profit or loss
Change in value of equity investments BATFEFAEMEER
at fair value through other Wk 2 RAEE
comprehensive income EEZY (19,025) (4,830)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FREMEHEEE -
net of tax BT I8 (64,367) (595,521)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEMNEREE 714,752 82,704
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
meElEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NAF+-_A=+—BLEE

(continued) (#)

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
=3 FHET FHET
Profit attributable to: FEAR 5 A
Owners of the Company NSIEZES DN 330,984 281,904
Non-controlling interests FEFE MR = 448,135 396,321
779,119 678,225
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the ERNEGEEEYRZE(EE)
year attributable to: R
Owners of the Company UNSIEZZ=IN 309,104 (55,158)
Non-controlling interests FEE R & 405,648 137,862
714,752 82,704
Earnings per share for profit attributable to A R#E B A F N FE(G % T 2
owners of the Company for the year BRAF 15
— Basic (HK cents) — EARGEA) 6.642 5.664
~ Diluted (HK cents) — #5m GBI 6.642 5.641
The notes on pages 73 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated F7B3E2NBZWFH ARG EM B @K 2K
financial statements. o e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2019
RZZE—NE+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k=2 FHET FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB NMEE 16 8,068,912 7,924,722
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 499,190 -
Exploration and evaluation assets BREEFHEE 18 153,063 182,981
Land use rights + b fE R 19 - 415,234
Intangible assets BmIVEE 20 970,166 974,526
Investments accounted for using the FRAEREARZEE
equity method 21 378,823 312,754
Financial assets at fair value through other  JZ AT (EEF A KM 2 U
comprehensive income B EE 22 693,942 439,120
Other non-current assets HMIEREBERE 24 1,195,673 1,063,841
Deferred tax assets EERIBE E 30 8,968 7,646
11,968,737 11,320,824
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 262,850 282,777
Contract assets, deposits, trade and other AKEE &L -BFH N
receivables H b e SRIA 24 1,777,940 1,751,116
Current tax recoverable & HA o] Uy 0] 77 18 6,168 6,024
Time deposits with maturity over three EFRABB=1E8 8
months TEBTE R 25 295,590 158,679
Cash and cash equivalents e RkIREEEER 25 2,521,199 2,508,223
4,863,747 4,706,819
Total assets wWEE 16,832,484 16,027,643
Liabilities 8&
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERNKIA 26 1,289,056 1,415,917
Contract liabilities aHEE 27 1,571,197 1,470,128
Short-term borrowings RHEEE 28 1,408,814 1,455,839
Current tax payable g RN E 236,649 269,369
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 12,761 -
4,518,477 4,611,253
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBEMRRE
As at 31 December 2019
RZE—NF+=-—A=+—H

(continued) (#)

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
=3 FHET FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Senior notes BARIE 29 5,411,161 5,029,991
Long-term borrowings RHIfEE 28 26,466 63,642
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 48,113 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIARE 30 237,408 270,019
Assets retirement obligation & RS AR 31 147,844 140,678
5,870,992 5,504,330
Total liabilities HEE 10,389,469 10,115,583
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners of the AREEAELESR
Company
Share capital L@ 32 57,670 58,391
Reserves 15 3,400,614 3,137,516
3,458,284 3,195,907
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 2,984,731 2,716,153
Total equity P 6,443,015 5,912,060
Total equity and liabilities EzkaEEE 16,832,484 16,027,643

The notes on pages 73 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 64 to 211 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 27 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf.

Xu Tie-liang Guan Yijun

Director Director

FVBEMNMNBEZHERAEEMBHRR ZAK

B -

FOAR2NAZHBREENR _ZE-_ZTF=A
“tHEHEEERBETEE -

AR BSRE

EF

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBE X

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+_A=Z+—RHLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAEGARNE
Shares held for Bichange  Share-based Non-
Share  shareaward  (Note) Other  fluctuation ~ compensation Retained controling
Share capital premium scheme TESeres resere resere profits Total interests  Total equity
ARAZE (W) HEARER
Rt REEE srEfsRE  AERE EXRDERE  oOHeRE  REEN 58 jARER ERuE
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TR Tikn Thn Tin TR Tkt Thn Tin TR
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-f-H 58,257 U578 (dog972) 1,552,519 (252,731) 1194 229219 3273034 2861109 6,134,143
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - B9 B 33T 685
Other comprehensive loss Ef2EER:
Bichange differences on tenslating ~ AEENEBHELEE
foreign operations - - - - (280965 - - (280965 (258459 (539.424)
Changes in value of debt imvesiments &R FEFAE{2ENEL
at fair value through other FHRERRZD
comprehensive income - - - (51,267) - - - (51,267) - (51,267)
Changes in value of equityinvestments ~ RATEF A ZH2ENEL
at fair value through other Ri%EEEZD
comprehensive income - - - (4,830 - - - (4,830 - (4,830
Total comprehensive {loss)income En:E(5E)hies
for the year - - - (56,097) 280,965) - 281,904 (55,158) 137862 82,704
Transfer of fairvelue gain onequity R EBERZATEH AL
investments at fai value through 2ANEBERELTE
other comprefensive income to WEEREET
retained profits upon disposal - - - (2813 - - 2813 - - -
Vesting of shares under share award ~ RERARBHHEERD
stheme - - 17,316 - - (17,316) - - - -
Shares purchased for share award scheme BR A28 2EERD - - 29,030 - - - - (29,030) - 29,030
Value of employee senvices EERBEE - - - - - 21,269 - 21,269 - 21,269
Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise B REE(T (5 M E AR
of share options fEHE 134 7755 - - - (1,707 - 6,182 - 6,182
Capital infection by subsidiaries to non- ~ FB R FRFARERTE
controling interests - - - - - - - - 1528 1528
Dividend paid to non-controling nterests &7 & F3EfER - - - - - - - - see) (8L
Final diidend for the year ended 31~ EE-F-+E+-f=+-8
December 2017 (Note 14) EEEZRERS (i) - - - 20,390) - - - 20,390 - (20,390)
At 31 December 2018 WZE-NE+ZRZt-A 58,391 3333 (420,686) 1473159 (533,702) 9440 2576972 3195907 2716153 5,912,060
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_T-NAF+-_A=+—BLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

(continued) (#)

AAREARL
Shares held Exchange  Share-based Non-
Share  for share (Note) Other  fluctuation compensation Retained controlling
Share capital ~ premium award scheme TEServes reserve reserve profits Total interests Total equity
ARGER (i) HEfASRE
Bx  ROEE HFERG  HERE EXRERE  AHERE  REEA B8 FEREE  BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TER TR TR TEn TER TEn TEn TER TER TER
At 1 January 2019 as originally H-E-nE-A-RARES
presented 58,391 233 (420,680 1,473,159 (533,702) 9440 2576972 3195907 2716153 5,912,060
Change in accounting policy (Note )~ SHEREH (J:h) - . . - - (1,617) (1,617) (1,542) (3,159)
Restated total equity as at 1 January W=F-AE-F-REE]|
2019 BR4E 58,391 3233 (420,680 1,473,159 (533,702) 9440 2575355 3194290 2714611 5908901
Profitfor the year ERiEn - - - . - - B0% 3094 MeB5 II9N19
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:  Ef4 27 (§8) /& :
Buchange differences on translating ~ BEBNERNELEE
foreign operations (34.213) (34.213) (42,487) (76,700)
Changes n value of debt investments ~— RATE AZH2EREL
at fair value through other EEREEERD
comprehensive income 31,358 31358 31,358
Changes in value of equity investments ~ AT EFAZH2ENEL
at fair value through other hr%ERERY
comprehensive income (19,025) (19,025) (19,025)
Total comprehensive income(loss) ER2ENE/ (BE)4E
for the year 12333 (34213) 330,984 309,104 405,648 14752
Transler of farvalue gain onequity ~~ RMEEERRATES ALY
investments at fair value through SENE/RIRELTE
other comprehensive income to FRZREE
retained profits upon disposal (1,393) 1393
Vesting of shares under share award ~— RERGEBHEZERE
scheme - - 484 (484) - -
Share repurchases RiEm (1) (19.125) . (19,846) (19,846)
Value of employe senvices [EES WE - - - 2,285 2,285 2,85
Disposal of subsiiaries HENER (4,193) . (4193) . (4,193)
Dividend paid to non-controling interests iﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁ . . (135,58  (135,528)
Final dividend for the year ended 31~ BZ=E-)\%
December 2018 (Note 14) FEE RS (23,356 (23,350) (23,350)
31 December 2019 NZE-NETZRET-8 57,670 13,208 (420202) 1,460,743 (572,108) 1201 2907732 3458284 2984731 6,M3015
Note: Mt 5%

As at 31 December 2019, other reserves mainly comprise capital and other reserve
amounting to HK$63,042,000 (2018: HK$52,102,000) and contribution surplus

amounting to HK$1,397,701,000 (2018: HK$1,421,057,000).

The notes on pages 73 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HmEHRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE_Z-NAFT-_A=1+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E—-hfF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k=2 FHET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHH SRS
Profit for the year F RN 779,119 678,225
Adjustments for: AT FIAEELFE
Taxation T 18 194,391 250,301
Finance costs e R 281,773 206,712
Finance income BRI A (151,491) (146,818)
Share of losses of investments AEERAEREARZ
accounted for using the equity KENEE
method 3,636 3,300
Equity-settled share-based payments AR S B AR
REREO R 2,285 21,269
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEHE 20 2,912 3,192
Depreciation and depletion of property, ME - WEMEET
plant and equipment ENER 16 488,964 470,165
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEAENE 17 27,457 -
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 R A 4 19 - 8,769
Impairment on oil and gas properties W BEREEBEET
under property, plant and MR EERE
equipment 16 30,395 -
Impairment loss of loan and interest DR E SRR ER
receivables from an associate FERREESE 24(d) 3,830 -
Losses on disposal of property, plant HEME BERZE
and equipment Y 5 18 2,393 872
Gain on disposal of a land use right HE B ERE
e 8 - (4,618)
Gains on disposal of financial assets HERAFES AEM
at fair value through other E2HREZHBEE
comprehensive income ollgies 8 (5,281) (2,097)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries & B A A 8 W e 8 (16,913) -
Gain on bargain purchase = EE s 8 - (12,221)
Written off of exploration and R R E B E A
evaluation assets 18 19,377 5,651
Provision for assets retirement BEEWmEAERE
obligation 31 6,307 13,333
1,669,154 1,496,035
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
Inventories FE 16,616 (52,598)
Contract assets, deposits, trade and other AXNEE &L BH N
receivables Hfh fE YR IE 11,058 (173,729)
Trade and other payables B 5 I H Ath JE T 5018 (97,527) 186,040
Contract liabilities AEHEaE 116,082 (21,475)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
nv Eﬁﬁ/ﬂbi%

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z-AF+_A=Z+—ALEFE
(continued) (#&)

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
=3 FHET FHET
Cash generated from operations IREESIR S 1,715,383 1,434,273
Taxation paid BT IE (269,412) (161,856)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4% 4 E B 4 17 £ )% %8 1,445,971 1,272,417
Cash flows from investing activities KEEBRERE
Interest received B U F B 110,651 103,698
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE WER&E -
equipment, exploration and evaluation MEMTEEE
assets, land use rights and prepaid + b {F B A LA K2
construction costs AR A (874,325) (1,009,417)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE  WENMKRE
and equipment Fri8 s E 1,803 6,718
Proceed from disposal of a land use right Hj’%—lﬁij:ﬁﬂ@iﬁﬁ%
Fris5a = 15,533
Net cash inflow as a result of disposal of HeEWBARIIRS
subsidiaries MAFE 34 3,416 -
Purchases of other intangible assets BEHEMEREE 20 (1,668) (3,080)
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BEERATENAHM
through other comprehensive income PEWEMEEE (472,144) (164,966)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEZRAFEFAHEM
assets at fair value through other 2HEREZHBEE
comprehensive income Fr{S 8 234,936 317,048
Acquisition of business, net of cash Hﬁz%%i‘“ Tﬂﬁ?fﬁi 33 - (52,193)
Loan to an associate T —EEE AT (82,433) (108,408)
Increase in time deposits with maturity T,/\Hﬁﬁ_ﬂ 18 A &
over three months TEHA T 38 (138,315) (112,979)
Site restoration expenditure ITHikES H (3,448) (4,698)
Net cash used in investing activities KEETEAIRE F5 (1,221,527) (1,012,744)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE-_Z-AF+_A=Z+—RHLEE

(continued) (#)

2019 2018
—E—-hfF —E-N\F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
k=2 FHET FHEIT
Cash flows from financing activities REFHHESRE
Interest paid EAFE (239,585) (303,935)
New borrowings raised MEREE 754,397 1,404,438
Redemption of senior notes BEELZR 29 (2,370,532) -
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (835,603) (547,048)
Capital injection by non-controlling R ERITE
interests = 1,528
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A% & T 3E 1= R 25 (135,528) (410,174)
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes net  Z&17{8 5% ZiEFR{5 2IA
of transaction costs (R ZEA) 29 2,701,369 -
Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise  FA R AR HERETT(H 14 B TAR 1D
of share options BIFT 18 5RIA = 6,182
Repayments of lease liabilities (including EEHEaE(BEMNBE)
interest) 17 (17,889) -
Dividend paid EfKRE (23,356) (20,390)
Share repurchases &% 17 B 1=l (19,846) -
Purchases of own shares for share award BROEBTEEE
scheme NS 4h) = (29,030)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing & EE (FrA) E4 2
activities ReFE (186,573) 101,571
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEIEBENFE 37,871 361,244
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HZzBE&XK
HWEEEEA 2,508,223 2,290,447
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREFHTE (24,895) (143,468)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December W+ —_A=+—HBZHE R
ReEEHEE 25 2,521,199 2,508,223
The notes on pages 73 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated FI3E2NE ZMF ARG E M B RE 2 4K

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of
its principal place of business is at Suite 2805, 28th Floor, Sino Plaza,
255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Company
is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaging in investment in energy related business in various regions
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and West Central Alberta,
Canada, including but not limited to 1) piped city gas business,
pipeline design and construction; 2) transportation, distribution and
sales of compressed natural gas (“CNG") and liquefied natural gas
(“LNG"); and 3) development, production and sale of oil and gas and
other upstream energy resources. The Company and its subsidiaries
are collectively referred to the “Group”.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of certain financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 5.
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D EEBBE RSB R NG (HAZ
Frl) £ o 5% it # F 5 2 ®Clarendon
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Bermuda - T B & ¥ B 2ot AE B
SR 3 /& 25 £ 4T 38 255-257 5% 1= 1 E 15 28
1B2805% - RAI A —HKREEKRAF -
HMBAREENFEARLME([F
Bll) RanE KM RIAE & R 7% Ei
EREREREEXE2KRE  BEET
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SR EE BB RARNCNG]) k&
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EF R ERARREEM EHFERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new standard,
interpretation and amendments to standards which are relevant
to the Group's operations and are mandatory for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 January 2019:

Annual Improvements
Project (Amendments)
HKAS 19 (Amendments)

Annual Improvements 2015-2017 Cycle

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

HKAS 28 (Amendments)  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation
Leases

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)
HKFRS 16

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result of
adopting HKFRS 16. The Group elected to adopt the new rules
retrospectively but recognised the cumulative effect of initially
applying the new standard on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed
as below. The other amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

As indicated in above, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16
retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted
under the specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new
leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance
sheet on 1 January 2019. The new accounting policies are
disclosed in Note 3(y).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities
in relation to leases which had previously been classified as
‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4.8%.

(i) Measurement of lease liabilities

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

2 mREE(E)

(a)

EBRRRRENE S (F)

BB BHREERF 165 HE ]
(#)

HEAEBMHREERE 165 -
SEMAEZABEETS ST ERE
THRHNRESEAIKCERE N
HERRTHERE ZEAEMN
FepHENREREE - — 1
F-A—HMEABAZEEERN
EWBNBEFE - R T —NF
—A—HBHHREAEEERANEARA
DN 15 38 8 {5 R R B4.8% o

() HEREHE

2019
—E—-hF
HK$'000
FTERT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as R-E—N\F+-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2018 BB EHE A 87,313

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application
Less: short-term leases recognised on a straight-line
basis as expense

Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019

Of which are:

Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities

BHAERBHFERARAKLE
I E=ETIIR 70,244
B RESREERAERYN

&

o
A

RHAE (2,488)
RZTE—NF—A—BHERK
HEBRE 67,756
HARaE:
nEHEaR 13,665
ERPpAEaR 54,091
67,756
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Measurement of right-of-use assets

All the right-of-use assets were measured on a
retrospective basis as if the new rules had always been
applied. There were no onerous lease contracts that
would have required an adjustment to the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application. For land use rights
previously presented as a separate item on consolidated
statement of financial position are grouped as part of
right-of-use assets with effect from 1 January 2019.

Adjustments recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 January 2019

The following table shows the adjustment for change in
accounting policy recognised for each individual line item.

2 WREEEE)
EHBERBRENRD ()

(a)

BB BHEERF 165 HE ]

(#4&)
(i)

(iii)

ERAEEESE

PrEEREEEREBEPEE
RTEBUMEHRA-HER
B-BERENEXRERA
i REEEFLDRAEN
—RMBEE AL - AR
BUBRARNKRENSEBER
BEMtiERER=-F—N
F-A-BRAKEREE
EH—BD -

R-ZE-NAF-AR-BER
EMBRRREANAR

TEAFEEHHAERDM
#EERERIER RE R -

Line items that were not affected by the changes have REXEETENERIER
not been included. TEEERN -
31 December
2018
Statement of consolidated As previously 1 January
financial position (Extract) SEMBRRR (B reported HKFRS 16 2019
—E-N\%F BERE
+-F=1+—H AR —E-NE
BEZR £16%5% —-H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL FAEL TER
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 478,780 478,780
Land of use rights i R 415,234 (415,234) =
Deferred tax assets ELHEEE 7,646 1,051 8,697
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities RBAR
Lease liabilities HEaE - 13,665 13,665
Non-current liabilities kREEE
Lease liabilities HEEE - 54,091 54,091
EQUITY i
Retained profits RE & 2,576,972 (1,617) 2,575,355
Non-controlling interests iR 2,716,153 (1,542) 2,714,611
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBHRRME

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

o using single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics,

° relying on previous assessments on whether leases
are onerous,

o accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases,

o excluding initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application, and

° using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the
transition date the Group relied on its assessment made
applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.

Impact on segment disclosures

The segment assets located in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, and Canada has increased by HK$1,805,000,
HK$51,464,000, and HK$1,987,000 at 31 December
2019 respectively as a result of the change in accounting

policy.

2 REE

(continued) (#&)
H = (

/IL =~

(a) EBBRRRRENZS(H)

BEBUBHEERE 165 HE ]
(&)
(ivy ERERERZE

(v)

REREREEM G REE
Al 165 B EAER
TAFNEREEE

s HWARAEMUFED

HEAAERE R

o IKEUABREERS

REEMFE
e BR-ZZFE-NAF-A—

B 8 T 7 B 31218
S REREEHERA
%J/quﬁtﬁia:: ’

e  HEBHRERAMIRE
EERBREENTGE
B - &

e HEEAHNBEIEERX
RIEHEREENEE
%@%ﬁ%%éﬁi

EEMEEELEMAES
HARERERBEMES AME
E5RNgBPREEE - BR -
HREBERHZAIZZ
R EEKBEHERSE
gu+£ﬂlj%17f&u%$m /w45f€
[(ErZHetBEHEEIE
HEE

HoREEZRE

%:%*n¢+:ﬂz+*
R ES - RPEAL R
M%KMAﬁéFI 5T
% % &) 5 B 01,805,000
¥ T - 51,464,000 & T &
1,987,0005% 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

2

Basis of preparation (Continued) 2
(b) New standard and amendments to standards not yet (b)
adopted

The following are new standard and amendments to standards
that have been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2019 and have not been early adopted.

mREE(E)

1) AR BR 40 oz 37 2 B e 2 R BN AE FT
ES

VAT #2E BI R E RI Y E RT AN 2 8 4
BERHAR-_FT-NLF-—A—-BH
B2 MR EEEM B L EIR PR

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after
RENATHER
Higfte Mg st B A

Amendments to Definition of Material

BAUERNER]

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments)

EREHENE IR RE B EL
885 (BT A)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

BRI REEREIR (BITR)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

BB EEN  BAUBHREE
BIRREBEBUHREENFR
CHEN!

Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018

R - N\EHBREMSIER

HKFRS 17

BRI REERNE TR

HKAS 28 (Amendments) and HKFRS 10

Definition of Business
EBHEE
Hedge Accounting

Hihaat

Reporting
RETHBRE 2B SHER
Insurance Contracts

RBRAH

and its Associate or Joint Venture

BER G LERFE28% (BF]4) &
AR BIWMEEAE105% A

The Group will apply the above new standard and amendments
to standards when they become effective. The directors of
the Company assess that the adoption of the new standard
and amendments to standards is not expected to have any
significant impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group.
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Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

REEBRABENFHIALERIHANEEHENL

1 January 2020
—T-TF-A—H
1 January 2020
—T-TF-A—H
1 January 2020

“ZT-TF—-A—H

1 January 2020

—T-TF-A—H
1 January 2021
—T--%-A—H

To be determined

fFE

5 35 30 R B RO B 4E 5T
AR AREENE A
BEMFTERRENETATE
CELOEY SRR D) 23
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(@) Subsidiaries
(i)  Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(1) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

TEETHEME

N Rl

RAVMBBREEAZIE

EBRERTIX -BRBIHAIN &
#ﬁﬁﬂmﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁif

(@) MEATA

(i)

Bt B R A %%lﬁﬁﬂﬁ%
FlENEE(RELAELES

B) & Ilﬁﬁha%ﬁ
ﬂTE@ﬁ%%HMJEE
R WHEENBEREEZ
FEMNENZE LSRR
SEMEHZEE -HWEA
AEEHEEEEEE A
BEAAR -KBRREE
BRI AREIEA A
/EE °

(1) XBa6

SERBKRBERED
BOHFAR - BT ®
MBBEAMEREE
EENABERERE
THRAESOAF
B -FEENREER
ARRELHFAELD
EREEXABHRF
B - XA B
BRI R B E A AT
AENBELREER
B BEARERKE
BHIN R FERFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

4}

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition
date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBHRRME

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)  Consolidation (Continued)

4}

(2

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposal to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

(continued) (#)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Consolidation (Continued)
(3) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, a joint venture
or a financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in
an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to share of profit of investments accounted
for using equity method in the profit or loss.

REPBHRRME
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

(9]

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Joint arrangement

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangement and
determined it to be joint venture. Joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group’s investment in joint venture include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest
in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group's share of the net fair value of the joint
venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangement (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the joint venture. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint venture have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the interest in the joint venture is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the joint venture and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to share of profit of investment accounted for
using equity method in the profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESHHEMEE)
(Continued)
(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (e) HMMERE ()
(ii)  Transactions and balances (i) XBRZH

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated profit or loss within “administrative
expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Transaction differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity held at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL") are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equity classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

- income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the year
end closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

()

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly buildings,
plant and machinery, oil and gas properties, pipelines and
construction in progress. Accounting policies for oil and gas
properties are set out in Note 3(g). All other property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and
impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in the profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.
Except for oil and gas properties and construction in progress,
depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 12.5 to 40 years or remaining
lease period of the land where
applicable

Plant and machinery 3 to 20 years

Pipelines 20 years

Others 3 to 20 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each date of the statement of
financial position. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note

300

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
"administrative expenses” in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents, buildings under
development for future owner-occupied purpose and pipelines
under construction, which is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Costs comprise direct
and indirect incremental costs of acquisition or construction.
Completed items are transferred from construction in progress
to proper categories of property, plant and equipment when
they are ready for their intended use.

Oil and gas properties

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion
of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and the
drilling of commercially proven development wells, is capitalised
within construction in progress under property, plant and
equipment. When development is completed on a specific
field, it is transferred to oil and gas properties under property,
plant and equipment. No depreciation and depletion is charged
during the development phase.

Oil and gas properties are aggregated exploration and
evaluation assets and development expenditures associated
with the production of proved reserves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(g) Oil and gas properties (Continued)

Oil and gas properties are depreciated and depleted using
the unit-of-production method. Unit-of-production rates are
based on total proved plus probable reserves, which are oil,
gas and other mineral reserves estimated to be recovered using
current operating methods and taking into account estimated
future development costs necessary to bring those reserves into
production. Future development costs are estimated taking
into account the level of development required to produce the

reserve.

Proven oil and gas properties are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which

there are separately identifiable cash flows.

(h) Exploration and evaluation assets

Oil and gas exploration and evaluation expenditures are
accounted for using the successful efforts method of
accounting. Costs are accumulated on a field-by-field basis.
Geological, geophysical costs and pre-licence costs are expensed
as incurred. Costs directly associated with an exploration well,
and exploration and property leasehold acquisition costs, are
capitalised within exploration and evaluation assets until the
determination of reserves is evaluated. If it is determined that
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs are

charged to expense.

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration and
evaluation assets are tested for impairment and transferred to
construction in progress under property, plant and equipment.
No depreciation and depletion is charged during the exploration

and evaluation phase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

0)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment
when reclassified to construction in progress, or whenever
facts and circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the exploration
and evaluation assets’ carrying amount exceeds their
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
the exploration and evaluation assets’ fair value less costs of
disposal and their value in use.

Intangible assets
(i)  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of businesses
represents the excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
and more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less cost of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0]

Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets comprise mainly exclusive rights,
club membership and computer operating system.

Exclusive rights are shown at historical cost. Exclusive
rights have definite useful lives and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
exclusive rights over their estimated useful lives ranging
from 30 to 48 years for natural gas supply services.

Investment in club membership is shown at historical
cost. Investment in club membership has indefinite useful
life and is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is not
amortised.

Computer operating system is shown at historical cost.
Computer operating system has definite useful lives
and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost of computer operating system over its
estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

)

(k)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Land use rights

Land use rights are lump sum upfront payments to acquire
long-term interest in lessee-occupied properties. Land use
rights relating to buildings of the Group under operating lease
arrangements are stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on the straight-line basis to the profit or loss
prior to 1 January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0)

Investments and other financial assets

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in equity investments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

) Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

0} Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(iii)  Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
“other gains, net” together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in profit or loss.

3 FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other
gains, net”. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in “other gains,
net” and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

) Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Equity investments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Impairment losses and reversal of impairment losses on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables, see note 4.2(b) for further details.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less all costs to

completion and all direct costs necessary make the sale.

(n) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sales and
distribution of oil and natural gas and other related products or
gas pipeline construction and connection services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and other
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant

risk of changes in value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs

directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for the sales and distribution of natural gas and other related
products, provision of gas pipeline construction and connection
services, and the exploitation and production of crude oil and
natural gas, stated net of value added taxes.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods to the
customers and the payment by the customers exceeds one
year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the consolidated balance sheet as
a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance and the
customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods that the Group has transferred to a
customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact,
if recoverable, are capitalised and presented as assets and
subsequently amortised when the related revenue is recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers the promised goods to the customer, the
Group presents the contract as a contract liability when the
payment is received or a receivable is recorded (whichever is
earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer
the promised goods to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when, or as, the control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws applicable, control of the goods
and services may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Control of the goods and services is transferred over time if the
Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on one of the following methods
that best depict the Group’s performance in satisfying the
performance obligation:

o Direct measurements of the value transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

o The Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected
efforts or inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBHRRME

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for
the Group's activity described below:

(i)

(if)

Sales and distribution of natural gas

Sales and distribution of natural gas are recognised at a
point in time when control is transferred to customers,
which generally coincides with the time when gas is
transmitted and used by the customers, and is based
on the gas consumption derived from meter readings.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately
at the point the customer consume the gas. Payments
received in advance on pre-paid I/C cards that are related
to sales of natural gas not yet delivered are recognised
as contract liabilities and deferred in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

Gas pipeline construction and connection

The Group provides gas pipeline construction and
connection services to its end-customers under fixed-price
contracts. Revenue from the provision of gas pipeline
construction and connection services is recognised over
time as the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation over time,
by measuring the progress using output method on the
basis of direct measurements of the value the customer
of the promised goods or services transferred to date
certified by internal engineers, relative to the value of
total goods or services promised under the contract with
customer. The Group recognises revenue over time only
if it can reasonably measure its progress toward complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation. However, if
the Group cannot reasonably measure the outcome but
expects to recover the costs incurred in satisfying the
performance obligation, then it recognises revenue to the
extent of the costs incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Gas pipeline construction and connection
(Continued)

Estimates of costs or extent of progress toward
completion are revised if circumstances change. Any
change in estimation of progress are reflected in profit or
loss in the period which the circumstances that give rise
to the revision become known by management.

The customers are required to pay in advance for full or
certain contract amount based on a payment schedule. If
the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment,
a contract asset is recognised. If the payment exceed the
services rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

Revenue from exploitation and production of crude
oil and natural gas

The revenue from the sales of crude oil, natural gas and
natural gas liquids is measured based on consideration
specified in contracts with customers. Revenue is
recognised at a point in time when customers obtain
legal title to the oil and gas which is when it is physically
transferred to pipeline or other transportation method
agreed upon.

Sales of equipment

Revenue from sales of equipment are recognised when
control of the equipment has transferred, being when the
equipment are delivered to the customers, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
equipment have been shipped to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customers, and either the customers have accepted
the equipment in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(u)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iv) Sales of equipment (Continued)

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the
price specified in the contract. No element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit
term of 60 to 90 days, which is consistent with market
practice.

No refund liability and right to the returned equipment
are recognised as insignificant amount of returns are
expected based on previous experience.

A receivable is recognised when the equipment are
delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in the profit or
loss as part of finance income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v)

Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefit costs

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC based employees of the Group participate in
various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and
the PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage of
the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired PRC based employees payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation for
the payment of retirement and other post retirement
benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans are
held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds managed by the provincial
governments.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those qualifying employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance, and who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, contributions to the scheme by the Group
and the employees are calculated as a percentage
of employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. The retirement
benefit scheme costs charged to profit or loss represent
contributions payable by the Group in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBHRRME

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v) Employee benefits (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
payment are recognised when they accrue to the
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave and long service payment as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement of
financial position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for
equity instruments of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant
of share options or restricted shares is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options or restricted
shares granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save or holding shares for a specified period of
time).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3

Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Share-based payments

Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options or restricted
shares that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options or
restricted shares that are expected to vest based on the
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Share option scheme

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii)  Share-based payments (Continued)
Share award scheme

When restricted shares are granted, the fair value of
restricted shares are recognised as expense with a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the vesting
period.

Where the Group purchases the Company’s shares from
the market, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as “shares
held for share award scheme” and deducted from total
equity.

The social security contributions payable in connection
with the grant of the share options and restricted shares
is considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the
charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

3

(v)

(w)

hHRAEEERAT 095FH 109

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

SHBRRBE(EF)

BERF (H)
(iii) KRG BEEZ T (E)
IR 43 52 B =t &1

fisd 45 PR 11 B - PR 1 1%
B AFESER R -
I 7 57 B8 A 9 4 4 =1 1F AR

HWEBET S ANBE AR R K
f ENRE(BRENERE
FE (518 I A ) 1E BT R I
REEMFROIZY - X
WD AEAHR -

A B R R AR R IR
P& 15 T F& 1< B 12 & (R BZ 4 50
PR BT H A F ) — @8 K
o mMEEBRKER/NE
SHENRS

e

HRBEER ZFEAXNAREEZRE
Z%ﬁﬁ(‘T?lJ AT TUER :
ARBEEMHAZERBHNE
m‘i?&i i fE ﬁﬁ@fﬂ%f&fﬁﬁ
AREEEWERIING - WEEH BH
DEAEL AT A GE - *IW%%
BHAFLBEERR -

WMEZEAUETR  BRZEE
FEFERAEOTEEREEN
HRIEREEEE - BIFE LR — 55
EERNEMAN—EHEREZEHERM
AT EE I RIE - IRZE SR L TERR
o BERATANERRRESS
BHRETHZHRAERE @ ZF X
RMERTSHEBKEEENE
BAETESRRROTE - @fgﬂ-irﬁ
BAMGINEEERERAFEER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(x) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Group, its associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the date of the statement of financial position
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(x)

(y)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(iii)  Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Leases

As explained in Note 2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The
new policy is described below and the impact of the change in
Note 2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant portion of
the risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the
Group as lessee were classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FEESTHEHERBEE)
(Continued)
(y) Leases (Continued) (yy HEH#E)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured HEEANBENAGBYI S NUIER

on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present ﬁg“ HFE-HEAGBREREEN

value of the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed OB HEEE & R0 R A FE UL

payments), less any lease incentives receivable. %E’E{E%E’]ﬂ}ﬁﬁ

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate HENRERABEME SO =

implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, FLABLIR o MEEXEBEETZMNER(E

which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s MEE—MBUHBEEBR @ BIFE

incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the AR AE = g 3FI & - BIE Bl

individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds AL BUEERE R REMUE

necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use BRI E A SRR

asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, EEEBEELUNEENSTSES N

security and conditions. AXTEIRZE o

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group, RETESERFE  £BLA8

where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by BT - ERMER AR ARTES

the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect ME=ZTRERHEMIELFAE

changes in financing conditions since third party financing was URMBEESE=HRE KA

received, and makes adjustments specific to the lease. BliEHENEs  THROELETE

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance HENZRR RS M E KA 2 M

cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease EEDE - MEKAEHAEHER

period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on Bk EUSEHHEMNEER

the remaining balance of the liability for each period. A EAR A R — B o

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the FREBEEEREKRAGE  BFEUT

following: ®IE

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; ° VA EHREAGEN SR

. any lease payments made at or before the e HERMBHKZAELNE
commencement date less any lease incentives received; MHEENFRETMNEREE
and BE R

e anyinitial direct cost. o {EIFAEEMR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(y)

(2)

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of properties,
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are credited to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management

4 BBRERERE

4.1 Financial instruments by categories 41 RERESZEMIA
Financial assets
at fair value Financial Financial
through other assets liabilities
comprehensive at amortised at amortised
income cost cost
BRATETA
Hitt2EWE 2 REBEMA REENA
BREE TEZHBEE TEZHKERE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 2 TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA
=+—H
Debt investments EHERE 22 614,601 - -
Equity investments RAEE 22 79,341 = =
Deposits, trade and other Ze BHREMER
receivables (excluding HE (T eERA
prepayment and other tax ORI A Ay T e
recoverable) FIE) - 1,933,779 -
Time deposits, bank balances THES  RITEHRK
and cash Be 25 - 2,816,789 -
Trade and other payables B REMERNTIE - - 1,237,789
Borrowings e 28 - - 1,435,280
Lease liabilities HEGRE 17 - - 60,874
Senior notes BEER 29 - - 5,411,161
693,942 4,750,568 8,145,104
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1

4.2

Financial instruments by categories (Continued)

e M RRME

(continued) (#&)
R ERE(E)

41 RERHE2zZEMIAE)

Financial assets

at fair value Financial Financial
through other assets liabilities
comprehensive at amortised at amortised
income cost cost
BRATERTA
Et2EKHZ REHAA REHKA
HEE TECHBEE SEZHEER
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B zx THT TRT TAT
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F+ZA
=+—H
Debt investments EBRE 2 330,174 - -
Equity investments BARE 22 108,946 - -
Deposits, trade and other me BHREMENR
receivables (excluding HE(TBREEN
prepayment and other tax TR R A 7] 4 e
recoverable) THIB) - 1,846,840 -
Time deposits, bank balances and FH1F 5 « 17484 &
cash Be 25 - 2,666,902 -
Trade and other payables B 5 R E R A - - 1,382,522
Borrowings EE 28 - - 1,519,481
Senior notes BrER 29 - - 5,029,991
439,120 4,513,742 7,931,994

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising in the normal course
of its business and financial instruments. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

42 HHRAKBEE

SEEIERZEV KRR - ™
LRBBREEERR ERER
=R EERBRRATEXE
BRELEMIAELAZRDE
TRk EEEBEEREEZZTR
% ARBELRSABMEEEE RS
i
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4

Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk

0]

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to United States dollars (“US$"), Canadian
dollars (“CAD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). Currency
risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operations. In addition, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. This currency
exposure is managed primarily through sourcing
supplies denominated in the same currency.

Management has set up a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against functional currency. It mainly includes
managing the exposures arise from sales and
purchases made by the relevant group companies
in currencies other than their own functional
currencies. The Group also manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular reviews of
the Group’s net foreign exchange exposures. The
Group has not used any forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge its exposure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

0]

Currency risk (Continued)

Prices for oil and natural gas in Canada are
determined in global markets and generally
denominated in US$. Oil and natural gas prices
obtained by the Group are influenced by both
United States and Canadian demand and the
corresponding North American supply, and recently,
by imports of liquefied natural gas. The exchange
rate effect cannot be quantified but generally an
increase in the value of CAD as compared to US$
will reduce the prices received by the Group for its
petroleum and natural gas sales. At 31 December
2019 and 2018, there has no financial instrument
denominated in US$ in the books of subsidiaries
with functional currency denominated in CAD.

As US$ is pegged with HK$ under the Linked
Exchange Rate System, the Group has minimal
exposure to currency risk arising from US$.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.
As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$115,570,000 (2018:
HK$91,970,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of
RMB denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4

Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to price changes arising from
debt and equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income amounted to HK$693,942,000 (2018:
HK$439,120,000). Most of these investments are
listed either on the stock exchanges of Hong Kong
or other countries.

Equity investments are held as long-term strategic
investments and have been chosen based on their
longer term growth potential and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.
The portfolio is diversified in terms of industry
distribution, in accordance with the limits set by
the Group.

Debt investments are placed with counterparties
with sound credit quality. The Group closely
monitors the credit quality and financial positions
of counterparties and consider appropriate action
if the market value of those securities decline by a
pre-determined threshold.

Commodity price risk is the risk that fair value
or future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of
changes in commodity prices. Commodity prices
for oil and natural gas in Canada are impacted by
the relationship between CAD and US$ as well as
world economic events that dictate the levels of
supply and demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, except for short-term bank deposits, loan to
an associate and loans to third parties, the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate significant impact
on interest-bearing assets resulted from changes
in interest rates because the interest rates of bank
deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings and senior notes. Borrowings obtained
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Details of the Group’s borrowings and senior notes
are set out in Notes 28 and 29 respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk as the
interest rate risk exposure is not significant. In
order to manage the cash flow interest rate risk,
the Group will repay the corresponding borrowings
when it has surplus funds.
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4

Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a
general increase or decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates on floating rate borrowings,
with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group's post-tax profit for
the year by approximately HK$3,126,000 (2018:
HK$3,491,000). The above sensitivity analysis
has been determined assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the date of the
statement of financial position and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management'’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the year until the next
annual statement of financial position date. The
analysis was performed on the same basis for 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(continued) (#)

4 UHRERERGE

42 HHEBEEE)

(b) Credit risk (b) EFEREE
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to SECEERBETEHER
contract assets, deposits, trade and other receivables, EHMEBEE ¥ BHLE
debt investments at FVOCI, time deposits with maturity fib FE UG I8~ A FEEET A
over three months, and cash at banks with a maximum Etemlz2EBHKEE -
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial BEE A=A LA E
instruments which are stated as follows: GFHRUAKRIETRS  FTES
ZEEEBEERZE SR
THZREMBE T
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Contract assets, deposits, trade BHBEE B BHK
and other receivables (excluding HinE W HIB (T~ aiE
prepayment and other tax TE AT FRIE R E A ATk [El
recoverable) FIE) 2,040,600 1,956,050
Debt investments at FVOC| BEAFEFAEMEZE
W7 EHREE 614,601 330,174
Time deposits with maturity over three F|Hi B A =187 &
months FHATE R 295,590 158,679
Cash at banks RITIRE 2,518,640 2,504,490
Maximum exposure to credit risk &= 15 B R R 5,469,431 4,949,393
Management has a credit policy in place and the EREDRIERKZEER
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an RO UVHZEEERBREE
ongoing basis. B o
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4

Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

0]

Credit risk of cash at banks and time deposits
with maturity over three months

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the
Group’s bank deposits are deposited in major
financial institutions located in the PRC and Hong
Kong, which the management believes are of high
credit quality without significant credit risk. There
has been no recent history of default in relation to
these financial institutions. The expected credit loss
is close to zero.

The Group's bank deposits as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 were as follows:

4

B b B ()

Bt ¥ R B & ()

4.2

(b)

FEEE(E)

0]

BRA=EARMNERT
REREMERZEE
[ B

RZTE-—NFRZZF
—NE+-_A=+—
B SBHMARITER
HEBRREERBR AR
BEEREERBRNSE
EHEzHBERES
ITEoREE  %ES
BMEEIRY EENE
o BHEEBIERD
RE -

RZE-NER_F
—NF+-A=+-—
B £@8ZRITFRD
T~

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FAT

State-owned or listed banks EAEs FRIT 1,746,755 1,814,897
Other banks HiRTT 1,067,475 848,272
2,814,230 2,663,169
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk of loan and interest receivables
from an associate

The directors of the Company consider the
probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis during
the year ended 31 December 2019. To assess
whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares risk of a default occurring
on the assets as at the reporting date with the
risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

- Actual or expected significant adverse change
in business, financial economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the associate’s ability to meet its
obligations;

- Actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the associate;

- Significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the associate,
including changes in the payment status of
the associate.
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4

Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Credit risk of loan and interest receivables
from an associate (Continued)

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if the associate
is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment/repayable demanded.

A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments/
repayable demanded within 90 days when they fall
due.

The management considers the credit risk on
loan and interest receivables from an associate
after considering the financial conditions of
the associate and concluded that there was
no significant increase in credit risk, and the
expected credit losses was limited to 12 months
expected credit losses. Management has applied
the expected credit risk model and estimated the
probability-weighted default rate of 3.5% (2018:
2.8%) and loss given default rate of 60.2% (2018:
60.2%) after considering the current economic
environment and the forward looking economic
factors. Loss allowance of HK$20,360,000
(2018: HK$17,000,000) is recognised as at 31
December 2019 and impairment loss amounted
to HK$3,830,000 (2018: Nil) is recognised during
current reporting period.

124 CHINAOIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2019

4

B EREE(E

4.2

Bt ¥ R B & ()
(b) FEmEEE
(i) RE-—HMBELLANER
REWFE 2 EERR
()

BE LXMWt
N EE B B30K K
BANXN RERE
& AEERREEE
e

MBEERNERSYH
T RBEAEF HRI0KR A
BANXN RERE
= o

ERERE BB E AR
BB IS AR R 1% - 2R & B
BNE 2B R
EMEERBRERAK
FERBISHLERE
BERBEEE M
TEHEEBEXREMNI2
MAEHEEREE &
EEEACERE RAT
EMHEERAE  E12E
FERESHEEBEELR
RGO E B35%
(ZE—\F :128%) %
EHBEAEAE02% (=
T — N\ F :602%) °
RZE—-—NLF+=A
T -HHREERE
20,360,000 & (= =
— JU4 17,000,000 7
JC) K A AN 3R 45 B R RE
725, {8 5 18 3,830,000/8
T(ZZE—)N\F  #|) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

(continued) (#)

4  Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIREREEEE)
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 42 BHEBEEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) EERER (&)
(iii) Credit risk of deposits and other receivables (i) REREMERREZ
FERE

Deposits and other receivables were mainly rental
deposits, refundable deposits placed to suppliers,
note receivables and miscellaneous receivables
from customers. The credit quality of deposits
and other receivables has been assessed with
reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial position
of the counterparties. Given the track record of
repayment in full, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the risk of default by these
counterparties is not significant and does not
expect any losses from non-performance by the
counterparties. Therefore, expected credit loss rate
of the deposits and other receivables is assessed to
be close to zero and no provision was made as at
31 December 2019 and 2018.
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4

Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk of contract assets and trade

receivables

For sales and distribution of natural gas and other
related products, and the provision of pipeline
construction and connection services in the PRC,
the Group generally requests advances from these
customers. For exploitation and production of
crude oil and natural gas in Canada, receivables
from oil and natural gas marketers are normally
collected on the 25th day of the month following
production. In circumstances of credit sales, to
manage the credit risk in respect of contract assets
and trade receivables, the Group has policies in
place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the Group
performs credit evaluations of its customers, and
generally does not require collateral from the
customers on the outstanding balances.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected credit loss provision for all contract assets
and trade receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

4  Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIREREEEE)
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 42 H¥RAMREREE
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) EERER (&)
(iv) Credit risk of contract assets and trade (iv) EHNEERESENRR
receivables (Continued) BrEEREE)
To measure the expected credit losses, contract RIETEBEHEEEBRE -
assets and trade receivables have been grouped AEHMEENE S ERK

based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 36 months
before 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2019
and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. For customers relating to
the sales and distribution of natural gas and other
related products as well as the provision of pipeline
construction and connection services in the PRC,
the Group has identified the GDP growth rate of
the PRC to be the most relevant factor. For oil and
natural gas marketers relating to the exploitation
and production of crude oil and natural gas in
Canada, the Group has identified that commodity
price fluctuation to be the most relevant factor.
The Group adjusts the historical loss rates based on
expected changes in these factors accordingly.
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4

Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk of contract assets and trade

receivables (Continued)

Contract assets and trade receivables are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period of greater than 1
year past due.

Impairment losses on contract assets and trade
receivables are presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

Given the track record of regular repayment of
receivables from the customers, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the risk of default
by these customers is not significant. Therefore,
expected credit loss rate of contract assets and
trade receivables is assessed to be close to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)
(v) Credit risk of debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are normally
only in liquid securities quoted on a recognised
stock exchange, except where entered into for
long-term strategic purposes. Management
considers “low credit risk” for listed bonds to be
an investment grade credit rating with at least
one major rating agency (Moody's: Baa3 or above;
Standard & Poor’s: BBB- or above; Fitch: BBB- or
above). Other instruments are considered to be
low credit risk when they have a low risk of default
and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.
The Group has assessed that the expected credit
losses for these financial assets are not material
under the 12 months expected credit loss method.
Thus no loss allowance provision was recognised as
at the balance sheet date.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s Board when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4  Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIEEREIE(E)
4.2  Financial risk factors (Continued) 42 B¥EAKBREEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () REBELERE)
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TERHFNLEEYEEERE
maturities at date of the statement of financial position FEHRR = B EI M T 62 A 4 B
of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based HA  DREBEGHRFER
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including ShEBEFEHEONES
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, O BN R WMEFE
if floating, based on rates current at the statement of R AR & B B E IR AT A
financial position date) and the earliest date the Group RAE)REB AL T
can be required to pay: xFABRKIE
Total Total Less than

carrying contractual 1 year or Between Between Over

Group o amount undiscounted on demand 1to 2 years 2to 5 years 5 years
15/
RESE  SHRFBEH EPST 122F 185% SENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR TiEn TR Thn TiEn AR
Asat 31 December 2019 R=E-fE+-A
=+-A

Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEMFE 1,237,789 1,237,789 1,237,789 - - -
Borrowings = 1,435,280 1,461,101 1,433,029 1,383 26,689 -
Senior notes (Note 29) B ZH (H£29) 5,411,161 6,214,316 295,547 296,669 5,622,100 -
Lease liabilites BERE 60,874 71,999 15,045 10,297 28,088 18,569

8,145,104 8,985,205 2,891,410 308,349 5,676,877 18,569
Asat 31 December 2018 H=F—\E+= 7

=+-A

Trade and other payables ~ Z B REMEN T 1,382,522 1,382,522 1,382,522 - - -
Borrowings Eg 1,519,481 1,561,380 1,469,484 57,925 33971 -
Senior notes (Note 29) B0 (:329) 5,029,991 5,551,577 239,344 2,481,596 2,830,637 -

7,931,994 8,495,479 3,091,350 2,539,521 2,864,608 -
Note: M EE
The Group complied with senior notes covenant and did not SERREBEEZT-—NAFE+ZA
trigger the callable terms as at and for the year ended 31 ST —HBLEFEEFELEZRZ
December 2019. 79 T i 10 48 B i I 38 RN 1RR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3

Capital risk management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating cash
flows, projected capital expenditure and projected strategic
investment opportunities. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, repurchase the Company’s shares, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of available cash and
cash equivalents and current ratio as shown in and derived
from the consolidated statement of financial position. The table

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

4 HHEAKREREGE)

4.3

EXEBER

SEZEAERTEARRRE
SERSEEERLE 28N IR
BARRTREBESEMER
S ESRNGE  ARFTREEAR
RBABDERKAE -

SEEBRERRS REEEAR
B UIKEREBEZAKRESHEX
REAYE - BRI RIBHAT G
REHEERSRE FEHEAHR
X RFEHREREREMREEREL
BEARBRBEREE - KR XA
EEARE SEAGABINT
BERZEECE  ERARKRG -
RBREREAR - BITHRAHE
BENBDER -

SEREBEFEAEMBRIKRMRR
AEmRGzIRRERREEE
HARRBLEEZER - TRR

below analyses the Group's capital structure: SEEREHE DN
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Cash and cash equivalents (HK$'000) HeRREZEEE (F47T) 2,521,199 2,508,223
Current ratio (Current assets divided by REILL R GRENEER AR E
current liabilities) BfE) 1.08 1.02

The Group’s strategy is to maintain the current ratio above
1.00 and sufficient cash and cash equivalents to support the
operations and development of its business in the long term.
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.4  Fair value estimation
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of the
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
statement of financial position date across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7,
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instruments categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement.

The levels are defined as follows:

o Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

3 Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active market for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
data.

3 Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input
is not based on observable market data.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)
4.4  Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

e M RRME

(continued) (#)

B g R b B IR (F
4.4 RAFEMLE(E)

() HAFEIKE#TA

(Continued) (%)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-BR F-BR EZBIX @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL TET FTiER TR
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+=A
=—f+—H
Financial assets at FVOCI: BAFEFAEMEE
W MBEE
— Listed equity investments - Lk A%E 79,341 - - 79,341
— Listed debt investments - I mEBEE 614,151 = = 614,151
- Unlisted debt investments - JE F I EHKERE - 450 - 450
693,492 450 - 693,942
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+=A
=t+—H
Financial assets at FVOCI: BATEFAZMGEZE
Wz MBEE -
- Listed equity investments - FRAKE 108,946 - - 108,946
- Listed debt investments - FHESERE 329,724 - - 329,724
- Unlisted debt investments - 3£ FEKRE - 450 - 450

438,670

During the year, there were no transfers between

instruments in level 1 and level 2.

450 - 439,120

RAFE F-BRRE=
BRzEz TEBmEE-
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BREREEE
4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued) 44 PDY¥EMHE(E
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value () URFEIEKZZHMITA
(Continued) (#)
(a) Financial instruments in level 1 (a) E£—EBARX&®MIA
The fair value of financial instruments traded in RRXEBERTEHEES
active markets is based on quoted market prices EMITAEZAFERE
at the date of the statement of financial position. R AR BB zTE
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are WMETE - ZWER™
readily and regularly available from an exchange, 5Ty 0] 6 51 I F B
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, XS &KiEm &
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent A CITHEEE  ®E
actual and regularly occurring market transactions AR 75 2 R B H B S 3R
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price Bzm% MEBMRE
used for financial assets held by the Group is the EHRBETZEER
current bid price. These instruments are included FRXG2ERERN -
in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise EEMEMBEERA
primarily Hong Kong and Dow Jones equity and ZHERBAESEE A
debt investments classified as financial assets at B -ZETEEWIA
FVOCI (2018: same). E—BIR - WIRE—
BAXzIEXERED
HAR AT ERTAEAMm
cEKREIVBEED
BERBBITIEEES
REBHEECZZE—N
& AR) -
(b) Financial instruments in level 2 (b) E-ZEXEMIA

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)
4.4  Fair value estimation (Continued)

(ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments, including non-current assets carried at
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each statement of financial position date. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are
used for long-term borrowings. Other techniques, such as
estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine
fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

The carrying values less allowance for impairment
of current receivables and of current payables are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. Estimated
discounted cash flows at the current market interest
rate are used to determine fair value for these financial
instruments (i.e. level 3-lowest level).

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
The assumptions, estimates and judgements are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. While the management reviews their judgements,
estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom
equal to the estimates.

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#&)
R ERE(E)
44 PDFEMLE(E)

(i) HFEAFEIRZEHTA
ZAFHE

SENCR T A(BIENEH
ARG 2 IEREE E) Z Bk
HE BER_Z-AFR
“E2-NE+-A=+—H
ZRAFELEEREH -

SEEREERE LS
FHRAXKBAPER ZTR
EHBRER EHEBEEDER
ARBETAZTSEXRXSHE
ZHE - BEEHHESBMTA
Z X AR B 2 R At Al
Pl RRERE -

A T 5 Rk B A 8 Uk B 5K 8 BD
HEMNERZREREDR
FEZAENE - RBTH
EHEZHFARRAESRE
DRANEBEE%FE/MITAZ
AFEAE=ZER — %K
BIR) e

EDN-—RarR eyl

SENEREABRERAZERERENM
BRELVRENGAMBREABE
E BE BARAXHESHRREE
R - far RFE - HEARE - A
RABTHERBELRRBERERS
MEBAEMNEMAREL - HAETEA
BeTHRIREZHE - A5 REE
BERERE D EMEFAER -

B R AT R HI BT E B T LARE L - A
ERRLECARAEE  BRHMARE
REBBERTERENRREFENTEL -

FOHMRREBERLA 2019FFH 135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

The matters described below are considered to be the most critical
in understanding the estimates and judgements that are involved in
preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(a) Estimate of impairment of loan and interest receivables
from and interest in an associate

The loss allowances for loan and interest receivables from an
associate are based on assumptions about default rate and
loss given default rate. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in Note 4.2(b).

The Group conducts impairment reviews of the interest in an
associate if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the investment (a “loss event”) and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the
investment that can be reliably estimated. Business valuation
of the associate was performed by management to determine
the recoverability of the interest in associate after taking
into account of marketability and minority interest discount
in interest held which involves management estimates and
judgments such as commodity price growth, future production
profile, and discount rate.

Favourable changes to some assumptions may decrease the
impairment amount whereas unfavourable changes may
increase the provisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b)

Estimation of impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. Property, plant and equipment and other
non-financial assets are also reviewed for possible impairments
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Determination
as to whether and how much an asset is impaired involves
management estimates and judgements such as future prices
of natural gas and crude oil. However, the impairment reviews
and calculations are based on assumptions that are consistent
with the Group’s business plans. Favourable changes to some
assumptions may allow the Group to avoid the need to impair
any assets in these years, whereas unfavourable changes may
cause the assets to become impaired.

The Group relied on experts to assess the geological prospects
for the discovery of oil in the oilfield and estimated the value
of oil to be produced in the future at a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. For drilling costs and
other exploration and evaluation assets, the Group determined
whether the related well costs are expensed if it is determined
that such economic viability is not attained after performing
further feasibility studies. Judgement is required by the Board
to determine key assumptions adopted in the cash flow
projections and changes to key assumptions can significantly
affect these cash flow projections and therefore the results of
the impairment reviews.

5

(b)
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(9]

(d)

Estimation of useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment under the segment of “sales and
distribution of natural gas and other related products”

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values for the Group's property, plant and
equipment in the segment of “Sales and distribution of natural
gas and other related products”. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technological advancement and innovations in the natural
gas industry. Management will adjust the depreciation charge
where residual values vary with previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual residual values
may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore depreciation in the future periods.

Estimate of petroleum reserve under the segment of
“exploitation and production of crude oil and natural
gas”

Estimates of petroleum reserves are key elements in the
Group's investment decision-making process. They are also
an important element in testing for impairment. Changes
in total proved plus probable petroleum reserves will affect
unit-of-production depreciation and depletion recorded in the
Group's consolidated financial statements for property, plant
and equipment related to oil and gas production activities.
A reduction in proved plus probable reserves will increase
depreciation and depletion charges. Petroleum reserve
estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward,
based on new information, such as from development drilling
and production activities or from changes in economic factors,
including product prices, contract terms or development plans.
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Notes to the Consolidated

Revenue and segment information 6

The Group’s principal activities are the sales and distribution of
natural gas, crude oil and other related products and provision of
construction and connection services of gas pipelines in the PRC,
and the exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas in
Canada. Revenue for the year comprises the following:

Financial Statements

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#&)
LEBERDEBER

SETBREHERDHERAR  RA
REMBBERMNTPEEHMRAE S
BEREERE  AREMERARK
HERBRERRAR FREXBRBTEMU
MR

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sales and distribution of natural gas and other 56 R#%k KA R & HihiERE
related products = 9,254,902 8,475,905
Gas pipeline connection and construction MREEEZER MEEREWA
services income 566,807 517,422
Revenue from exploitation and production of  FI#R K& A E B M R X ARFTE
crude oil and natural gas PN 438,945 416,804
10,260,654 9,410,131

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of performance focuses more specifically
on sales of natural gas, gas pipeline construction and connection; and
exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas.

The Group has presented the following three reportable segments for
the year ended 31 December 2019:

- sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products

- gas pipeline construction and connection
- exploitation and production of crude oil and natural gas

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable segments.

SEREEHRANTEEERHERD
R R 2 AT BEER BRI HEL
BOBEGRIMEN TEZRER
HERAR MREBRZERERAR
M EERMRRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

6

Revenue and segment information
(Continued)

The executive directors assess the performance of the business
segments based on profit before taxation without allocation of
other gains, net, interest income, finance costs, share of losses of
investments accounted for using the equity method, impairment on
oil and gas properties under property, plant and equipment, written
off of exploration and evaluation assets, impairment on loan and
interest receivables from an associate and other unallocated corporate
expenses, which is consistent with these in the consolidated financial
statements. Meanwhile, the Group does not allocate assets and
liabilities to its segments and report the sales from external customers
by geographical market, as the executive directors do not use this
information to allocate resources to or evaluate the performance of
operating segments. Therefore, the Group does not report a measure
of segment assets and liabilities for each reportable segment and a
measure of sales by geographical market.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the executive directors for the purpose of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR MR

(continued) (#)

6 Revenue and segment information 6 ZEXRFRDEER(F)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019: HE-"T—HAE+-_A=+—BItEE :
Sales and Exploitation
distribution and
of natural Gas pipeline production
gas and construction of crude oil
other related and and natural
products connection gas Group
HERBR
AARRRHA REEERE BHEREE
HBER RER FHRAXAR %8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TER
Segment revenue and results THBRAREE
Segment revenue AHBUA
Recognised at a point in time RE—BEEER 9,254,902 - 438,945 9,693,847
Recognised over time R — BB B AR - 566,807 - 566,807
Sales to external customers MHEPHER 9,254,902 566,807 438,945 10,260,654
Segment results DEEE 908,005 263,972 77,841 1,249,818
Interest income F S WA 151,491
Other gains, net Hils - %8 22,194
Finance costs UHER (281,773)
Impairment on loan and interest Bl —HEE AR ERK
receivables from an associate FIERE (3.830)
Impairment on oil and ¥ BERFRBETHR
gas properties under property, EERE
plant and equipment (30,395)
Written off of exploration and BREREEERHE
evaluation assets - - (19,377) (19,377)
Share of losses of investments NEEREREARLZ
accounted for using the equity REBE
method (3,636)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOECERY (110,982)
Profit before taxation B % Al v A 973,510
Taxation 18 (194,391)
Profit for the year FREF 779,119
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

6 Revenue and segment information 6 EXBERDIER(E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018: He T )\F+_A=+—HILFE :
Sales and Exploitation
distribution and
of natural Gas pipeline production
gas and construction of crude oil
other related and and natural
products connection gas Group
HE R X
RARREAM MREERE RRREE
HBREm RER Rl RRAR &H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TRET TR
Segment revenue and results PHMAREE
Segment revenue AEUA

Recognised at a point in time RE—EREZER 8,475,905 - 416,804 8,892,709
Recognised over time R—RERRER - 517,422 - 517,422
Sales to external customers INBEBHER 8,475,905 517,422 416,804 9,410,131
Segment results NEEE 774,131 258,020 60,057 1,092,208
Interest income FMEWA 146,818
Other gains, net Hils - %8 18,936
Finance costs MER (206,712)
Written off of exploration and DRERTEEEHE

evaluation assets - - (5,651) (5,651)
Share of losses of investments NEEREREARL

accounted for using the equity REERE

method (3,300)

Unallocated corporate expenses RAOMLERT (113,773)
Profit before taxation T B4 B A 928,526
Taxation T8 (250,301)
Profit for the year FRE 678,225

HE_Z— W Frk-_Z—-—N\F+_-A
=+—HBLEFE £EELENBEFPR
EEZHAFEEHEIB10.0% °

No external customers of the Group contributed over 10.0% of the
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

Analysis of the Group's assets by geographical market for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is set out below:

e M RRME

(continued) (#)

EXRBRDEER (F)

HE-_Z—NAFER-_FT—NF+=A
Z+—BLEE £EEMWETHES
ZEEZAWMHEIIMT

2018
“E-NEF —E-N\E
Additions to Additions to
non-current non-current
Total assets assets Total assets assets
nE NE
BEE EREBEE BEE ERBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THT TER
Hong Kong EeE 139,269 - 145,069 -
Mainland China HE R, 13,111,217 844,715 12,692,966 835,760
Canada mex 2,500,265 217,642 2,430,088 321,559
Total @t 15,750,751 1,062,357 15,268,123 1,157,319
Unallocated ADE
Investments accounted for using the A EAEZRE
equity method 378,823 312,754
Deferred tax assets ELEHRBEE 8,968 7,646
Financial assets through other AR EAREZ
comprehensive income BBEE 693,942 439,120
Total assets BEE 16,832,484 16,027,643
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

7 Other income 7 HMA
2019 2018
—ZE-h#F —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Government subsidies XK 485 B 21,824 18,885
Service income AR 7 U A 6,034 5,853
Dividend income f& B A 1,231 1,256
Others Hith 7,468 4,075
36,557 30,069
8 Other gains, net 8 Hihlzm » FH

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FEIT

Gains on disposal of debt investments at fair HEZRAFEFAEMET
value through other comprehensive income Wi 2 BT E W 5,281 2,097
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34) o B A B e (P 3E34) 16,913 -
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 33) B W (MFRE33) = 12,221
Gain on disposal of a land use right b A W e - 4,618
22,194 18,936
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Operating profit

Operating profit has been arrived after charging/(crediting) the

following items:

e IR AR MR

(continued) (#)

2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FET
Employee benefit expenses (Note 11) EERAFAZ (M) 389,246 384,358
Minimum lease payments under leases HETHEETFHNRELE
for leasehold land and buildings MENR - 13,600
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAERTHEFEERA
— Purchase of inventories -BERE 7,581,958 6,982,544
- Change of inventories during the year - FREE# (19,927) 38,340
Auditor’s remuneration % ERAD B &
— Audit services - BEZRB 2,620 2,300
- Non-audit services - BT 1,400 -
Depreciation and depletion of property, Y BEMEEBETERER
plant and equipment (Note 16) (MtzE16) 488,964 470,165
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 17) {EAEEENE (HiE17) 27,457 -
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 19) T AR S (P9 RE19) - 8,769
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 20) EREESH (M 5E20) 2,912 3,192
Short term lease expenses HHEERX 2,502 -
Losses on disposal of property, HEME  MEMEENEBE
plant and equipment 2,393 872
Impairment loss of loan and interest El—FHEEATERR
receivables from an associate (Note 24(d)) F B EE1E (M rE24(d)) 3,830 -
Net exchange losses/(gains) BE N 1R, (W) B 5 100 (527)
Write off of exploration and evaluation assets 1% & 5T 1H & &= 84 (H13E18)
(Note 18) 19,377 5,651
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

10 Finance income and costs 10 BIBWAREHR
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Finance income from: BB AKRE :
Interest income on bank deposits RITF R F B WA 50,834 50,133
Interest income on debt investments EBAFEFAEMEZE
at fair value through other Wz EHRIRER
comprehensive income F B U A 33,671 37,076
Loan to an associate (Note 24(d)) ERFRBE QA
(M sE24(d)) 66,074 58,657
Loans to third parties ERFE=F 912 952
151,491 146,818
Finance costs from: FHERRE :
Interest expense on: FEEM -
Bank borrowings RITEE (63,972) (56,466)
Other borrowings HiEE (1,107) (1,351)
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HESE(MHE17) (3.252) -
Senior notes EBEER (274,096) (246,942)
Accretion of assets retirement obligation B EREEAEN I (M 5E31)
(Note 31) (3,112) (2,970)
Less: Amounts capitalised (Note 16(ii)) W BARbe5E (KM EE6di) 97,632 101,017
(247,907) (206,712)
Loss on early redemption of a senior note REBLELEZRERE (33,866) -
(281,773) (206,712)
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e M RRME

(continued) (#)

11 Employee benefit expenses, including 11 EERAHX  BREEEM
directors’ emoluments %
2019 2018
—E-h#E —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Salaries, wages and bonuses e IENES 344,564 322,496
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIKES KA — REEKEE 42,397 40,593
Share option i e e 1,801 3,953
Share awards 1% 17 52 484 17,316
389,246 384,358
(a) Five highest paid individuals () BEEEBRSFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in SEFRNRAEERMEZALTE
the Group for the year include 1 (2018: 1) director whose B2 (Z2E-N\F  18)EF K
emolument is reflected in the analysis presented in Note 12(a). Bl & B &R M E12@2 7 89 5 #T o
The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining 4 (2018: 4) FRENKENTEHKIZ(ZF
individuals during the year are as follows: —N\F 4B)ATHHESET :
2019 2018
ZE-hF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMREDNR 22,072 24,769
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R /K38 F 51 2] it 2% 18 18
22,090 24,787
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

11 Employee benefit expenses, including 1

directors’ emoluments (Continued)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band was as follows:

|=|\—

S BARX  BEESH

ﬁ@ﬁ)
() EEBSHMAL(H)

BATHESEE ZREABWT :

Number of employees

BEAH

2019 2018

—g-n% —E-N\F

HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000  5,000,001% JT £6,000,000/% JT 4 4

No emoluments were paid or payable to the above highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

(b) Senior management’s emoluments

Details of remuneration paid to members of senior management
fell within the following bands:

(b)

BE_Z-NFR-ZF-N\F+=
Hf-i— EIJJ:EJIBZEE SEYE
XNEENEAME TEER L
MEESHFH AL ERBERS
MBEESERRERB HE -

EREEEREHMH

BATHzEENENSRER
BB M & 715

Number of employees

EEAE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T—)\F
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 078752 1,000,0007% 7T 9 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7t 2,000,000/ 7T 1 8
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7t & 3,000,000/ 7T 3 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 Jt £4,000,000% 7T 2

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 7t 5,000,000/ 7T -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,000,001 7t 6,000,000/ 7T 5 5
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e M RRME

(continued) (#)

12 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures 12 EEFRZREZ(EBLAT

required by section 383 of the Hong Kong kBl (£622F ) £383f% ~ &
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies A(HEESFEER)RA
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits (6622GE)REEBLMHRE
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK ERIFE)
Listing Rules)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=EME
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of person’s services as ENHEAFRHERBAGTES
a director or services in connection with the management of the NIEMEEEEEABAORG 2
affairs, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings: ATtzMesdk HERMSMT
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries, toa
allowances retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees in kind scheme Total
[E=1)
2= 1.1 RAER
e RENHE TEIMAR ko]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Executive directors: HTES!
Xu Tie-liang THR (THER)
(Chief Executive Officer) 120 7,325 18 7,463
Guan Yijun BHE 120 1,370 18 1,508
Liu Chunsun AEF 120 474 - 594
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
directors:
Li Yun-long ZEY 120 - - 120
Wang Guang-tian TEH 120 - - 120
Yang lie BA 120 - - 120

Total Bt 720 9,169 36 9,925
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e BHRRME

(continued) (#)

12 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Details of remuneration of directors for the year ended 31

12 EENERER(FELT
155l (56622%F ) 553831 ~ 2
A(FEEESEFNZER)FA
(36622GE) REB L HRA
BRIFE) (&)

(a) ESME(H)

BHE-_Z-N\F+=ZA=+—H

December 2018 were as follows: IWFEEZ2EEMSEBENOT -
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries, toa
allowances retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees in kind scheme Total
EFY
e 2R RIKEH
Hne REMF & STEIR T ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT AL FAEL
Executive directors: HTES:
Xu Tie-liang TR (TREH)
(Chief Executive Officer) 120 7,211 18 7,349
Cheung Shing TR (R —\FXA
(resigned on 12 June 2018) +ZHEIT) 54 - - 54
Guan Yijun BHE 120 1,170 18 1,308
Zhu Yuan KERZT-N\FRA
(resigned on 12 June 2018) +ZHEIT) 54 - - 54
Liu Chunsun &% 67 780 - 847
Independent non-executive BUFHTEES:
directors:
Li Yun-long TEE 120 - - 120
Wang Guang-tian TER 120 - - 120
Yang Jie BA 120 - - 120
Total @Et 775 9,161 36 9,972

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments and no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
of the Company as an accepting office as director or as a
compensation for loss of office as director.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Benefits and interests of directors (disclosures
required by section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) and HK
Listing Rules) (Continued)

(b)

(9

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking (2018: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation for the
early termination of the appointment during the year (2018:
Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of directors
for making available the services of them as a director of the
Company (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors during the year (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2018: Nil).

e M RRME

(continued) (#)

12 ESFFERER(FEBLT
155l (36622F ) 26383f% + I
A(REESENZER)FA
(6622GE)REB L HHRA
ERE) (F

(b)

(o]

(d)

(e)

(f)

THRREEAERAT 2009FF®H 151

EERMNEF

EXVEREABERRRREN
BARER 2 HEAMREE K
EUCRRBA (=T —\F : &) o

EEBRBEA

FA-TERNERELRANRLE
WHHME(ZE—\F &) -

RENEERBEEAE=FTINHN
RE

VESRERESERSAREFRE
HE R MR E AR EER AR (=
T-NEFE)-

FHUES ZEESWIEHX
ErREEERAZREANER ¥
ERREMRENESR

FA OBELNESE ZFERFZX
ZHEB L BEERRARBEAZE
R EERREMZZH(ZF-N
FE) -

EERXS RUSSHNERE

i

X E) AR S AR B
AEEFNAREZERETEEKN
MEEREMNEAaEREH
EBBARZIEARS  ZHEAK
(Z2—N\F &) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

13 Taxation 13 FIE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax
for the year (2018: Nil).

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards at 10% (2018: 10%). Certain entities of
the Group with Hong Kong business and directly owns at least
25% of the capital of the PRC subsidiaries are entitled to the lower
withholding tax rate at 5% (2018: 5%).

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance note, subsidiaries in
Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at
25% (2018: 25%). Certain subsidiaries are entitled to tax concessions
and tax relief whereby the profits of those subsidiaries are taxed at a
preferential income tax rate of 15% (2018: 15%)).

Canada income tax has been provided for at the rate of 26.5% on
the estimated assessable profits for the year (2018: 27%), which
represented the tax rate in Alberta, Canada and the Canada’s federal
tax rate of 11.5% (2018: 12%) and 15% (2018: 15%) respectively.

Taxation on other overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the applicable rates of
taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

H 70 68 B A AN AR A R AR (AT 2R A
ERANBHRERREN WA BESE
BNEREREER(ZT-N\F : &) -

BB BESEMEEHERIED &
“ET N \FE—-F—HE BAFPEHN
BARFTHEZ B BHRREZI0% (=
T—\F 1 10%) 2 HEHNBINR - &
THEEAEKBEERETENER
AELNBRAZEBEEBEZES% (=
T—N\F 1 5%) ZBEEINH -

REMBTIECEMSRZE  KOIRE
B AR Al - A A B A 3 B B B A )2 25%
(ZZ—\F :25%) 2 R E G B b
EMER -ETHWBRARAZENBE
BEERRR Bt ZEMEBRRZEMN
NBEMEHBREIS%(ZE—\F
15%) @i °

FRINE KRS TIIZ26.5%1H 51 & 3
MaEMtR(ZE—F 1 27%)  BD
EAMBEBERER NS KW BH
RHRBI5%(ZFT—\F :12%) &
15% (ZZ—\F : 15%) °

H At /g S0 A B 18 T LA 5 (B 4K & P 7E )
FEREBEERRITREZF ARG ERBR
A EHE A -

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET

Current tax: B HAR A ¢
PRC corporate income tax R EMER 225,987 224,985
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 6,803 3,743
232,790 228,728
Deferred tax (Note 30) RAERIE (M 3530) (38,399) 21,573
Taxation 18 194,391 250,301
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e IR AR MR

(continued) (#)

13 Taxation (Continued) 13 BiIE(4E)
There is no tax impact relating to components of other comprehensive BE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HIEFE

income for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). R B E A m U S A AR B

YE(CE-N\F 8 -

Z B

SEBHRARMZHAEEREREE
B MEFARTEL 2ERERE

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the Group as follows: BT
2019 2018
—E—hE —ZE—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Profit before taxation B %54 711 328 ) 973,510 928,526
Tax calculated at the applicable rates in BBEBERF AR 2
the tax jurisdictions concerned HRAMERTENTIE 277,538 282,266
Tax effect of income not subject to taxation — HERF AN TS L (27,845) (27,180)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BB mME AR AR
for tax purpose EORTR A 15,163 16,064
Tax effect of tax concessions TR o B B 75 52 & (41,305) (34,296)
Unrecognised tax losses REERIEEE 4,397 7,500
Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses AARERNIEEE (7,524) (5,725)
Withholding tax on dividend income f& S A TEH T 10,073 7,929
Effect on change in tax rate (Note) MEREHHZE () (42,909) -
Under-provision in prior years BEFERENR 6,803 3,743
Taxation 518 194,391 250,301

The weighted average applicable tax rate is 28.5% (2018: 30.4%).
The decrease is caused by change in the profitability of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the respective jurisdictions, especially due to the
decrease in the loss before taxation for entities with zero tax rate in
certain tax jurisdictions, and the decrease in the Canada income tax
rate. For details, refer to Note below.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the tax rate in Alberta, Canada
decreased from 12% to 11.5%, and the tax rate for 2020, 2021 and 2022
decreased to 10%, 9% and 8% respectively. There was no change to the
Canada'’s federal tax rate.

MEFHERHRER285%(=ZF—N\
F :304%) ° Exiﬁi?ﬂéﬂf%%l#xﬂ
FEEBZMBRAR ZBNGENER L
HREETHUERZEERER/RT 20X
B AT B ER L A RINE KA

BRBERD MK - HEELH T XM
A
B -
BEZS-AGH= A=t ALFE N

%ﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬂa AT EHNR%REI15%  =F
ZEF B FRIFZI_FHMXE
%EIJW@O% © 9% % 8% ° M E KHEFH K&
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

14 Dividend 14 BRE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
No final dividend proposed BEERRARS (ZZ— N\F:
(2018: HK cents 0.4 per ordinary share) S EBR0.4BI) - 23,356
The final dividend relating to the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_Z - N\F+_A=+—HIHF
amounted to HK$23,356,000 was fully paid on 24 June 2019. & 2 REAAR 823,356,000 TE R ZF
—NERAZTMBEBEHZN -
The Board has decided not to propose final dividend for the year EEREFAINHEBEE=ZE—NF+=
ended 31 December 2019. (2018: HK cents 0.4 per ordinary share). A=+—RALEFEHREREARE(ZZ
—N\F  BREBARAEM) -
15 Earnings per share 15 BREAF
Basic - 9iN

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Group'’s
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$330,984,000(2018: HK$281,904,000) and weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue less shares held under share award
scheme during the year of approximately 4,983,413,000 shares (2018:
4,976,719,000 shares).
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R EERERBIKEDERAREAR
A FE 1 & B & F 49330,984,0007% T (=
T — )\ 4 : 281,904,000 L) R ERXN D
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1918 2 I 4 F 5 81 #74,983,413,000% (=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 Earnings per share (Continued)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has two
categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options and
shares held under the share award scheme during the year. For the
share options, a calculation is performed to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual market share price of the Company’s shares) based on
the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options and future service cost.

15

e IR AR MR

(continued) (#&)
IRBF (&)
#E

BRETERNDERRMEREEED
ZEBBRCBRZBERT  HELHAR
BITEIINERRZMEFHE - X7
EMBREEEN 2 EBER  BRER
FARKNEZBFTEMBAEORD - 3
BRENS AEAEEREMAMR
RTEBEREZRBERZEHEERZA
FEMARBRND Z2F FH M5 RE
AE)BAZKRODEE RARKRBERAK
KEHE -

2019 2018
—ZE-h#F —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Profit attributable to owners of the Company A B & A FE15 & 7 330,984 281,904
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — 4F (A & 217 % i A% A0 A% 17 22 B
in issue less shares held under the share SFEIET ARG &2
award scheme during the year (thousands) InwE B & (F %) 4,983,413 4,976,719
Adjustment for share options and awarded BB AR A S BB AR 1 A B (FAR)
shares (thousands) - 20,933
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & %k % & F| X 38 A% hn 4
for diluted earnings per share (thousands) 8 (TR 4,983,413 4,997,652

The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2019 as the outstanding share
options did not have dilutive effect because the exercise price per
share option was higher than the average share price of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BREFRANERBE_T-NAF+=
A=Z+—BLFENERELRRN &
AARTEMBRELEEETED It
THRREBNDEREZTEESNRAE
EZE-NF+ZA=T—BHLEFEZ
FHRAE o
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e BHRRME

(continued) (#)
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16 Property, plant and equipment 16 Y1  -BMERRZ®E
(Note (ii)
Plant and 0il and gas Construction in
Buildings machinery properties Pipelings  (Note (i)) Others progress Total
(M) (ki)
g7 FRERER HREE 3 kfy FEIR Eh
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin Fin Fin
As at 1 January 2018 H-5-NE-R-H
Cost AR 836,175 1,095,468 3,830,865 3,378,691 397,775 1,491,814 11,030,788
Accumulated depreciation, ZHNE BEREE
depletion and impairment (181,298) (415,024) (1,693,343) (765,359) (250,545) - (3,305,569)
Net book value EEFE 654,877 680,444 2131522 2,613,332 147,230 1,491,814 7725219
Vear ended 31 December 2018 EE-3-\E1ZR
St-BILER
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-F-H 654,877 680,444 2131502 2613332 147,230 1491814 7725219
Currency redignment FLr (39,766 (37,655 (111,284 (169,680) 8.299) (96,166) (462850)
Acquisition of business (Note 33) B £ ([533) - - 64,971 - - - 64,971
Additions hE 2,612 6,122 264,346 11,91 25,664 743,214 1,053,869
Transfers e 54,575 29,506 - 499,304 1318 (584,703) -
Transfer from exploration and BRI By
evaluation assets (Note 18) (F3t18) - - 21,268 - - - 21,268
Disposal/written-off HE /b - (1337) - (5,636) (617) - (7.590)
Depreciation and depletion EMfEREE
for the year (26,151) (74,692) (173,575) (163,741) (32,006) - (470,165)
A1 31 December 2018 Ho3-NETZAZH-B 60 8 2B QTSN B0 I 19470
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-R
Cost R 841,702 1,062,561 3,980,739 3,601,474 386,037 1,554,159 11,486,672
Accumulated depreciation, ZHIE BERAEE
depletion and impairment (195,555) (460,173) (1,777 491) (875,984) (252,747) - (3,561,950)
Net book value EEFE 646,147 602,388 2,203,248 2,785,490 133290 1,554,159 1924722
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e IR AR MR

(continued) (#)

16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16 Y%  BMERIZEE

(Note (ii))
Plant and Oil and gas (Note (i)  Construction
Buildings machinery properties Pipelines Others in progress Total
(&) (R &(ii))
=2 BERKS HREE EE At HRIR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Year ended 31 December 2019  BZ-ZE-hE+-f
=t-BLEE
At 1 January 2019 R=E-NE-A-R 646,147 602,388 2,203,248 2,785,490 133,290 1,554,159 1,924,122
Currency realignment ELEE (6,854) (5,924) 64,621 (32,519) (648) (10,947) 7,729
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34) K EMBR A (F3E34) (855) (10,049) - (23,929) (2,263) (154,783) (191,879)
Additions RE 40,556 135,221 212,892 234,497 25,452 185,572 834,190
Transfers s 52,282 28,267 - 192,331 1,262 (274,142) -
Transfer from exploration and EREDRNGIREE
evaluation assets (Note 18) (F3218) - - 17,105 - - - 17,105
Disposal/written-off HE /b - (3,686) = = (510) = (4,196)
Depreciation and depletion ERAERER
for the year (26,665) (80,102) (182,731) (165,013) (34,453) - (488,964)
Impairment loss HEER - - (30,395) - - - (30,395)
At 31 December 2019 RZIB-NETZA
=T-H 704,611 666,115 2,285,340 2,990,857 122,130 1,299,859 8,068,912
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+ZR
=t-8
Cost AR 924,691 1,182,399 4,320,517 4,014,360 396,946 1,299,859 12,138,772
Accumulated depreciation, 2iE BERNE
depletion and impairment (220,080) (516,284) (2,035,177) (1,023,503) (274,816) - (4,069,860)
Net book value FHFE 704,611 666,115 2,285,340 2,990,857 122,130 1,299,859 8,068,912
Notes: M 5
(i) Others mainly represent motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and (i) HhExEZRAE KM EERR

BRIANLNEER  FE@FED 5
#) /30,240,000 7 (= T — )\ F -
34,684,000 # 7r) - 30,124,000 # 7T
(=Z =& — )\ 4 :31,741,000 #& 7T)
¥ 61,766,000 & (= T — )\ F :
66,865,000 7T) °

equipment, and tool and moulds with net book values amounting
to approximately HK$30,240,000(2018: HK$34,684,000),
HK$30,124,000(2018: HK$31,741,000) and HK$61,766,000(2018:
HK$66,865,000) respectively.

FRN - SEREEREEEANEE
A% A8 97,632,000 7% L(= Z — )\ & -
101,017,000 70) ° fE E R AN IE H — %
BEOMEFHLEELR59%(=ZF— N
& :53%)&E ANt -
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(ii) During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting (ii)
to HK$97,632,000 (2018: HK$101,017,000) on qualifying assets.
Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its
general borrowings of 5.9% (2018: 5.3%).
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

The recoverable amount of oil and gas properties is determined at the
value-in-use using a discounted cash flow method and is assessed at the
cash generating units (“CGUs") level within the segment of “exploitation
and production of crude oil and natural gas”.

The Group regularly assesses market commodity prices, costs to carry
out planned drilling programs, drilling results, and reservoir performance
to determine if there are any indicators of impairment of the Group’s
assets.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s oil and gas properties is
designated Level 3 on the fair value hierarchy.

The key assumptions for the calculation are those regarding the
discount rates and expected changes in future oil prices. The expected
future oil prices for the next five years ranged from US$61.0 to US$69.5
per barrel (2018: US$58.6 to US$72.8 per barrel). Forecast benchmark
crude oil price assumptions tended to be stable because short-term
increases or decreases in prices were not considered indicative of
long-term price levels, but were nonetheless subject to change. The
Group used a pre-tax discount rates ranging from 8% to 20% (2018: 8%
to 20%) to discount future cash flows from the Group’s CGU(s). These
rates differed based upon classification of reserve type, commodity type,
timing of future development expenditures and operating burdens.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group determined that one of its CGUs
with the business segment of “exploitation and production of crude oil
and natural gas” has impairment indicator due to the decrease in the
commodity price forecast. As a result, impairment test was performed
for that CGU at 31 December 2019. Impairment loss of approximately
HK$30,395,000 was recognised during the year ended 31 December
2019.

As at 31 December 2019, a one percent increase in the pre-tax
discount rate would result in an impairment of approximately
HK$46,488,000(2018: HK$110,700,000), while a five percent decrease
in the forecast operating cash flows would result in an impairment of
approximately $63,176,000 (2018: HK$98,600,000).
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Bt : (AF)

(iii)
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17 Leases

0

e IR AR MR

(continued) (#)

17 #HE
Right-of-use assets () ERAEEE
Office
Land use and other
rights properties Total
BOAER
=+ b fF FHAE Hinyp et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2019 HR-=Z2—-—h&E—H—H - — _
Change in accounting policy SEREEE (H5E2)
(Note 2) 415,234 63,546 478,780
Restated total at 1 January R-ZE—-hF—HA—HBH
2019 ERIF S 415,234 63,546 478,780
Inception of lease contracts SIMNEEAYD 59,136 8,155 67,291
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34) H &K E A7 (M:E34) (13,367) - (13,367)
Depreciation (Note 9) I E (fFsr9) (12,429) (15,028) (27,457)
Exchange difference PEH =% (4,640) (1,417) (6,057)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-NF+=A
=+—H 443,934 55,256 499,190

The Group obtains right to control the use of office and other
properties for a period of time through lease arrangements.
Lease arrangements are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions
including lease payments and lease terms ranging from 1 to 50
years.

The Group also obtained the land use rights through lease
contracts with local governments in the PRC with 50 years
term.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, depreciation
of right-of-use assets has been charged in “Administrative
expenses”. The Group’'s lease expenses (see Note 9) are
primarily for short-term leases.

SEHELAHELHERSN — B
MEHRAEREMDEZ BE
MRER o T E R E B 2R
WEEEBENROGREES 8
EHEENREN F1E50F/IEH

S TR E R B BT RS R] A
HEAHNERSRHS0OFHLHE
R -

HE-_FT-—NWF+=ZA=+—H
LtFE FHREEEFEAITR
F Ik - SENHEEFRZ (K
HOXEREREHES -
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

17 Leases (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Lease liabilities

17 HWE (&)

iy HEEE

2019

—E-NF

HK$’000

FH&xT

At 1 January R—B—H =

Change in accounting policy (Note 2) 2R BEREH) (i F2) 67,756

Restated total at 1 January A—BA—HWEY&G 67,756

Inception of lease contracts FIMEEERN 8,155

Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note 10) HEasEMFEREZ (KE10) 3,252

Payment for lease liabilities (including interest) HEaBENR(BERNER) (17,889)

Exchange difference fEHE5 (400)

At 31 December R+=—HA=+—8 60,874
Amount due for settlement within 12 months PR12{E A NE BB /5008

(shown under current liabilities) GIRRBEEET) 12,761

Amount due for settlement after 12 months R12ME A& B B B H5RI8 48,113

60,874

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 4.2(c).

Short-term leases, low-value leases and not yet

commenced lease

As at 31 December 2019, the total future lease payments
for short-term leases and low value leases amounted to
HK$406,000. As at 31 December 2019, leases committed but

not yet commenced are relatively insignificant.
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4.2(c) °

HEABENIHSTRENHE

(i) EHEE EEEHERERMAR

HEE
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18 Exploration and evaluation assets

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

18 HERFFEEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Cost N

At 1 January Rn—A—H 182,981 215,189
Currency realignment =gk 4,114 (9,669)
Additions NE 3,050 4,380
Written off (Note 9) R (K EE9) (19,377) (5,651)

Transfer to oil and gas properties under HEEYE  WENERE
property, plant and equipment (Note 16) HTNHREE (ME16) (17,705) (21,268)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 153,063 182,981

Exploration and evaluation assets represent the Group’s costs of
acquiring licenses and interests in undeveloped lands in West Central
Alberta, Canada, which are pending the determination of proven
or probable oil and gas reserves. The costs are accumulated in cost
centers by well, field, or exploration area pending determination of

technical feasibility and commercial viability.

The technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting mineral
resource is considered to be determined when proven reserves are
determined to exist. A review of each exploration license or field is
carried out, at least annually, to ascertain whether proven reserves

have been discovered.

BREFEEEREERMEXM BB
BARPOMMAME LM E R
WHERA - BFEEEHRA ST RAH
RFEE - BREAKAE BB AR
RESRKARLRE  FEERME
BERITIE -

EEEFERARER FAREEER
WEMEEERNTHERBR/EETE - &
D EHE IR ESOm B TR
HRESCDHBRFTAME -
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

19 Land use rights

19 L ib{F A

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Net book value RHEFE
At 1 January R—H—H 415,234 456,458
Changes in accounting policy (Note 2) SRR EE (H5E2) (415,234) -
Restated total at 1 January R—A—BHEY @ - 456,458
Currency realignment BT = (25,426)
Additions NE - 3,886
Disposal & - (10,915)
Amortisation for the year (Note 9) F o (MEE9) - (8,769)
At 31 December HR+-—A=+—H - 415,234

From 1 January 2019, land use rights are reclassified to right-of-use
assets, see Note 17. Refer to Note 2 for details about the changes in

accounting policy.
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REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

20 Intangible assets 20 BILEE
Other
(Note) intangible
Goodwill assets Total
(FfFEE)
BE Hitt |\ EE Mst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET TAET
As at 1 January 2018 R=ZZE-NE—-A—H
Cost 3N 997,499 48,586 1,046,085
Accumulated amortisation SEtEy - (10,761) (10,761)
Net book value BRER(E 997,499 37,825 1,035,324
Year ended 31 December 2018 BZE-_E-N\E+=A
=t+—HLEEFE
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—HA—H 997,499 37,825 1,035,324
Currency realignment AR (58,694) (1,992) (60,686)
Additions NE - 3,080 3,080
Amortisation for the year (Note 9) FREHE (M) - (3,192) (3,192)
At 31 December 2018 R_ZE—-N\FE+-A=+—H 938,805 35,721 974,526
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZEBE-NE+=-A=+—H
Cost 3N 938,805 49,045 987,850
Accumulated amortisation BT - (13,324) (13,324)
Net book value BREFE 938,805 35,721 974,526
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_FE-hE+=A
=+—HLEEFE
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-AF—F—H 938,805 35,721 974,526
Currency realignment EHRE (2,854) (262) (3,116)
Additions NE - 1,668 1,668
Amortisation for the year (Note 9) FERNE (M) - (2,912) (2,912)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZRA=+—H 935,951 34,215 970,166
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+=A=+—-H
Cost 3N 935,951 50,281 986,232
Accumulated amortisation ZEtEy - (16,066) (16,066)
Net book value BREFE 935,951 34,215 970,166
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

20 Intangible assets (Continued)

Note:

Goodwill is allocated to a group of CGUs identified for sales and distribution
of natural gas and other related products business, which is also an operating
segment, representing the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is

monitored for internal management purposes.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to selling prices and direct costs during the year. Management
estimates a discount rate of 13.0% (2018: 13.6%) using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to this group of CGUs. The growth rate of 3.0% (2018: 3.0%) for the
next five years are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes

in the market.

The value in use calculations is derived from cash flow projections based on the
most recent financial budgets for the next 5 years approved by management.
Cash flows beyond 5-year period have been extrapolated using growth rates of
3.0% (2018: 3.0%) per annum, which is based on industry growth forecasts.
The Board considered no impairment loss is necessary as at 31 December 2019.

Since the carrying amounts of the group of CGUs are not sensitive to the

changes in assumption, no sensitivity analysis is disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investments accounted for using the equity 21

method

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position are as follows:

e M RRME

(continued) (#)

EREREARZRE

RIEEHMBERRNRERZ BT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FAT

Associates Bt 2 N A 369,629 296,922
Joint venture EEDE 9,194 15,832
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 378,823 312,754

The amounts recognised in the consolidated profit or loss are as RizEERRER2SBUOT ¢
follows:

2019 2018
ZE-hF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Associates /N 2,751 4,491
Joint venture aghE (6,387) (7,791)
For the year ended 31 December HE+_A=+—HLHFE (3,636) (3,300)
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

21

Interests in associates

Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

Nature of investments in associates, which are unlisted limited liability
companies, as at 31 December 2019:

21 FRAEREE

REBERXAER

RZE—NAF+ZA=+—8H R

ARZRE (&)

s 2%
)

RE(RIFLETERARREZMLE :

Percentage of

Country of interest held
Name Registered capital establishment Principal activities indirectly
BESE
=18 A E A BRI ZBEXR TEER EEASL
FEFHERMEERAMR A RMB20,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49%
("ZrBEEIR")
SEPHRSEIRER QA ARK20,000,0007T RAREE
(MR1wEEIR )
Sino Director Limited Us$10,000 BVI Investment holding 25%
(Note (a))
Sino Director Limited 10,0003 7T REBHRRES wEZER
(P 3E(a))
HEFORBRE BRI RMB 10,000,000 PRC Provision of IT services 50%
BRA A
BT HBERELSKMAR ARH10,000,0007T F RAITAR 5
NE
TEHEZBEXRARABR AR RMB80,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 20%
IEHEBERARBERLAF  AKYS80,000,000T RAREE
MR (BR)BR2A RMB80,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49%
(“rp il ") (Note (b))
FohiR (BR) BR2AA AR80,000,0007T A [ RAAREE
(T mE ) (Mt (b))
N OB R R B R A A RMB30,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 49%
(“EN R ") (Note (b))
EAN F S R SR A BR A A AR #30,000,0007T FE RAREE

(TR R 1) (B &£ (b))

166 CHINAOIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2019



21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Notes:

(a

(b)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group invested HK254,974,000 (2018:
HK$257,250,000) in Sino Director Limited with 25% equity interests
as an associate. The subsidiary of Sino Director Limited is the beneficial
owner of the mining rights granted by the local government authority of
the PRC. Sino Director Limited and its subsidiary are collectively regarded
as the “Sino Director Group”.

A business valuation was performed for the underlying assets of Sino
Director Limited. The recoverable amount is determined based on fair
value less costs of disposal using discounted cash flow method. The
key assumptions are discount rates, marketability and minority interest
discount rate, forecasted production volume and forecasted commodity
prices. Management estimates a discount rate of 11.1% (2018: 11.4%)
using a pre-tax rates that reflects current market assessment of time
value and the specific risks relating to the Sino Director Group.

The commodity price growth rate of 3.0% (2018: 3.0%) used in the
calculations is based on inflation growth forecasts. The Board considered
no impairment loss on the Group's total investment in associate is
necessary as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group determined that the recoverable
amount of Sino Director Limited amounting to approximately
HK$555,100,000 (2018: HK$595,175,000) exceeded its carrying value
amounting to approximately HK$300,126,000 (2018: HK$337,925,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group disposed its
51% equity interests in its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely 7 i &
= and % M F1 h, at aggregate cash consideration of approximately
RMB66,137,000 (equivalents to HK$75,396,000). The remaining equity
interests in both /1 jf B X and J# J & J& were then re-measured at
their fair value as of the date of disposal and accounted for using equity
method of accounting. For details, please refer to Note 34.

21

e M RRME

(continued) (#)

EREREARCZKRE (A

R N RS ()

fi 3

(a)

(b)

THRREEERAT 2019FF®R 167

RZE—-NAF+ZA=+—H £EE
[aSino Director Limited#® & 254,974,000
ot (=2 — )\ 257,250,000 7T)
A & B E Q7 K 25%K # © Sino
Director LimitedZ fif B A & &R B &
it AH B8 B AT 6 PT AT IR Y B BR A T A B
2 & %5 5 A ° Sino Director Limited &
H K} A A] %78 A Sino Directors= & | ©

Sino Director Limited®) 18 8 & &= B # 17
¥BHE -kEeENFERATRES
MEERBATFEREEKKREE - @
BREBRATEE mMBWEX - LEE
HRE -BAEERBAFTMRES -
EREFTRARMEMSEFHEEE
#F & 2 B 18 F| & KSino Directorfk @ 2
BERBRGAMBEERNIR(ZZE—N
F 1 11.4%) °

AEPRANEREBEEERE3O0N (=
T—\F :3.0%) HENBREEER -
WZE-NF+_A=+—H E=R
REEENBERAANERELEY
ERREERE -

R—ZE—-AFEF+-_A=+—HB &
# 7ESino Director Limited®y 8] U [a]
% %8 49 /555,100,000 t (= T — N\
& 15951750008 T) - R E K@
{8 #9 300,126,000 7 L (= T — )\ £ :
337,925,000/ 7T) °

REE-_FT—-hAhF+-_A=+—81
FE - EEXEH2EWBRE(H 5
A R KRN ) B 51 %A% A
IR S NRE RO ARYE6,137,0007T (1
& 175,396,000/ 7C) © 82 T HRE R K&
MNP EREZERNEERANA
FEEMHFTEWFEAEZSTEAR -
BTG  B2MWE34-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

21 Investments accounted for using the equity 21
method (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

None of these entities are currently considered material to the Group.
The aggregated financial information for associates which accounted
for using the equity method was as follows:

EREDREARZIRE (F)

REERRER (H)

ZEERENMENA/YEEBERX -
£ AR m fi\ﬁEE’JﬁﬁﬁA’\ﬂE%@ﬁﬂ%ﬁ
BT

2019 2018

—®-h%E —T-Nf

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

- Total assets - EEE 1,721,751 1,291,873

— Total liabilities -BaE (1,247,920) (939,240)

Net assets BEFE 473,831 352,633

Revenue - 112,003 101,834
Profit and total comprehensive income FEREN R 2EK S EE

for the year 9,243 11,191

There are no material commitments or contingent liabilities relating to
the Group’s interest in associates.

Interest in a joint venture

VEEEBENAECERSABZEM
ERAESLAAE -

R—EaghxER

2019 2018
—s-h% —E-N%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Share of net assets: JEIEEEFE :
At 1 January wn—A—H 15,832 24,435
Currency realignment B (251) (812)
Share of loss in a joint venture Eh—HeagtEEE (6,387) (7,791)
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H 9,194 15,832
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REPBHRRME

Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

Nature of investment in a joint venture, which is an unlisted limited
liability company, as at 31 December 2019:

EAER

(continued) (#)

ABRZBRE (&)

R—HEegEhLxER(HA)

RZBE-AF+TZRA=+—HB RE%
CERRELTARRARDKREZME -

Percentage of

Country of interest held
Name Registered capital establishment Principal activities indirectly
BERE
=2 EMER A= FTEXEK BHEEIL
B EE EREE AR AR RMB100,000,000 PRC Trading of coalbed methane ~ 35%
AR#100,000,0007T KEREE

The joint venture is currently considered not material to the Group.
The summarised financial information for the joint venture which

ABOEENBERRAYEEBEA -
ERERA AR A S LSS

accounted for using the equity method was as follows: M

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET

— Total assets -REE 586,228 613,761
— Total liabilities -BEE (559,960) (568,527)
Net assets BEFE 26,268 45,234
Revenue o 125,253 187,417
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FREE N 2 EEBARE (18,246) (22,260)

There are no material commitments or contingent liabilities relating to
the Group’s interest in the joint venture.

BERAESEABE -
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e BHRRME

(continued) (#)

22 Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

(i) Classification of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income comprise:

o Equity securities which are not held for trading, and
which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial
recognition to recognise in this category. These are
strategic investments and the Group considers this
classification to be more relevant.

J Debt securities where the contractual cash flows are
solely principal and interest and the objective of the
Group's business model is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

(ii)  Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive

22 AV EFARMEEZEKSE

ZHMBEE
() BATENARLDE LS

(i)

BEEZTRE

BRAFEFAEMGEE RS Z W
BEERE

e UWBEEENBRAES
REBCRYFHERETH
BEEFES LR B A
BROREES ZEEF
REEKRE  BEERA/L
DEEBMEBIE -

e AHNBRIABABE/IMNR
ERMEWNEBES  BE
BEBEANHEFTAKIRE
HReRENHEVBEE
M AER -

BATEFAHMEZEKEZR
r~RE

BRAFEFAEMEE RS Z K

income comprise the following investments: REEBFBUATERE
2019 2018
e —E-N\%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Equity securities: fE A 5
— listed in Hong Kong -BEL™ 79,341 108,946

On disposal of these equity securities, any related balance
within other reserves is reclassified to retained earnings.
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22 Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income comprise the following investments in listed and
unlisted bonds:

e M RRME

(continued) (#)

22 BAFEFAHMEEZEN S
ZHMBEE (&)

(iii)

BATEFAHMEZEREZE
BRE

BAFEFARMBEEREZE
BREBE T LM RIFLME
HFRE

2019 2018
—E-nE —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Debt securities: BEREESE
— listed in Hong Kong -BELE™m 60,554 99,356
— listed outside Hong Kong - BB BT 553,597 230,368
— unlisted - 3L 450 450
614,601 330,174

On disposal of these debt investments, any related balance
within the fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

During the year, the following gains/(losses) were recognised in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(iv)

REEZSEBRER RATE
AARMEEKERFEREANZEM
EHEREN Y BREES -

RESREMEEKRERRRAZ

FR TR (BR)ENER
REMEEEEPER -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Gains/(losses) recognised in other FHE 2 W A R
comprehensive income sk (&18) 17,614 (54,000)
Gains reclassified from other comprehensive %% A FEE A Hith 2 H
income to profit or loss on the sale of Wz BT AEKBEHM
debt investments at fair value through EKREEFDEEEE
other comprehensive income Z W= 5,281 2,097
Dividends from equity investments held B & A E At Y A SR Y
at fair value through other RERA AT AEAM
comprehensive income recognised in THWRFBE ZRAKRE
profit or loss in other income (Note 7) Z BB (MiEE7) 1,231 1,256
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

22 Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Financial assets pledged as security

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, no financial assets at FVOCI is
pledged to any banking facilities.

Fair value, impairment and risk exposure

Information about the methods and assumptions used in
determining fair value is provided in Note 4.4.

Debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive
income are considered to be low risk, and therefore the
impairment provision is determined as 12 months expected
credit losses. The Group has assessed that the expected credit
losses for these financial assets are not material under the 12
months expected credit loss method. Thus no loss allowance
provision was recognised as at the balance sheet date. For
details of the risk management, please refer to Note 4.2.

The carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income are denominated in the
following currencies:

22 Bz

(v)

(vi)

FEFAHEMEZE WS
ZMBEE (&)

ERAEAR2HBEE

R-F-NER-F-N\&F+=
A=+—8  BmRAFEFAR
ftrEREcMBEEERTE
ARITRE -

AVE WERAR
BEMEEATENEY 5 RBR
B E R BRI 4.4 -

BEAFEFAHEMZAKE ZE
HEHFHERABERR - F iR EE
EHERENREAEHEEBIEEE -
SEEREBENREABHEZEEIE
FEFEZEVBEEEZEHE
BEEBEBTEKN AL RE&EER
WEBEREREGERE -BHEER
BERZHE  #w2HME42

BRAFEFAEMGEE RS Z W
BEERMERATERE:

2019 2018

—2-nE —E-N\EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F# T

uss$ = 613,781 330,174
HK$ BT 80,161 108,946
693,942 439,120
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REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

Inventories 23 78
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Raw materials g 125,520 127,760
Work-in-progress EEIR 63,309 76,878
Finished goods and natural gas B n RRAR 74,021 78,139
262,850 282,777
Contract assets, deposits, trade and other 24 EHNEE K& BZRH
receivables 1t FE U 5K I
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-)N\HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Trade receivables (Notes (b) and (c)) Z 5 ek 78 (B 5E(b) M(c) 487,627 625,352
Contract assets (Notes (b) and (e)) S4B E (MaEb) X)) 106,821 109,210
Loan to an associate (Note (d)) BT — e A a () 767,649 695,486
Loans to third parties ERXFTE=H 22,400 22,600
1,384,497 1,452,648
Prepaid construction costs TER B A 177,767 141,719
Prepayment for acquisition of land use rights U 8 + (& FA #E T8 1< 3008 - 67,634
Prepaid natural gas costs SEENENAS =05 N 422,516 346,848
Prepaid material and equipment costs TR B R SR AR 219,147 197,092
Interest receivables from an associate FEU — B & A 78
(Note (d)) (B 3Ed)) 293,580 252,945
Amounts due from associates (Note (g)) JrE L Bk 2 N B 3R IE (B 3E(g)) 57,258 -
Consideration receivables (Note 34) FEWRE (W?M) 65,038 -
Other interest receivables H b U A 2 6,614 5,769
Other prepayments Hﬁﬁi‘ﬁﬁm 113,583 105,614
Note receivables e UL R 70,974 84,408
Other receivables H b fE U SRR 162,639 160,280
2,973,613 2,814,957
Less: Non-current portion W FERBNE D (1,195,673) (1,063,841)
Current portion ik 2k 2 1,777,940 1,751,116
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e I ERAR MR

(continued)

(%)

24 Contract assets, deposits, trade and other
receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Board considers that the carrying amounts of deposits, trade
and other receivables approximate their fair values as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables and contract assets. The Group has assessed that
the expected credit losses for these financial assets are not material.
Thus no loss allowance provision was recognised as at the statement of
financial position date. For details of the calculation of the allowance,
please refer to Note 4.2(b).

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets, and the Group’s exposure to credit risk and risk management
can be found in Note 4.2.

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60 to 90
days to its trade customers and keeps monitoring its outstanding
trade receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management of the Group.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as
follows:

BREE B BEERHE
ity P& W SR IE (48 )

B&E

(a)

(b)

HRTRERZEYTERN EFERRR
e HHREMEYGRAZ REES
HERAFEMBSE -

SERXAEBMBRELERFIR G
FATEEHEEEE  RMEESE
WHRERAGNEEFRZPEHER
BiE SEETEZEVBEENTER
FEEE «BYTEKR AL - R
AR L R B OHA I 4 A SR AT 0 S B
B BHABEHE LT B2HN
4.2(b) °

ERESREFERGHEEME - M
FEERGzEERRERRARBRER
AR ENHIEA2

ESEETHESEFZFHEESN
T60E0R 2 WA TET B E |k
BEZESREKZTIE SEaREEE
THEMBBHREZ &L -

REZFZAHMNE 5 EUGRIAEZ KRR
DT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—)N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT TFHT

Up to 3 months —EANA 440,707 552,984
3 to 6 months =Z=XEA 26,583 43,421
Over 6 months 7E A M E 20,337 28,947
Total A5t 487,627 625,352
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24 Contract assets, deposits, trade and other
receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Loan and interest receivables from an associate

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#&)

BHNEE RE EFZRH

ﬁﬂ FE WL R IE ()
B3 < (4)

(d ‘R -HEEEQRRERRFE

2019 2018

—E—hF T )N\F

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Loan to an associate ERT—HBE AT 784,649 708,486
Interest receivables from an associate FEM— B E R EFLS 296,940 256,945
1,081,589 965,431

Loss allowance EEEE (20,360) (17,000)
Total k) 1,061,229 948,431

On 23 September 2011, the Group entered into a loan agreement for
the construction of assets with Sino Director Limited, an associate,
with interest bearing at 6.2% per annum. On 1 January 2018, the
Group has renewed the agreement with the associate and the interest
rate has been revised as 8.5% per annum. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group's loan to Sino Director Limited amounted to approximately
HK$784,649,000 (2018: HK$708,486,000). The outstanding interest
amounted to approximately HK$296,940,000 (2018: HK$256,945,000).
Both the loan and interest receivables are repayable on demand.

Management considered that there was no significant increase in credit
risk among the loan to the associate, and therefore the impairment
provision is determined at 12 months expected credit losses. Applying
the expected credit risk model resulted in the recognition of a loss
allowance of HK$20,360,000 (2018: HK$17,000,000) as at 31 December
2019 for the loan and interest receivables from the associate and
impairment loss of HK$3,830,000 has been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to consideration
for gas pipeline construction and connection services completed but
not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

R-B——FHhA-+=H &£HHE
5% # /X 7JSino Director Limiteds] 7 &
FhmE(AREERR)  1K62% 2 F
%IﬂJrg cHRZTE—N\F—HA—H"
SEHEBERAREEBERFINEXRE
BERAE85% KR_ZTE—NLF+_A
:Jr* H - £ & [ASino Director Limited
12t B 34 784,649,000 8 T(= &
— )\ - 708486000}%73) REFE
#) % 296,940,000 8 T (= T — J\4F
256,945,0005% 7T) © ;Aﬁmuﬂz%m&ﬂ
BYBERBREE -

EEERE BENTHEQATEENE
= ﬂzﬁﬁmmi‘bu A3z 1218 A
TBHEEEBETRERE - KAEH
FEEREBEREHRA -_T-—AF+=
A=+—BREkEgE 23 &R LA
S R 3R 85 18 B 820,360,000 T (= &
— J\4 : 17,000,000 1) & RE ZE —
T-NhF+_A=+—"HLFE®ER
3818 5 183,830,000 7T °

(&) AHNAETIZHEKERANBEAHE
TRAARAREBEZERERRBER
RARENEFEER AHNEERZ
T8 M) P 7 AR A6 1 By 9 B = R ORROR -
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

24 Contract assets, deposits, trade and other BHRNEE e BSZRH
receivables (Continued) f’@ﬁ?ﬂlﬂl RIE (&)

Notes: (Continued) MizE : ()

(f) The carrying amounts of the deposits, trade and other receivables (f) e BHENEMERZIE(TEIER
(excluding prepayments and other tax recoverables) are denominated in - #18 Rz H AT Y [0 B 18 ) 2 BR T (E 1%
the following currencies: ATE¥E

2019 2018

—E-hE —E- )\

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

RMB ARE 1,791,537 1,736,466
CAD st 46,955 19,622
Others Hh 95,287 90,752
1,933,779 1,846,840

(99  The amounts due from associates are non-secured, interest-free and (9 EUHMEARRELAEIRE SENA
repayable on demand. RERER -

25 Time deposits, bank balances and cash 25 EHGER  CRITEHRKRERSE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cash at banks and on hand BITRFHERS 2,192,199 2,496,198
Short-term bank deposits EERITE R 624,590 170,704
2,816,789 2,666,902

Less: Time deposits with maturity over three 3 : 173X BB 238 = @ A &9
months EHER (295,590) (158,679)

Cash and cash equivalents e RIRSEEER 2,521,199 2,508,223

The interest rates for short-term bank deposits was approximately RHROTERNENENFL22%E

from 2.2% to 4.2% (2018: 2.9% to 4.2%) per annum. The deposits 42% (=T — N\ F : 2.9%j:4 2%) ° 17

have a maturity of ranging from 90 to 183 days (2018: 90 to 183 HEANTOBEEISBH(ZE—NF 90

days). HZE183H) °
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REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

25 Time deposits, bank balances and cash 25 EHER  HBITEHRKRRE
(Continued) (&

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash are amounts of
approximately HK$2,734,660,000 or RMB2,441,660,000 (2018:
HK$2,601,884,000 or RMB2,302,552,000) denominated in RMB
which are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion
of these RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the WERPEANMHIEIT - ZEARES
remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules B4 LR INE &% B A i fE &
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC SEBTHEKBNEMROINEEIERE
Government. EIE o

BITER BRITEBRRSH
2,734,660,0007% 7.8k A R #2,441,660,000
TT(ZZ— )\4F :2,601,884,0007% jr sk A
R #2,302,552,00070) 9 LA A R EEHE -

The carrying amounts of the time deposits, bank balances and cash THER ROTEHLRS 2EEEN

are denominated in the following currencies:

ToEEEHE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHEIT
RMB AR 2,734,703 2,605,104
us$ ETT 39,426 37,637
HK$ BT 40,220 23,497
CAD mit 2,017 664
Pound sterling HeE 423 _
2,816,789 2,666,902

26 Trade and other payables 26 EZRHEMENTKIE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FiHBT
Trade payables 2 5N IR 492,869 505,977
Construction cost payables JE AT IR RR AN 358,023 433,485
Interest payable FE AR B 141,453 58,330
Salaries payables AN 34,140 26,725
Other tax payables HAbfE R TA 17,127 6,670
Other payables and accruals H fth & 5108 R EET B A 245,444 384,730
1,289,056 1,415,917

EXZRRA BEHREMENREBEZE
EEREEQFERES -

The Board considers that the carrying amounts of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values.
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

26 Trade and other payables (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as

26

B RHEMWENFIEGE

REZZRHNESRNFBAZERD

follows: MranT
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Up to 3 months =EAURA 391,660 402,076
3 to 6 months —@AENEAR 39,850 40,910
Over 6 months ~E A A B 61,359 62,991
Total = 492,869 505,977

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables (excluding other
tax payables and salaries payables) are denominated in the following

B LREMENREBE(TEEEMEN
MARENHS)WEREENLTIER

currencies: =TE :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —TE—N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
RMB AR 1,102,733 1,217,902
HK$ &I 46,491 35,135
CAD i 88,565 129,485
1,237,789 1,382,522
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REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

27 Contract liabilities 27 EHEE
2019 2018
—ZE-h#EF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Receipt in advance for sales of natural gas HERXARMHEMBEBERZ
and other related products TEU R IE 1,442,725 1,356,955
Receipt in advance for connections MR BB 2 B IA
of gas pipelines 128,472 113,173
1,571,197 1,470,128
(a) The contract liabilities primarily relate to the payments received (a) AHABEBEFTEZEHHFEENRBERA
in advance for sales and distribution of natural gas and other RN CE AR BA B a2 2 TR R
related products, included the amount received from customers HER RECKREEFEAICES
using I/C cards amounting to approximately HK$1,042,815,000 < #) 5% 78 #91,042,815,000 7 7T (=
(2018: HK$867,423,000) not yet delivered to customers. =T — )\ 867,423,000/ 5T) 1B
Revenue is recognised when gas is used by customers. Below is EmAARTNTFER - W& DRE
the movement for the amount received from customers using I/ PERAMRERER U TAEKRE
C cards: PHEAICKRINHREBENES :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 867,423 883,205
Currency realignment TR (10,808) (48,837)
Payments received in advance B2 U 78 B 5,214,433 4,321,324
Redemption during the year FAEMD (5,028,233) (4,288,269)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 1,042,815 867,423
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27 Contract liabilities (Continued) 27 eHNEEBE(E
(b) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (b) BHEEHEBEZCEIRSE
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRIIWTIHAFEHEELELN G
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BEEBAMNEERKREZSEE -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Revenue recognised that was included in REYEFABHIB ELBRZ

the contract liability balance B RNz

at the beginning of the year
Sales and distribution of natural gas HERBEKRXAR &

and other related products H4th 18 B8 2 S 1,157,202 964,335
Gas pipeline construction and connection MR EEEZE R EERE

services 90,538 172,362
There is no revenue recognised during the current year related REEHMBEEBTFEDEEN
to performance obligations that were satisfied in prior years. EHEEBEBAMNE BRI -

(c) Unsatisfied contracts with customers () KREEREFEFENXN

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph SEEREETERNEERE
121 of HKFRS 15 to its fixed-price construction and connection HEAURHEERBERARK
contracts, as well as sales and distribution of natural gas and HMWEREGNERSENBHE
other products contracts, such that the information about ERFISHEEI2NBR 2 BRI 1TH#
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfied the B2t EmMEEETRITZER
remaining performance obligations under those contracts that BHHRA-—FHERNEHIE
had an original expected duration of one year or less is not TZRBENEARREEES
disclosed. a2 ER o
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28 Borrowings 28 BE

2019 2018
—ZE-h#EF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHET
Bank borrowings, unsecured |ITEE - BER 1,400,336 1,451,455
Other borrowings, unsecured HEiEs - mEH 34,944 68,026
1,435,280 1,519,481

Less: amounts due within one year classified & : D EARBEER —F R
under current liabilities E) 8 2 5B (1,408,814) (1,455,839)
Non-current portion MBS 26,466 63,642

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the

BENREEATIEESE LA T

following currencies and carried at the following interest rates: 5 R & 5B
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
RMB AR 1,055,970 1,284,268
CAD i 379,310 235,213
1,435,280 1,519,481
At fixed rates Eifa P 1,029,504 1,047,736
At floating rates )l | e 405,776 471,745
1,435,280 1,519,481
Weighted average effective interest rates IMEFHERF R K
(per annum):
— Bank borrowings - RITEE 4.0% 4.7%
— Other borrowings - HEmEE 5.9% 6.0%
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29 Senior notes 29 BEEEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
US$ denominated senior notes LAETFEZEERZR 5,411,161 5,029,991

On 11 November 2014, the Company issued senior notes, with
an aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,325,000,000) at par value (the “Senior Notes A"”), which bear
interest at 5.00% per annum and the interest is payable semiannually
in arrears. The net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance
costs, amounted to approximately US$296,900,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,300,975,000). The Senior Notes A will mature on 7 May 2020

and are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

On 11 April 2017, the Company issued senior notes, with an aggregate
nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,712,500,000)
at par value (the “Senior Notes B”), which bear interest at 4.625%
per annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears. The
net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to
approximately US$346,556,000 (equivalent to HK$2,685,809,000).
The Senior Note B will mature on 20 April 2022 and are listed on the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

On 25 July 2019, the Company issued senior notes, with an aggregate
nominal value of US$320,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,498,867,000)
at price of 99,373% (the “Senior Notes C"), which bear interest at
5.5% per annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears.
The net proceeds after deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted
to approximately US$315,932,000 (equivalent to HK$2,467,100,000).
The Senior Notes C will mature on 25 January 2023 and are listed on

the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
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29 Senior notes (Continued)

On 21 August 2019, the Company redeemed in full of the
outstanding aggregate principal amount of US$300,000,000 of
Senior Notes A before their maturity at a total redemption price of
US$303,750,000 (equivalent to HK$2,370,532,000), representing
101.25% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest,
by using part of the net proceeds from the offering of Senior Notes C.

On 4 November 2019, the Company issued senior notes, with
an aggregate nominal value of US$30,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$234,269,000) at par value, which bear interest at 5.5% per
annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears and
consolidated with Senior Note C to form a single class.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the senior notes amounted
to approximately HK$5,439,105,000 (2018: HK$4,876,916,000).
The effective interest is 5.92% (2018: 4.92%). The fair value of the
senior notes traded in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the date of the statement of financial position. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The senior
notes are within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

29

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

BEARE(E

R-ZE—-—AENBE-_+—H 27K
HEAMBREAIN D BEEELEEC
FIERBEFETHERELZBARE
3 N 4 48 58300,000,000% JT 42 0E @ (B
303,750,000 7t (#H55 #2,370,532,000/%
JT) © AL FER101.25% 00 FE 51 K ok f+F
FE o

R-ZZTE—NE+—ANB  AREEE
%17 R T 4218 /30,000,000 7T (FHE R
234,269,000 T) M E LA ZE - HEBF
55%i B BB EFFEIN  BELE
BCAB R E—%ER -

RZB-NAE+-_A=+—H BXE
B2 A F1EL 55,439,105,0008 T (==
— J\4F : 4,876,916,000/8 7T ) ° BB F &
A592%(ZF—\F 14.92%) - R
ERMBEECRBAEER 2 ATFERE
HBEMRREKBZMSERETE - KE
B IER RSN TR S
KR KA CTTESEER  RERD
R EMBRERE TS - BB R
BRELBENZABERATIMEBERS 2
EME28R ZSELEEWINAQT
BEE—EK-
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30 Deferred income tax 30

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes related to the same
fiscal authority.

iE 3E Fir 15 751

BB HEBABER TS ZERY
B KR B HC R M EE R 2B

2HGHE -

EEEAEARTEMNAKERRREE
HEMBRBABERE MEEMERY

KR — A IS BB

BESRBERE -

A1) 7] 7% 9 5E P S 3R

2019 2018

—E-AE —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

F&T FHT

Deferred tax assets FIEFTSEE (8,968) (7,646)
Deferred tax liabilities EEREHaR& 237,408 270,019
Deferred tax liabilities (net) EEFSHAE CFE) 228,440 262,373

The net movements in the deferred income tax account are as follows:

BIEFSHEP 2 B EFREMT ¢

2019 2018

Y W Er S~

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&ET FHT

At 1 January w—HA—H 262,373 255,563

Change in accounting policy (Note 2) FEBUREE (M5E2) (1,051) -

Restated total at 1 January R—A—BEE?BE 261,322 255,563

Currency realignment HHk TR 5,517 (14,763)
(Credited)/charged to consolidated RERAEZEA GEA) /%

profit and loss (Note 13) (BtsE13) (38,399) 21,573

At 31 December R+-—A=+—8 228,440 262,373
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30 Deferred income tax (Continued) 30 IEEET (&)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to FRELEFMSHREENBE(ER —F
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during BrlEEER &8 EEN) 2280 T -

the year are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets BEEFREHREE
Lease liabilities Asset retirement obligation Tax losses Total
HEEE BERRAR HEg#E ait
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Z2-Af ZE-\F ZB-pF CE-\E ZE-AfF R\ ZE-AF CE-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Thz TATL Thn THT Thn THT Thn THT

At 1 January ®—F-H - - (37,981) (35,186) (99,719) (103,072) (137,700) (138,258)
Change inaccounting € BXEH
policy (Note 2) (H32) (15,972) - - - - - (15,972) -
(15,972) - (37,981) (35,186) (99,719) (103,072) (153,672) (138,258)
Currency alignment S FE 115 - (873) 1,900 (1.899) 5,339 (2,657) 7,239
Creditedicharged) to AR R
consolidated profitor A/ (1)
loss 1517 - 4,852 (4,695) 14,076 (1,986) 20,445 (6,681)
At 31 December RTZA=1-R (14,340) - (34,002) (37,981) (87,542) (99,719) (135,884) (137,700)
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30 Deferred income tax (Continued) 30 IELEFTEH (&)

Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFEHREE
Accelerated tax depreciation
Right-of-use Assets and depletion Others Total
ERELE MEREREREH B At
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-1F “E-)\F “E-NfF “E-)\F “E-1f “E-)\F It 83 “E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR TR TR Thn TER T
At 1 January iz = - 372,569 358,254 21,504 35,567 400,073 393,821
Change in accounting €3 HREH
policy (Note 2) (Hz2) 14,921 - - - - - 14,921 -
14,921 - 372,569 358,254 21,504 35,567 414,994 393,821
Currency alignment % (104) - 8,448 (20,133) (170) (1,869) 8,174 (22,002)
(Credited)/charged to ~ RZABER
consolidated profitor (3t A) /%1%
loss (1,653) - (53,474) 34,448 (3,717 (6,194) (58,844) 28,254
At 31 December Rt=A=+-H 13,164 - 327,543 372,569 23,617 27,504 364,324 400,073

During 2019, deferred income tax liabilities to the extent of
approximately HK$26,655,000 (2018: HK$34,989,000) have not
been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries
because the Board considers that the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Such amounts are considered for permanent reinvestment.
Unremitted earnings totaled approximately HK$1,654,205,000 (2018:
HK$1,276,072,000) as at 31 December 2019 and HK$10,273,000
(2018: HK$7,929,000) has been recognised as deferred tax liability for
the withholding tax.
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30 Deferred income tax (Continued) 30 IRFEEFTIEH (&)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards B ESHEENRBORENZE SIS
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through AR AKREZRHRENEE A LR A
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2019, the BEEREEMER R_ZE—NLF+=
Group had unrecognised deferred tax assets for its tax losses of R=+—H &BZzRBRAELCHIESE
approximately HK$117,209,000(2018: HK$112,812,000) to carry EZHRIEEIEX117,209,0008 (=&
forward against future taxable income. All the tax losses will be — JUHF :112,812,0007% JT) BA 4% &4 &2 5R
expired within the next 5 years. RERMWALEHE - FREBIEEBEBR
TRERAFAER -
Assets retirement obligation 31 EEMEBEAIE
The movements in assets retirement obligation are as below: BERBAEZEESHNOT ¢
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
T T FHET
At 1 January Hn—A—H 140,678 130,311
Currency realignment TR 3,416 (7,036)
Acquisition of business (Note 33) W (5E33) = 557
Accretion (Note 10) A0 (BFEE10) 3,112 2,970
Site restoration expenditure 51018 = (3,448) (4,698)
Change in estimates and discount rate CHYSEES £ (2,221) 5,241
Provision for the year FRRE 6,307 13,333
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 147,844 140,678
Note: B EE
In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in Canada, the Group BENEXEBHAAURER SEEEER

is obliged to accrue the cost for land reclamation and site closures for the
Group's ownership interest in oil and natural gas assets including well sites
and gathering systems. The provision for asset retirement obligation has been
determined by the directors based on their best estimates in accordance with
the relevant rules and regulations.

SEROBERRARBEE(BE B RERR
N LFERERASHINRE - FEE
EREAENEACAESTUARSREMF
RERRBRBEBEMMAUNZERETE -
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32 MAKRBERE ZEE

32 Share capital, share option and share award

schemes
(a) Share capital (@) B=x
Number of
shares Amount
RGEE &5
‘000 HK$'000
Fh TR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & #%0.018 7T 2 & AR
Authorised shares EERG
At 1 January 2018, RZE-NF—A—H ZZ-N\F
31 December 2018, +-A=Z+—8 -ZZE-AFE—A—H
1 January 2019 and MZE-NF+=-A=+—H
31 December 2019 125,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid BEBITRERE
At 1 January 2018, RZE-NF—A—HB ZZ—N\F
31 December 2018 +ZA=+—HEZZ—NF
and 1 January 2019 —H—H 5,839,124 58,391
Share repurchases [i& 1) B [B] (72,080) (721)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZEBE—-HhE+-_A=+—H 5,767,044 57,670

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
repurchased 72,080,000 shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital
of the Company at prices ranging from HK$0.241 to HK$0.300
per share on the Stock Exchange.

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by the
shareholders on 23 November 2011.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its discretion
offer options to any eligible participant who is an employee,
executive or officer of the Company or its subsidiaries (including
executive and non-executive directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who
will provide or have provided services to the Company or its
subsidiaries.
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32 Share capital, share option and share award
schemes (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of the
issued shares of the Company from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in any 12
month-period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the date of offer of an option.

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 21 days
after the date of the offer, with a consideration of HK$1 for the
grant thereof. Exercise period in respect of the options granted
shall be determined by the Board and in any event such period
of time shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date upon which such option is deemed to be granted and
accepted.

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the official
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of an option; (b)
the average of the official closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of an
option; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years from 23
November 2011.
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32 BARBRE KBTS
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(b)
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32 Share capital, share option and share award 32 RARBRRE B E

schemes (Continued) (%)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b) HEERESTE(E)
On 22 January 2016, in order to motivate and reward the N-E—XRNE—HA=-+=-8 ' A%
Company'’s staff, the Company had granted to certain eligible B REBATIEL AREMAESR
participants of the Company share options to subscribe for an TEER2EEREITRESG H
aggregate of 100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 100,000,000 f% ~ &) B A & &= i% &
in share capital of the Company. The share options shall be BOOB Lz T RRMBRE - B
exercisable in the following periods: ARBER R TP HAE AT
—  30% of the share options are exercisable from 22 January - 0% S RN — T — N\ F

2018 to 21 January 2026; —AZ+ZREZZFT=AF

—A=-+—BAFI7

—  30% of the share options are exercisable from 22 January - B30%MEERENR T - EF
2019 to 21 January 2026; and —AZ+ZREZZT=AF

—AZt+—BAETFIE R

- the remaining share options are exercisable from 22 - EBREN-_ZE _ZF—
January 2020 to 21 January 2026 A+ -—BE-_ZT - F—

A=-+—HAF11{F

(i)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of () BIRENEERINEFIEGT
the share options are as follows: EEWT :
2019 2018
“E-NF —T-N\F
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
TfEE BREZE @ BREZE
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ '000
BT T4 BT Fin
Outstanding at 1 January R—A—BEKRTE 0.46 86,560 0.46 100,000
Exercised during the year FANITE - - 0.46 (13,440)

Outstanding at 31 December M+=-A=+—H
HARITE 0.46 86,560 0.46 86,560
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32 Share capital, share option and share award
schemes (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

(ii)

The following table discloses details of the
Company’s share options held by employees as at
31 December 2019:

(continued) (#)

32 RARBRE REGE

(#4&)
(b)  HE RS 8 ()
(i) TEREEAR=F—NE

ToA=F—HFFRAE
KREZFIE -

Exercise Outstanding at
price 31 December
Date of grant per share Exercise period 2019
R-B-h#F
+t=ZA=+—8H
R HH BROEE TS 8 R AT
HK$
BT
Employees 22 January 2016 0.46 22 January 2018 to 21 January 2026 16,560
== —E-RF—A —Z-N\F-RAZ+ZHZE
—+=H —E-XF—A=+—H
22 January 2016 0.46 22 January 2019 to 21 January 2026 30,000
—ZET-R¥—A —E-NEFE-—A=Z+ZHZE
~—+=H —EZRF—-AZ+—H
22 January 2016 0.46 22 January 2020 to 21 January 2026 40,000
—E-RE—A —_E_TFE-AZ+ZHZE
—+=H —E-RF-RB=Z+—H
Total
mEt 86,560

The fair value of the options granted in 2016
determined using the binomial option pricing model
was approximately HK$0.127, HK$0.148 and HK$0.171
per share respectively. The significant inputs into the
model were share price of HK$0.455 as at the grant
date, exercise price as shown above, volatility of 40.99%,
40.97% and 42.56%, expected life of options of seven
and six years, and annual risk-free interest rate of 0.993%,
1.056% and 1.184% respectively. The volatility measured
at the standard deviation of expected share price returns
is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s share
price over a period of eight, seven and six years before
the date when the options were granted.
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32 Share capital, share option and share award
schemes (Continued)

(9]

Share award scheme

On 4 November 2011, the Board approved the adoption of a
share award scheme (the “Restricted Share Award Scheme")
with the objective to recognise the contributions by eligible
employees within the Group and to give incentives in order to
retain them for their continuing operation and development
and to attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group.

Pursuant to the rules relating to the Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Scheme Rules”), shares are comprised of (i) shares
subscribed for or purchased by the Company and delivered
to the Trustee appointed by the Company (Note 38(c))
subsequently; or (ii) the Trustee out of cash arranged to be
paid by the Company out of the Company’s funds to the
Trustee and be held on trust for the relevant eligible grantees
until such shares are vested with the relevant eligible grantees
in accordance with the Scheme Rules (“Restricted Shares”).
The Board implements the Restricted Share Award Scheme
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme Rules including
providing necessary funds to the Trustee to purchase or
subscribe for shares up to 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

Under the Restricted Share Award Scheme, the Restricted
Shares are granted to eligible employees of the Company or
any one of its subsidiaries for no consideration but subject
to certain conditions (including but not limited to, lock-up
period) to be decided by the Board at the time of grant of the
Restricted Shares under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.
The Restricted Share Award Scheme will remain in force for 10
years from the date of adoption.

The Restricted Share Award Scheme operates in parallel with
the Share Option Scheme. All options granted under the Share
Option Scheme continue to be valid and exercisable subject to
and in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
respectively.
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32 Share capital, share option and share award
schemes (Continued)

(0

Share award scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board may, from time to
time, at their absolute discretion select the eligible grantees
after taking into account various factors as they deem
appropriate for participation in the Restricted Share Award
Scheme as a grantee and determines the number of Restricted
Shares to be awarded. The Board shall cause to pay the
Trustee the purchase price and the related expenses from the
Company’s resources for the shares to be purchased by the
Trustee.

The Trustee shall hold such Restricted Shares on trust for the
eligible grantees until they are vested. When the relevant
eligible grantee has satisfied all vesting conditions specified by
the Board at the time of making the award and become entitled
to the Restricted Shares, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant
Restricted Shares to that grantee.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited. The forfeited shares
are held by the Trustee of the Restricted Share Award Scheme
who may award such shares to other awardees as instructed by
the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 1,180,000 (2018:
30,860,000) Restricted Shares have been awarded to employees
without vesting condition.
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32 Share capital, share option and share award

schemes (Continued)

(9]

Share award scheme (Continued)

Details of the Restricted Shares awarded during the year

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

32 RARBRE RBE

(#)

(0

B 13 22 B &1 B (A7)
F R REER G T 15

BHE_Z-N&+-HA=+—H
LEFE

Number
of shares Fair value

Date of award awarded per share Vesting period
KB REROEE SBREOATE SR

HK$

BT
Employees
(==
3 May 2019 1,180,000 0.41 Without vesting condition
—E-NHFERAZ=H BB
For the year ended 31 December 2018: HE-_ZEZ-N\E+=-HA=+—H

IEFE -
Number
of shares Fair value

Date of award awarded per share Vesting period
& HH REROGBE BREROATE SRS

HK$

BT
Employees
(=]
7 May 2018 860,000 0.60 Without vesting condition
—E-N\ERALEH e R
Employees
E&
19 December 2018 30,000,000 0.56 Without vesting condition

—E-N\F+ZRATNH

As at 31 December 2019, there was no outstanding share
awards granted to employees (2018: same).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Trustee acquired
under the Share Award Scheme 53,640,000 ordinary shares
of the Company through purchases on the open market with
a price range of HK$0.54 to HK$0.65 per share at a total cost
(including related transaction costs) of HK$29,030,000 which
was credited to shares held for Share Award Scheme account

of the Company as an equity component of the Company.
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33 Acquisition of business

Effective from 30 August 2018, the Group has completed a business
acquisition consisting of oil and gas assets in West Central Alberta,
Canada from an independent third party at cash consideration
of CADS8,627,000 (approximately HK$52,193,000). The Group
commenced to account for the business combination from the
effective date when the Group gained control over the business. The
gain on bargain purchase amounted to approximately HK$12,221,000
was attributable to the acquisition. Details of net assets acquired and
gain on bargain purchase are as follows:

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

33 BB

BE-Z-NENA=1THE EEZTK
W RBUEZETHESKRE -
W B IE e KA ERAE A 758 H
REE B2 RE 58,627,000 T (4
52,193,000/ 7T) &£ & & 4 % 3 Hi (&)
SERSHEKNESER AR E
AR o Bz UE M 8% 15 % B Wk s
U 2§ #912,221,000/8 7T - B WE B EF
BREEBERBREFBOT

HK$'000
FHET
Total cash consideration #wEeNRE 52,193
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired Fr Rl Al EERATREAED
and liabilities assumed ERALE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) M - B KR ERE (MEE16) 64,971
Asset retirement obligation (Note 31) & e R A E (M RE31) (557)
Total identifiable net assets A#pFAERE 64,414
Gain on bargain purchase (Note 8) HEWE NS (HEE8) 12,221

Acquisition related costs were not significant and have been
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$7,260,000 and net
profit of HK$2,420,000 since the date of acquisition to 31 December
2018, if the acquisition has occurred on 1 January 2018, consolidated
pro-forma revenue and profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
would have been HK$40,535,000 and HK$26,620,000 respectively.

HRAKBRAYTEXAEBRE T
—NF+_A=+—RIEFEZHEAR
T 2 5% A B9 97 BB SR B o

BEMBEBAEREE_"FT-NF+_-A
ST-B FMUBXRBEMEXRSE
7,260,000 /& 7T K #% ¥ 2,420,000 /% 7T -
MEBEEER =T \F—A—R#
T BE-FT-N\F+ZA=1T—-HL
FEGEHBEEEXREREMNED R R
40,535,000/% 7T }226,620,000/8 T °
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34 Disposal of subsidiaries

34 HEWB QT

On 15 November 2019 and 4 December 2019, the Group entered
into sale and purchase agreements with an independent third
party, pursuant to which the independent third party agreed to
purchase, and the Group agreed to sell, 51% of equity interests in
i g = and 8 1 & Sl at cash consideration of RMB45,431,000
(approximately HK$51,690,000) and RMB20,706,000 (approximately
HK$23,706,000), respectively.

The transactions were completed in December 2019 resulting gains
on disposal of approximately HK$9,690,000 and HK$7,223,000,
respectively.

The following table summarises the consideration received for the
disposal of subsidiaries and the amounts of the identifiable assets and

RZE—hF+—A+ARBER=ZZ—A
F+ZAMA SEHR-—EBIFE=-FH
FIVEEHE B BUYF=FRE
BEREERELERP HE R &M
FHMS1%EE BReREIAAR
# 45,431,000 7T (4951,690,0007% 7T) & A
R #20,706,0007T (4923,706,0005% 7T ) °

ZERGER_ZE—AFE+ A=K
E A& Wz 9 Bl #99,690,0007% T &
7,223,000/ 7T ©

TREIIRLENB QR KRIMNRE
EREERHMEENTRNEERE

liabilities disposed of at the disposal date: Eew
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FH&xT
Cash consideration received BUWESNKE 10,358
Consideration receivables (Note 24) FEURAB (BE5E24) 65,038
Fair value of equity interest as of the date of disposal R E BB RERTE 72,440
147,836
Less: Assets and liabilities disposed of: W BEHEEERAE:
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) - W% BEREE(HiE1e) 191,879
— Right-of-use assets (Note 17) - EREEE (ME17) 13,367
- Inventories -FE 809
- Deposits, trade and other receivables e BIHREMEIZIE 33,451
— Tax recoverable — AT Yz B % 18 9,197
— Cash and cash equivalents -RekRE&FEIEE 6,942
— Trade and other payables - B 5 LA MERNRIE (115,162)
— Contract liabilities -aHEE (2,003)
- Tax payable - BRI (3,364)
Net asset value BESFE 135,116
Add: Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of o0 s e B B A B A R I BE
subsidiaries 4,193
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) HEME R E 2 W (MEES) 16,913
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34 Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) 34 HEWB AR (&
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries BRATERNBRARZRERESTHT ¢
is as follows:
2019
—E-hF
HK$’000
FTERT
Cash consideration received BB NRE 10,358
Less: Cash and cash equivalents included in the disposal of & : st AL EHB AT RS RES
subsidiaries £{EIEE (6,942)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in the cash st AREBEEBFABELSRENE SN
flows from investing activities ReEFEEARAFHE 3,416
35 Cash flow information 35 REREEH
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net AEHIN S TRFREEBEFEND T K
debt for each of the years presented. ERFENES -
Net Debt 2019 2018
B FE —E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEER 2,521,199 2,508,223
Borrowings — repayable within one year BEE -FER—FRNERE (1,408,814) (1,455,839)
Borrowings — repayable after one year BE -ER—F1EER (26,466) (63,642)
Senior notes — repayable after one year BREE -ER—FKEE (5,411,161) (5,029,991)
Lease liabilities HEARE (60,874) -
Net debt BB FE (4,386,116) (4,041,249)
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEEE 2,521,199 2,508,223
Gross debt - fixed interest rates BEI5EsE - BT A= (6,501,539) (6,077,727)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BEISERE - FHA X (405,776) (471,745)
Net debt B8 (4,386,116) (4,041,249)
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

35 Cash flow information (Continued) 35 WREREER(F)
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
AthEE HETBELMNER
Senior
Cash Borrowings Borrowings notes
and cash due within due after due after Lease
equivalents 1 year 1 year 1 year liabilities Total
R-5#
BeRRe R-ER R-5#% il
SEER HENEE HENEE BERE HERR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAL ThEL ThEL THEL TAL
Net debts as at 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-f-HZ
BEFE 2,290,447 (689,258) (60,000) (5,024,752) - (3,483,563)
Cash flows Reig 325,095 (786,142) (10,460) 241,703 - (229,804)
Finance costs YHEH - (54,456) (3,361) (246,942) - (304,759)
Reclassify from non-current to curent  EIERBEH D EERE - (7,200) 7,200 - - -
Foreign exchange adjustments NGE = (107,319) 81,217 2,979 - - (23123)

Net debts as at 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1t-H

LERFE 2,508,223 (1,455,839) (63,642) (5,029,991) - (4,041,249
Change in accounting policy (Note 2) ~ ®EFHEEH (i) = - = = (67,756) (67,756)
Cash flows RenE 37,871 106,239 40,046 (73,208) 17,889 128,837
Inception of lease contracts REEANFERE - - - - (8,155) (8,155)
Finance costs BHER - (61,896) (3,183) (307,962) (3,252) (376,293)
Foreign exchange adjustments MNERE (24,895) 2,682 313 - 400 (21,500)

Net debts as at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=1-H
LERFE 2,521,199 (1,408,814) (26,466) (5,411,161) (60,874) (4,386,116)
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36 Commitments 36

(a)

(b)

Operating leases

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from 1 year to 20 years.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)
TR
(a) KEHSE

SERBEKEHERHHERS
DMRYE - HEMENEALE
BN T1ERE20F 2HAE -

RZZTE-hE+ZA=+—B &
BRESAMELLHEDHNE
NHORKKERENHERNT :

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Land and buildings expiring: R TFIHAR B8 4 2
EF:
Within one year —FR - 18,763
After one year but within five years —FRERFRN - 38,918
After five years AF% - 29,632
- 87,313

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use
assets for these leases, except for short-term and low-value
leases, see Note 17 for further information.

Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments outstanding

BE-Z-NAF-A—B# £E3
ZEHERRERREE - HEH
REEBEMRERI  E—HERF
2H M7

(b) EAFEIRE

SERPBMRARBEALTR

not provided for at the date of statement of financial position: BB RBEITE RAE
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZZ-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Contracted but not provided for: EEHESER ST
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEMEE 94,396 127,140
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37

38

Related party transactions

As at 31 December 2019, the Company was indirectly owned by
Sino Best International Group Limited (“Sino Best”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") which in turn was
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman and
executive director of the Company, as to approximately 25.9%. The
remaining 74.1% of the Company’s shares were widely held. Mr. Xu
Tie-liang and other directors of the Company are considered to be
related as they are members of the key management personnel of the
Company.

Transactions with key management personnel

The directors of the Company are considered as key management
personnel of the Group. The remuneration of the key management
personnel is determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends. Details of
the remuneration paid to them are set out in Note 12.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

37

38

BEALRS

W-_ZE—-AE+-_A=+—8 28 H
FPREREEBRARA(HFREER] (R
EEARARS((RBHERANE D
MM AR BAREERBITES
FHRRAE2EER A AEREAY
25.9% ° A A H 2 741%0% 0 1% B2 i
B oM RAERDRIEMEZEH AR
RIXTZEBRABEMBERAARMEEA
j: °

HIEEEBEAEBNXRS
RAEEHREREEATIEEREAR -
REBABZME I HFEMEZE SRS

BEMALZRRAERTEBEHRETE -
NFZEALZMEFBEHNMEI2 -

FTEMBLARZEHER
BER B

(a) EEMBAAFBOT

Place of incorporation/
establishment and kind of

Nominal value of

issued share capital/

Percentage of equity

Name legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EMERL BRTRAEE/
£ RUBHREEERER HMER AREEREED TEER
Directly Indirectly
Hix 5k
Profaith Group Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
enterprise
ERERREE IEEELE (B REER
All Praise Investment BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 100.0% - Investment holding
Limited enterprise
ERERREE IEBELE (B3 REER
China il And Gas Group ~ BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 100.0% - Investment holding
Limited enterprise
TEREEEERDE EREAREE NEEELE (EY REER
China Qil And Gas Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Management Limited foreign-owned enterprise
THRRERERRR  BE NEBEGE VBT REER
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38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 38 FEMBARIRZEFIGEE

Investment Group
Company Limited

enterprise

controlled structured entities (Continued) B HFE(E)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: () ETEMEBATFEBWOT : (&)
(Continued)
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and kind of  issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EHAL/ BRARARE/
£ RUBHREEERER AMEx ARAEEREED TEEXR
Directly Indirectly
EE &
Alta Financial Holdings BVI, Wholly foreign-owned Us$1,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Limited enterprise
BFeREEIERRF  REARRES NEEELE 1,000%7T REER
Zhongda Industrial Group ~ BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$10,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Inc enterprise
BRIXEEARNA  RBERARES NEEELE 10,000% 7T REER
China Oil And Gas Group ~ Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
(Asia) Limited foreign-owned enterprise
TRRRER (TGN AR FE NEBELR il RE R
NG|
Hong Kong China Oil And  Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Gas Group Limited foreign-owned enterprise
EATAMASEERAR &% MEBEELE ik RE R
Accelstar Pacific Limited ~ BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$50,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
enterprise
REAARER HEBELR 50,000% 7T REER
Plentigreat Holdings BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$10,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Limited enterprise
REAARER HEBELR 10,000% T REER
Vast China Group Limited ~ BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
enterprise
REARRES HEBEELE E3e REER
Sino Invent Holdings BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Limited enterprise
KEARRES JMEBEELE [Ee REER
China City Natural Gas PRC, Wholly foreign-owned RMB1,000,000,000 - 51.0% Investment holding and

trading of natural gas

("CCNG")

PR RMRRE ENEBALR N RARRRARREER
SEERAA 1,000,000,0007
L:LES
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38 FEMBELRRTIESESE
ERCHFIB(E)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a)
(Continued)

TEMBEBLARFBOT : (F)

Nominal value of
issued share capital/

Place of incorporation/

establishment and kind of Percentage of equity

Name legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
FMERL/ BRTRAER/
£ RUBEREEERERN AfEx AREEREE DL TEER
Directly Indirectly
H# &

FHEFHRFBBEMARF PRC, Limited liability company RMB65,874,000 - 40.8%(i) Trading of natural gas, gas
pipeline construction and
operation of natural gas
stations

HE - BREEAT ARE AAREE AAREERE
65,874,0007C RARRRMEE

EBEFIMBEELZETR PRC Limited liability company RMBA44,000,000 - 40.8%(i) Gas pipeline construction

BREMLA
HE - BREEAT ARE RAREBRE
44,000,0007T

EEPHEERAR PRC, Limited liability company RMB20,800,000 - 40.8%(i) Trading of natural gas

HEBRAR
HE - BREEAT ARE AAREE
20,800,0007T

EERHELZAERAT  PRC, Limited liability company RMB900,000 - 40.8%(i) Trading of natural gas-
related equipment

PE BEREALH AR 900,000 AAREBREEER

BERHRFABELAT PRC Limited liability company RMB100,000,000 - 30.6%() Trading of natural gas and

gas pipeline construction
HE - BREEAT ARE AREERAAREERE
100,000,0007T

BN RRAIERET LA PRC, Limited liability company RMB50,000,000 - 40.8%(i) Trading of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction

HE - BREEAA AEE ARREERAAREERE
50,000,0007T

ERMHRAARELRT PRC, Limited liability company RMB25,000,000 - 50.5%  Trading of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction

HE - BREEAA AEE ARREERAAREERE
25,000,0007T
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38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and

controlled structured entities (Continued)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

38 ERBﬁJﬁ

(continued) (#)

ANRZEHEE

25 ()

(a) FEMBAAFBENOT : (&)

(Continued)
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and kind of  issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
MR BRARARE/
£ RUBHREEERER AMEx ARAEEREED TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
HREREMEARELARF PRC, Limited liability company RMB45,000,000 - 30.6%(i) Natural gas transmission
through pipeline
HE - EREEAR AR EERARRRZ
45,000,0007T
ZMNPHREERELAR PRC, Limited liability company RMB100,000,000 - 51.0% Trading of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction
HE - BREEAR N AARBERRAREERE
100,000,0007C
BLEERRRER PRC, Limited liability company RMB12,000,000 - 40.8%(i) Trading of natural gas
AT
HE AREARA AR H#12,000,0007C AAREE
REEEDT (KE) PRC, Limited liability company RMB75,000,000 - 100.0%  Transportation services
BRAT
HE ARAEARA AR H#75,000,0007C B&RE
ERTATEMRT PRC, Limited liability company RMB32,000,000 - 51.0%  Natural gas transmission
BRAR through pipeline
PE ARAEARA AR #32,000,0007C BEXARG R
ZMPBEGRAR PRC, Limited liability company RMB111,000,000 - 47.1%(i) Gas pipeline design and
BRELE construction, natural gas
transmission through
pipeline
HE - EREEAR AE111,000,0007 AAREERARRE B8
RARBEA
PPOAMAEREEART PRC, Limited liability company RMB20,000,000 - 35.7%(i)) Trading of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction
hE ARAEALA AR #20,000,0007C AAREERAAREERE
HiEEE (R HaRE  PRC, Limited liability company RMB71,000,000 - 51.0%  Investment holding
YN
hE AERAEARA AR H#71,000,0007C REER
itk mrAAREMTRA PRC, Limited liability company RMB67,910,000 - 35.7%(i) Trading of natural gas and
gas pipeline construction
TE AERAEARA AR H#67,910,0007 AAREERARAREERE
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TENBRARZEFER
BREZH5E)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 38

controlled structured entities (Continued)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(a) FEMBAAFBEOT : (F)

(Continued)
Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of
establishment and kind of issued share capital/ Percentage of equity
Name legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/ BRARARE/
£ RUBEREEERERN HMER ARAEEREES TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE BE3
sk REERAT AR AR PRC, Limited liability company RMB2,000,000 - 35.7%() Trading of natural gas
PR EREELT AR H2,000,0007C AAREE
RERFMARREREM PRC, Limited liability company RMB75,000,000 - 35.7%(i) Trading of natural gas and
/NS gas pipeline construction
PE BEREALT AR H75,000,0007C AAREERANREERE
BERHFREEMIER PRC, Limited liability company RMB50,000,000 - 40.8%(i) Gas pipeline design and
NG construction
PE EREELT AR H50,000,0007 AAREERA 2R
MR2EMFERAF  PRC, Wholly foreign-owned HK$187,500,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding,
enterprise construction of natural
gas stations and trading
of natural gas
RECEBENE 187,500,000/ T REBR - RARURERK
ZEHHRRER LA PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB18,000,000 - 80.4%  Trading of natural gas and
joint venture gas pipeline construction
HE PN ERELE AR #18,000,0007 FARBERRAREERE
RARRREEE PRC, Wholly foreign-owned US$75,000,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
ERAR (RIETBIME  enterprise
(ER)REBRAR)
hENEBELE 75,000,000% 7 RERR
BREEBEREFRARF PRC Limited liability company US$26,981,000 = 100.0%  Provision for finance
PE EREELT 26,981,000% ¢ REBE
HEERREMERRAA PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB170,000,000 - 100.0%  Provision for finance
joint venture
HE A ERELE AR H170,000,0007C REME
B HRRARALAR PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB40,000,000 - 38.8%(ii) Trading of natural gas and
joint venture gas pipeline construction
PE PNRERERE AR H#40,000,0007C AAREERANREERE
EFRRETTEREMRSE PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB26,000,000 - 60.4%  Trading of natural gas and
BRRE joint venture gas pipeline construction
PEPNRERELRE AR #26,000,0007 AAREERANREERE
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e M RRME

(continued) (#)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 38 IEWJE’“ REZEZEHER

controlled structured entities (Continued) 2 (E)

TEMBEBLARFBOT : (F)

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a)
(Continued)

Nominal value of
issued share capital/

Place of incorporation/

establishment and kind of Percentage of equity

Name legal entity registered capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
EHAL/ BRARARE/
£ RUBHREEERER AMEx ARAEEREED TEEXR
Directly Indirectly
EE &
BRTAMAEREMLAR PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB15,000,000 - 75.0%  Trading of natural gas and
joint venture gas pipeline construction
TE PNRERELE AR H#15,000,0007C AAREBERAAREERSE
SEBTIRARA PRC, Sino-foreign equity RMB284,400,000 - 51.0% Trading of natural gas and
joint venture gas pipeline construction
TE PNRERELE AR #284,400,0007T AAREBERAAREERE
Baccalieu Energy Inc. Canada CAD 141,040,000 - 100.0%  Exploitation and distribution
of crude oil and natural
gas
mex 141,040,000 7 RREERSBRERRAR
Notes: M aE -
(i) The Group holds controlling interests in these subsidiaries (i) ;%ﬁi@%*ﬁsm%%éﬂ@ﬁﬁ%

(ii)

(iii)

through a 51.0% owned subsidiary, CCNG. Therefore the
Group has control over these entities and they are considered as
subsidiaries of the Company.

The Group holds controlling interests in this subsidiary through
CCNG and a wholly owned subsidiary, Hong Kong China Oil
and Gas Group Limited (“HKCOGG"). Therefore the Group has
control over this entity and it is considered as subsidiary of the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

REFHFRFEZSH B AR
TW&T“/WI&E SEEEZF
BRI ﬁﬁuxﬁg 2 WA
RAANMHMER

iy HKEEBPHPELZEMER
AAEABPHEMREBRARRF
(TEEPRRRDFEZWE R
AR o B REEAZ
EREHE MZEBRER/A
BB AR

(i) BEERR LRFANAFMEBA
ﬂiﬁgﬁgzﬁﬁfﬁiﬁjﬂﬁﬁl
BEFEEASD EFR
REHEMHE R TZ%'I%@%E,@(
RIBILEK °
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e BHRRME

(continued) (#)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled structured entities (Continued)

(b) Set out below are the summarised consolidated

38 FEMBELRRTIESESE
ERCHFIB(E)

(b) MATEIAFMPRRENEQR (B

financial information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that EHEEMESBERZIEERE
have non-controlling interests that are material to the BRIGEMBERBE - THRER
Group. The information below is the amount before AANTIEYHEAI 2
inter-company eliminations:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Total assets BEE 9,463,084 8,906,970
Total liabilities waE (4,924,828) (4,759,378)
Net assets BEFE 4,538,256 4,147,592
Revenue - 8,362,333 7,577,665
Profit for the year F W A 692,409 649,997
Other comprehensive loss Ht2HEEE (44,336) (152,952)
Total comprehensive income THW=LLRE 648,073 497,045
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests Sz < J& & T JE 1 iR i 25 99,420 126,605
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

(continued) (#)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 38 FEMBARIRZEFGEHE
controlled structured entities (Continued) ERCEEE)

(b) Set out below are the summarised consolidated (b) UTEFIEmERELMEAT (F
financial information of CCNG and its subsidiaries that EHEENMSBE R 2 FERE
have non-controlling interests that are material to the BR)EEVBEERBE - THESR
Group. The information below is the amount before ANTIEYHEAI2EE(E)
inter-company eliminations (Continued):

CCNG CCNG
Hm R ARl A R
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net cash generated from operating BEEBEE R TR
activities 1,208,961 917,108
Net cash used in investing activities RETZEMAZREFEE (370,256) (1,067,136)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing F1& ;&8 (FFA) E4E 2
activities R&E5 (598,573) 427,162
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents He LIRS ZEBE
3 HnFER 240,132 277,134
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BzH2KERE
£HIER 1,619,747 1,430,538
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERgape (17,116) (87,925)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ _—_A=+—HBZHE K
ReFHEER 1,842,763 1,619,747
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

38 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 38 FEMBARIRZESIGEE
controlled structured entities (Continued) ERFBFE)

(c) Details of the controlled structured entity are as follows: (<)

The Company controls a structured entity which operates in
Hong Kong, particulars of which are as follows:

ERHERRRRENT :

AREEH -—HEBRALEENER
HECHFABWT

kol

Structured entities Principal activities
wRER TEER
Best Thinker Limited (“Trustee”) Purchases, administers and holds the Company’s shares for the Restricted

Share Award Scheme for the benefit of eligible employees of the Group
Best Thinker Limited ([ 25EAJ) REESCEREENRMBEGIERMDERTEEA  ERRFAERARNG

As the Trustee is set up solely for the purpose of purchasing,
administering and holding the Company’s shares for the
Restricted Share Award Scheme (Note 32(c)), the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of the Trustee and it can derive benefits from the services
of the employees who have been awarded the Restricted
Shares through their continued employment with the Group.
The assets and liabilities of the Trustee are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position from its adoption
and the Company’s shares held by the Trustee are presented as
a deduction in equity as “shares held for share award scheme”.
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39

40

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Subsequent events

Since January 2020, there have been numerous confirmed cases of
Coronavirus (“COVID-19") in Mainland China and other countries.
The COVID-19 outbreak is considered a non-adjusting subsequent
event and its related financial impact has not been reflected in the
financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Following the COVID-19 outbreak, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented in
Mainland China. It will inevitably and unfavorably affect commercial
and industrial gas sales in the short term to some extent. The impact
of the COVID-19 on the economy of Mainland China for the whole of
2020 is still uncertain. While it is expected that when the epidemic is
over, the Group’s businesses will return to normal within a relatively
short period of time.

Further, the Group measures its investments in debt and equity
securities at fair value through other comprehensive income. As at 31
December 2019, the total fair value of the investments in debt and
equity securities amounted to HK$693,942,000 (Note 22). In 2020,
fair value of the investments in debt and equity securities may be
subject to fluctuation due to the COVID-19 outbreak, the impact of
which is still under assessment.

Apart from the disclosed above, the outbreak is expected to affect the
financial results of the Group and the macro-economic environment
in Mainland China, Canada and Hong Kong as a whole, the effect of
which cannot be estimated as of the date of the report.

Management will continue to assess the impact on the Group's
operation and financial performance and closely monitor the Group’s
exposure to the risks and uncertainties in connection with COVID-19.

Approval of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020.

39

40

REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

H RSB

B2 _ZEF AR RPEKER
HBEIRED Z R A ERRZIA ([#
T B A 1) B R AR FE o H7 T B R A IR B
REFLREBIFABNRREMS - &
HEEMMBEEIRRRREERE
E-NAFT A=+ —HILFENHB
BERA -

RBREHFEHAREBER  PEAED R
R AR e — R 5 TR MRS 2 6
HEFENERBESHAHT THEX
ARHESTRKATMTE - FTEMARE
HRPBEAE_Z_TFBRFNLEEY
ENEETHIN FRIEBK EE
BRAREBEBHEREREANRFZIAE
BIER -

goh - EBRBAFEFAEMEZEK
U EEEBERAKRE RZF
—h&F+=-A=+—8 BEEERBRAEAE
& WA B8 % £693,942,000 7% T (T
H22) RZZE_ZTF  BHEBRAKE
WAFEESEENSHANIERM
BB HEEMARETE -

LA WEN  ERERAEEETE
SENMBEE URPEKRE - - M2
AERBEAERBLEBEBERE  HEER
SHH EREHEAMGE -

EEEREEFEREMAREHEE
LEMPBRAZTE AIBVERESE
) A ¥ Bl A PR S 2 AR R R B B T R
ERE -

BEGRS B ®R

BEERR-_ZE-_ZEF=-A=-_+tA#E
MEEHEREETHERE -
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e I ERAR MR

(continued) (#)

41 Statement of financial position of the 41 DNF B EMRRF
Company
2019 2018
—E—RE —ZE-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = TET FET
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Intangible assets mEE 1,702 1,702
Interests in subsidiaries RHTBARER 5,785,212 5,736,642
5,786,914 5,738,344
Current assets MBEE
Other receivables H At fE U SRR 56,846 57,400
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkIRSZEEER 26,758 10,673
83,604 68,073
Current liabilities mEBAaE
Other payables b FE T FRIR (100,473) (49,554)
Net current (liabilities)/assets e (AaE) EEEE (16,869) 18,519
Total assets less current liabilities BEERIBAMG 5,770,045 5,756,863
Non-current liabilities ERBAG
Senior notes ERZiE (5,411,161) (5,029,991)
Net assets EEFE 358,884 726,872
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners of the NAEE ANEEER
Company
Share capital A% 2 32 57,670 58,391
Reserves {8 42 301,214 668,481
Total equity RS EEE 358,884 726,872

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved
by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2020 and was signed on its

behalf.
Xu Tie-liang Guan Yijun
Director Director
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REPBHRRME

(continued) (#)

42 Reserves of the Company 42 N AElf#fE
Capital Sharesheld  Share-based Exchange (Note)
Share  redemption forshare  compensation fluctuation ~ Contributed  Accumulated
premium reserve  award scheme reserve reserve surplus losses Total
E1ER BRO%RE  HRHAER EXRE (&)
RitEE i RUFERH MHERE & N ZiER 4%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEn TEn TEn Tin Titn THL Thn
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-HA-H 24578 993 (408,972) 7,194 (18,344) 1,491,200 (1,042,390 54,264
Vesting of shares under share 1R (7 8
award scheme FERG - - 17316 (17,316) - - - -
Exchange differences on REBNERNELZE
translating foreign operations - - - - (131) - - (131)
Equity-settled share-based WEREE RN A
payments ARNAT - - - 21,269 - - - 21,269
Shares purchased for share BROEBTERERR
award scheme - - (29,030) - - - - (29,030)
Proceeds from shares issued ~ RTEBRRERETRG
upon exercise of share options ~ FF/531E 775 - - (1,707) - - - 6,048
Final dividend for the year ended EZ-F—+%+-A
31 December 2017 ZT-BLEEZ
FERE - - - - - (20,390) - (20,390)
Profit for the year Epig i - - - - - - 636,451 636,451
At 31 December 2018 RB-NETZA
=t+-8 32333 998 (420,686) 9,440 (18,475) 1,470,810 (405,939) 668,481
Vesting of shares under share 1R () 282l
award scheme SBRN - - 484 (484) - - - -
Equity-settled share-based WEREEN RN AER
payments Eglogo - - - 2,285 - - - 2,285
Share repurchases EEh O (19,125) - - - - - - (19,125)
Final dividend for the year ended  EZ-F-N\E+2A
31 December 2018 +-ALEEE?
RERE = = = - - (23,356) - (23,356)
Loss for the year ENEB - - - - - - (327,0m) (327,0m)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA
“+-8 13,208 998 (420200) 11,01 (18475) 1447456 (733,010) 301,214
Note: M 5
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the net assets RAZBABBEEER - N=FEEHA
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation in mMEENB AR ZEEFEBL AR MUKE
1993 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange METRND EBEZE BE-—NN—F
thereof. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda 1981 (as amended), the ARERAZE(EBIR)  RAIZBABKE
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to the shareholders in ETERATAHDIKTRE - B ATRQEEE
certain circumstances which the Company is able to satisfy. HEWERB/R -
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFUBREE

NTHINEERNBERERBRFEZEER
BEHBE DRESKBECTEZLERVS
BRETAEMEESHE -

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-BLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hF —T-N\F —T—tF —E-RF “E-hf
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET FET FET FExT
Results E
Revenue S 10,260,654 9,410,131 7,651,280 6,446,452 7,373,902
Profit before taxation BR T Al i A 973,510 928,526 811,466 842,129 50,190
Taxation B (194,391) (250,301) (188,527) (184,461) (20,857)
Profit for the year F R 779,119 678,225 622,939 657,668 29,333
Attributable to: AT RES
Owners of the Company UNGIEZZ=DN 330,984 281,904 250,467 311,791 (183,831)
Non-controlling interests RS 448,135 396,321 372,472 345,877 213,164
779,119 678,225 622,939 657,668 29,333
As at 31 December
W+=—R=+—-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-nF —E-)N\F S —ZT—RF —ZT-RfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET FET FET FHT
Assets and liabilities BERAERE
Total assets BEE 16,832,484 16,027,643 15,546,601 13,603,839 14,087,638
Total liabilities wmafE (10,389,469)  (10,115,583) (9,340,946) (8,352,885) (8,887,384)
Total equity A 6,443,015 5,912,060 6,205,655 5,250,954 5,200,254
Non-controlling interests IR (2,984,731) (2,716,153) (2,861,109) (2,420,523) (2,423,190)
Equity attributable to owners A E1# B A EIG
of the Company 3,458,284 3,195,907 3,344,546 2,830,431 2,777,064
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